# **ABS 3 User Manual**

Including

ABS Agency Builder<sup>®</sup> ABS Document Manager ABS Receipt Manager ABS ACORD<sup>®</sup> forms ABS Email Sender ABS Carrier Gateway ABS in the Cloud SMS Text Messaging

© 2022 Agency Business Systems, Inc rev. 1.15.2022

## PREFACE

ABS Agency Builder automates the redundant tasks required by a well-run Insurance Agency. It is designed to perform exactly the same when running on computers in an office, or running in the cloud – accessed anywhere the Internet is available<sup>1</sup>. It can be used by a one person office, or an office with dozens of simultaneous users. It includes the full complement of ACORD<sup>®</sup> forms, as well as numerous insurance forms that supplement them. It also includes an advanced template-driven word processor with a large library of standard business letters that can be printed and mailed, or emailed directly from the software. The built-in web browser is designed to access carrier websites and partially automate retrieval of policy information. The number of business reports and custom queries is staggering, and provide management capability far beyond a simple database.

Automating your tasks comes from the intelligent use of the data you've acquired and the initial setup you must do. As an example, an initial setup task would be the entering of information about the insurance carriers you represent, and the policies you sell for them. For more details, see the setup sections in this manual. Following those instructions will yield smooth operation.

We mentioned ACORD<sup>®</sup> forms earlier. Because most agents are quite familiar with them, we'll use that feature as an example of the benefit of complete information. We've seen systems that print great looking ACORD<sup>®</sup> forms – as long as you enter a bunch of information every time. The ABS philosophy is to enter information once – not over and over. The information saved about a policy is automatically entered on forms, in letters and emails, used in reports and elsewhere. Let's take a Form 25, for example. It is possible to create one without filling in any fields on the form, or at least filling in very few . It is literally possible to create a completed form 25 in less than one minute.

The key to taking advantage of all this automation is making sure the information in ABS Agency Builder is complete and accurate. For example, the program can't automatically put certificate holder information on an ACORD<sup>®</sup> form if it hasn't been entered. However, once entered, certificate information will automatically be entered for you, anywhere it is needed – any form, any report, anywhere. Likewise, when creating an invoice, ABS can't insert premium, or anything else, if it has not been recorded in the policy information. If it is in the policy information, you won't need to enter it again on receipts, invoices, or payment reminder letters or emails.

Perhaps this has been a long way of saying, garbage in – garbage out. Automation means using existing information efficiently. It doesn't mean creating information out of thin air. We hope you enjoy using ABS Agency Builder. It was created to make your life easier.

<sup>1</sup> ABS Cloud access is available via a 3<sup>rd</sup> party ABS strategic partner. However, you can contract with any other hosting company if you wish. If so, we will charge time and materials for any unusual support they might require.

## **Table of Contents**

Preface	2
Technical Support	1
Topics covered by technical support	1
Before you call	1
Answers to your questions	1
Making Suggestions	1
Software Upgrade Policy	2
Important Terms	2
Maintaining Windows Health	2
Restart Windows	3
System Requirements	3
Operating System	3
Server / Host computer (minimum requirement)	3
Client Workstation (minimum requirement)	3
Network	3
Installation: Server	3
Installation: Client Workstations	4
Software Registration	4
Getting started.	5
ABS-3 Administration	6
Permission tab	6
Human Resources tab	6
Commission Salary tab	7
Logging In	7
Setup Insurance Carrier Info	8
Setup Policy Info	8
Setup Pay Periods	9
Setup Preferences	10
Global Preferences	10
Agency Information	10
Default Calendar	10
User Defined Fields	11
Personal Preferences	11
Activity Log Default	12
Word Processor selection	12
Letterhead	12
No Letterhead	12
ACORD® Form contact person	12
Map/Geolocator Selection	12
Password change	13
Background graphic selection	13
Email program selection	13
Overview	13
Main Window (the container)	14

Locating an account	15
Activity Log	16
Pending Tasks	16
Reminders	16
Advanced Grid Features	17
Filtering	17
Sorting	17
Grouping	17
Hiding Columns	18
Custom Reports from Grids	18
Fit to page	18
Saving a report	19
Load a saved report	19
Standard Reports.	19
Data Backup.	19
3rd Party Backup Systems	20
Manual Backup	20
Automatic / Scheduled Backup	21
How to schedule A Backup via the ABS Console Backup System	21
Setting up Windows Task Scheduler	21
Data Restore	22
ABS-Cloud Option	23
Account Screen: client info center	26
Members Tab	26
Comments	26
Claims History	26
User Defined.	27
Pending Task List	
Email History	27
Premium Finance	
Entity Name	27
Policy Screens	28
Fire Policy Screen	<u>2</u> 0 29
Auto Policy Screen	29
Default Policy Limits	30
Undeleting and Purging Records	
Undeleting	31
Undelete an Account	31
Undelete a Policy	32
Ριιτσίησ	32
Durging an Account	
Purge a Policy	 רצ
Carrier Info Gateway Browser	ביייי בצ
Satun	בנ בצ
Carrier Contacts	בצ
Opening the Cateway Browser	נכ ככ
Using the Cateway Browser	دد ۸۲
Using the Ualeway Diowsel	

Calendar	34
Intra-Office Messages (Buck Slips)	35
Outgoing Intra-Office Messages	35
Arriving Intra-Office Messages	35
Viewing and Managing Messages	35
Deleting Intra-Office Messages	
Marketing Campaigns	
Queries vs. Campaigns	
Campaign Identification	
Assigning Recipients	
Campaign Letter	
Printing Campaign Letters	
Premium Invoice	
Card File	
Card View	40
Grid View	40
Claim History	40
ACORD® Forms	41
Selecting the Insured Name	41
ACORD® Form Completion	42
Opening saved forms	43
Sorting	43
Filtering	43
Form Signatures	43
Certificate Holder Field	
Important Details	
Proprietary Forms	44
Email	45
Setting up ABS Mail Sender	45
Your Info	45
Email address	45
Sent Folder's Name	45
Signature Text	45
Reply Address	
Email Account Settings Tab	46
SMTP Settings Tab	
IMAP Settings Tab	46
Text Messaging	46
Text Message Window	46
Bulk Messaging	47
Text Message Delivery	
Word Processing	47
Templates	47
Editing Templates	
Letter Library	
Document Manager	
Overview	49

Window Layout	49
Scanning a document	
Selecting the scanning dialog	
Selecting the default document type	
Multi-Page, or Large documents	
Importing a Document	
Pasting a document	
Image information	
Categorize for easy look up	
Location of original document	
Caption	
Notes	
Filtering	52
Linking Documents	52
Cross Referencing	52
Moving a document to another account	52
Zooming (JPG or PNG only)	53
Image Editing (JPG or PNG only)	53
Brightness/Contrast Adjustment	53
Color Adjustment	53
Cropping	53
Deskew crooked scans	54
Rotate	54
Receipt Manager	54
Partial Payments	55
Employee Dishonesty Measures	
End of Day Settlement	55
Queries	
Advanced Grid features	
Filtering	
Customized Queries	
Custom Filtering	
Saving Custom Queries	
Opening Saved Queries	
Sorting	
Grouping	
Hiding Columns	
Printing Reports From Grids (Query Example)	
Exporting Grid Contents	
Reports	
Activity Log	
Account Review	
POIICY SUIIIIIIdfy Master Client List	
IVIDSIEI UITEIII LISI	
Caller / POILCy Statistics	
Policy Premium and Count by Carrier (Prior 12 monuls)	01 C1
veceiht manager	

Advanced	61
Carrier/Broker List: All Policies	61
X-Dates	61
User Actions	61
Account Actions	61
Policy Renewal / Cancellation	61
Fees Entered (including those posted)	62
Fees Posted.	62
Appendix A: ABS Agency Builder OVERVIEW	63
Appendix B: ABS Initial Setup	64

## TECHNICAL SUPPORT

### Topics covered by technical support

Our technical support is limited to helping with installation and operation of ABS Agency Builder, and product training. We do not provide support for your network, your hardware, Windows<sup>™</sup>, or programs supplied by other vendors.

### Before you call

Use the Manual or ABS Help. They will eliminate the need for most phone calls. Naturally, if you can't find your answer there, please contact us.

If you call us for help resolving a problem, be prepared to answer any number of diagnostic questions. Please:

- Do not interrupt our support to take other calls. If we are placed on hold for an extended period, we will disconnect so you can call back at a more convenient time.
- Place your call from the desk of the computer that is having the problem.
- If possible, have ABS Agency Builder running when you call. If not, have the exact wording of all error messages that were displayed before the system became inoperable.
- If you are calling on behalf of another user, make sure that person is with you so they can help diagnose the trouble.

### Answers to your questions

The most efficient way to get an answer to your question is via email. We attempt to reply the same day (often within a few minutes). DO NOT send an email without a description of the problem, or a complete question. If we see that an email response will be complicated or hard to understand, we will call you. If you just ask us to call you, your request will be considered after we handle proper requests. We don't discourage your phone calls, but email is usually more cost effective for you and us. Remember; if you want a good answer, ask a good question. If an error message is being displayed, we will need the EXACT wording of the message, and details of what actions caused it.

### **Making Suggestions**

ABS Agency Builder has become a great agency tool because we encourage suggestions. We try to include new ideas from agencies where possible, and where the suggestion has broad appeal. To be considered, your suggestions should be in writing. Oral suggestions are not ignored, but are usually forgotten. Written suggestions serve two purposes: 1. They give us something to file in our Ideas folder (conversations can't be filed), and 2) they cause you to think about the suggestion (ideas come to us better formed when you write them down).

Obviously, suggestions can't be implemented immediately, so don't call us. Send them via email. If you call with a suggestion, we will probably ask you to put it in writing. Naturally, we want you to call if you need immediate help because a system is down, or you can't get something to work properly.

We usually do not acknowledge receipt of suggestions, nor do we indicate if, or when your suggestion will be implemented. In many cases your suggestion will have already been submitted by another office, but that should not prevent you from making suggestions. Our criteria for consideration, in no particular order of priority, is:

- The feature is mandated by Statute or Company policy or procedural changes.
- The feature being suggested must have broad appeal to all agents.
- The feature's value must justify the amount of development effort.
- The feature must not require a significant redesign of our software or database.
- The feature has great value in marketing our product, even though minimal value to an agency (high perceived value versus actual value).
- The feature must be consistent with the established goals and direction of Agency Business Systems, which is to provide easy-to-use software that will satisfy the majority of agency management issues.

## SOFTWARE UPGRADE POLICY

Agency Business Systems maintains a policy of continuous enhancement development. Software updates within a major release, are provided free to active users. Those whose license fees are not current are considered Inactive Users, and will not be able to run ABS Agency Builder, even if the most recent enhancement has been installed.

Periodic, unscheduled releases are posted on our Internet web site, and may be freely downloaded. ABS Agency Builder will notify you when a new release is available. The software is only available via an Internet download.

## **IMPORTANT TERMS**

While you must have an understanding of standard Windows and Insurance terminology, ABS Agency Builder 3 introduces a few terms you must understand before the remainder of the document will be meaningful.

**Server**: Server is a confusing term because it can refer to a server computer (hardware) or a server application such as a database server (software). We will avoid using server to mean hardware. In version 3, the database server's name is Firebird. It is automatically installed when you install ABS Version 3 on your system.

**Open-source**: A software licensing philosophy that promotes zero licensing fees. Open-source software is normally developed by programmers who volunteer their time. They are coordinated by a project leader. This concept yields high quality, yet affordable software. Firebird is open-source software that often exceeds the performance of expensive commercial products.

**Host**: This term always refers to the computer (hardware) where the database is located. Before installation you must determine which computer will be the host. This must be the first computer on which you install ABS Version 3.

Client: Programs on a client computer access data from a server located on a Host computer elsewhere in the network.

**Peer-to-Peer Network**: A network of personal computers, each of which can act as both client and host. Peer-to-Peer networks permit a computer to act as both a host, and a client simultaneous. Peer-to-peer networks are less expensive than client/server networks but less efficient, and far more troublesome. We do not recommend this type of network for offices with more than 2 or 3 employees.

**Dedicated Server (or Dedicated Host)**: A host computer that is never used as a client (or workstation). The class of operating systems can be either Windows, or the more expensive Windows Server class. You should discuss which is best for you with your local computer support person.

**Note**: Some offices may wish to employ a host computer running an open source operating system, such as Linux. We only distribute the Windows version of Firebird. Although a Linux version of Firebird is available, we only support the Windows version. Should you decide to operate the Firebird server on other than Windows, you must acquire tech support from a local IT Professional. We will not provide any form of technical assistance to anyone other than an IT Professional who is familiar with the operating system, as well as the installation and maintenance of SQL Servers on that operating system.

In this document, we will strive to use Server to mean the Firebird database server and Host, to mean the computer where the Server is running, which is also where the database file is located. We will also use Client to mean computers on the network that are running ABS 3, but are not the host. The term Server-Workstation will refer to a computer on which the ABS 3 application and the Firebird Server has been installed (a peer-to-peer system).

## MAINTAINING WINDOWS HEALTH

The best thing you can do assure smooth operation of your computer system is to restart Windows regularly. That means nearly every day. But, you say, I close my computer every night before going home. That used to work. Sadly, with newer versions of Windows, shutting down doesn't really restart your computer, but you have no way to know that. For a good discussion of the reasons, please visit our blog at: <u>http://agencybusys.com/keeping-windows-healthy</u>

Since Windows now makes it more difficult to actually restart, this is what you need to do, at least at the time this was written.

### **Restart Windows**

With later versions, that means right click the start button, click Shut Down or Sign Out, then select Restart. None of the other choices seem to actually restart Windows, certainly .Shut Down doesn't even though it

## SYSTEM REQUIREMENTS

### **Operating System**

Windows Vista, Windows 7, 8, 8.x, 10 or the equivalent Windows Server operating systems. The installation program will reject older operating systems.

#### Server / Host computer (minimum requirement)

- 1 gigahertz (GHz) or faster 32-bit (x86) or 64-bit (x64) processor
- 4 gigabyte (GB) RAM (32-bit) or 2 GB RAM (64-bit)
- 32 GB available hard disk space (32-bit) or 40 GB (64-bit)
- Graphics device capable of 800x600 pixel resolution (higher is recommended)
- Local area network 100 megabits per second minimum (gigabit for excellent performance).

#### Client Workstation (minimum requirement)

- 1 gigahertz (GHz) or faster 32-bit (x86) or 64-bit (x64) processor
- 2 gigabyte (GB) RAM (32-bit) or 2 GB RAM (64-bit)
- 16 GB available hard disk space (32-bit) or 20 GB (64-bit)
- Graphics device capable of 800x600 pixel resolution (higher is strongly recommended)
- Local area network capable of 100 megabits per second minimum (gigabit is recommended for excellent performance).

### Network

For good performance, network speed should be at least 100 Mbps. Best performance will be found with Gigabit network speeds (Gbps), but that is not a requirement. We do not recommend wireless networks. The only exception might be a laptop computer that is routinely taken out of the office. Even then, we recommend that it be plugged into the network while in the office.

## **INSTALLATION: SERVER**

Follow this checklist. Failure to do so will almost certainly lead to frustration, and possibly cause ABS Agency Builder 3 to not function properly. You will find more information on each of these items in other sections of the manual. Do not use a laptop as the host computer (the server).

- ✓ Install the software from the web download. Start with the host computer (the server). Once the host is done, install the program on all other computers following the instructions for a Client Workstation (next section in this manual). Downloading and installing the software is covered in the Installation Manual available on our web site under Support >Installation.
- ✓ Register the database via the ABS Registration Program. If ABS Agency Builder Version 3 has never been registered, the registration program will start automatically. If it doesn't, start it from the start menu. Make sure to enter Agent name and Agency name as you wish it to appear on binders and other insurance documents. Refer to

the Registration section.

- ✔ Add valid Users and User Permissions via System Administration. Refer to the Administration section of this manual.
- ✓ Edit the letter templates to contain your return address in the style and exact wording you desire. Must be done on each workstation. For more information see instructions below. Note: if you have templates setup for version 2, you can copy the contents of ABS2\Document into ABS3\Document, replacing all files with the same names.
- ✔ Add Carrier and Policy information for each company with whom you have appointments.
- ✓ Edit the lien holder list to include lenders in your area, and to eliminate lenders that you will probably never need. Do this by clicking Tools\ Edit Lien holders after the program has been installed.

## INSTALLATION: CLIENT WORKSTATIONS

When setting up a Client workstation, the installation program will automatically open the ABS Data Path Configuration utility. If you did not install the Server first, cancel this installation and install the program on your Host computer. If you completed the Client install, don't attempt to configure the data path. Instead, complete the Host installation, then run the configure data path program from the ABS Program Menu.

Configuring a client computer is as simple as selecting the name of the Host computer from the list of network computers. If the Host computer's name is not displayed, simply enter it into the Host Name field at the bottom.

NOTE: The name of the Host computer is displayed in a pop-up window during the Host installation. If you don't know which

🏀 Select Host Com	nputer — 🗆 💌
Instructions:	Please Select:
<ul> <li>Select Host Computer         The Host name was given to you during the Host installation. If it is not in the list, type it into the white, "Host Name" space. Type the computer name only. Not the ABS3 Folder path, and Not a UNC path. It should never begin with backslashes (ie \\Server).     </li> <li>Click Apply         Once the Host Name has been entered you     </li> </ul>	Client 1 Client 2 Client 3 Client 4 Server 1
should click the "Apply" button. To leave without saving your work, click "Cancel." Note: The Host Computer must be on and available.	Host Name: Server 1 Apply Cancel

computer is the server, contact your technician, or someone in the office who knows. We can't tell via the phone, and can't help.

## SOFTWARE REGISTRATION

You will be unable to use the software until we provide you with a Registration Code. You will also be required to reregister the software if there is any change to Agency Name, or Agent Name. The procedure for software registration is:

From Windows 7 or XP, click Start > All Programs > ABS V3 > Register ABS Agency Builder. In Windows 8, 8.1, or 10, click the tile labeled Register ABS Agency Builder. Either will display the following screen.

Complete the information, and then click the Print button.

Fax, mail or email the Registration Form to Agency Business Systems, Inc. The fax number and mailing address are printed on the registration form. An email button is in the top left of the print preview.

**Important**: The information you enter determines what is printed on your Binders, Certificates, Evidences of Insurance, and other documents. If you change agency information, you must reregister the software.

Agency Business Systems, Inc. will fax or email a Registration Code to you. Enter the Registration Code exactly as found on the document you receive. Then click the Register button. You can enter the code at the Host computer, or any workstation. However, most people find it easier to register immediately after installing the software on the Host computer.

**Note**: when we help you install by remoting into your computers, we don't send you a registration code because we enter it for you.

	ABS Registration ×
Procedure 1. Co 2. Pr Br 3. Er	omplete the Agency Information below. init it, and favor email to Agency Business systems, Inc. ABS will return a egistration Code based on this information. iter the Registration Code supplied by ABS in the spaces at the bottom.
Agency Informat	ion (you enter)
Agency Name:	Dent Insurance Agency, Inc.
Agent First Name:	Arthur
Agent Middle Name:	At least one
Agent Last Name:	Dent Optional
Agent License:	42
Street Address:	42 E Galaxy Way
Mailing Address:	Box 4242 < Double click to insert Street Addr.
City, State Zip	Bypass , TX 97268
Office Phone Num:	(972) 772-2468 Fax (072)
Desidenting Cod	
Registration Loc	ie (supplied by ABS)
	Begister
Note: Alpha char	acters are case sensitive (the shift key matters).
	Close
REGISTRATION FIELD: N	landatory entry.

## <u>GETTING STARTED.</u>

#### NOTE: Initial setup items are given as a checklist in Appendix B.

When first starting to use ABS Agency Builder, the database is empty. To get the maximum benefit, you should follow the procedure in this section, in the order listed. This procedure has been designed to give you some of the most important advantages of ABS right away, getting more benefits as you complete the additional steps. Time estimates are based on an agency with four to six employees, appointments with 10 to 12 insurance companies, and 1500 to 2000 policies. Your time may vary depending on the size of your agency and the dedication you apply to this process. They also assume that you make a concerted effort to get the job done. If you are short staffed, we encourage you to hire a temporary employee with good keyboard skills. The added efficiency you gain may very well pay for their service. We emphasize keyboard skills because this software is designed to help run your business. You've heard it before, Garbage in – Garbage out. You need speed and accuracy. If you don't dedicate yourself to this task, it will take longer and you will not gain the full benefit of this software. ABS is a tool, it is up to you to keep it sharp.

1. Initial Setup: should take 90 minutes or less (Refer to Appendix B in this manual)

Follow the procedures below, beginning with the section titled *ABS-3 Administration*. Don't use a temp for this. Complete step 1 before moving to step 2.

#### Benefits:

- 1. The next steps will go much faster and be more accurate.
- 2. Carrier contact information will be at your fingertips even if Client information is not yet entered.
- 2. <u>Client Data</u>: should take <u>2-3 workdays.</u>

Enter all your client's Names, Addresses, Phone Numbers, and three or four other items. Be sure to enter Members on the tab at the bottom of the screen. That will let you use the Activity Log right away. Try to avoid entering policy information, even if an ACORD form is required. Use whatever you have been using until you have entered policy data. This step can be done by a temp and is covered in detail later in this manual. Complete step 2 before moving to step 3.

**Benefits:** 

- 1. Customer contact information will be quick and easy to lookup.
- 2. Activity Log entries will be possible, even if policy information is not yet entered.
- 3. ACORD forms will at least pre-fill with client information.

#### 3. **Policy Data: should take about <u>2-3 weeks.</u>**

This step takes the most time, but it is probably the most important. This data is used to automatically fill-in

ACORD forms, Invoices, Receipts, and form letters. It also contributes to Business Reports, enables Marketing Campaigns, and helps cross-sell to increase Policies Per Household.

Enter all policy data, one account at a time. Start with your first account, enter policy, risk, and coverage information. Then move through the accounts, one at a time. This step can be done by a temp with a little training. This completes the process if you did not order the ABS Document Manager. If you did, then complete step 3 before moving to step 4.

#### **Benefits:**

- 1. Policy information will be readily available, and visible on the Policy Summary of the main account screen.
- 2. ACORD forms will pre-fill with carrier, client, risk and other policy data.
- 3. Invoices and receipts will pre-fill with policy and premium data.

#### 4. Documents: ignore if you did not license the ABS Document Manager.

If you didn't license Document Manager, you have completed the process with step 3, above. If you did license it, the time involved will depend on whether you have already been saving documents and photos using another system or not . If it is as simple as importing existing documents, that process takes about one to two minutes per document.

**Benefits:** 

- 1. Making this the last step allows you to not only import documents into an existing account (entered in step 2), you can further link them to family members (also entered in step 2), and/or policies (entered in step 3).
- 2. The process is complete, and ABS will be fully functional.

## **ABS-3** ADMINISTRATION

You must run the ABS3 Administration program in order to setup permissions for ABS3 users. This allows the agent to grant or revoke permission to do certain things within ABS Agency Builder. Each employee, or at least each ABS3 user must be entered, and given a User ID before they can use the program. Do this after installation and before attempting to open the program. The Admin password is "Agent". Once you open the Admin program, change that password to something more secure. The password used for distribution is available to anyone via our website. Don't wait. Change it by clicking File > Change Password.



### **Permission tab**

When permission is not granted, in some cases those options will simply not be visible. In other cases the menu choice will be visible, but will result in a message telling the user that permission for that function was not granted by the administrator. Notice the tabs on the previous illustration. The Permission tab is filled with check boxes for a number of tasks. We have categorized them into four groups, identified by their appearance. The Legend at the bottom of the tab explains the categories, but they are only guidelines. You can grant or revoke permission as best suits your business. However, there is one exception; Administration may only be granted to no more than two users. This offers a degree of security for information to which only administrators should have access.

### Human Resources tab

The Human Resources tab offers a place to record simplified HR information such as: where they live, how to contact them (phone, email, etc), their emergency contact, insurance agent's license, etc. All of this information is optional, but it's very handy to have all of it in a common, unified location. Note: you should probably enter each employee's cellphone here. Doing that will permit sending Text Messages to employees directly from ABS Agency Builder.

## **Commission Salary tab**

This is where employment information is kept. For those employees who are paid commission, default commission rates should be entered here. These rates will be used when ABS Agency Builder computes compensation for commissioned employees.

- **Split Commission**: the portion of the agency's commission that will be paid to the producer. This is a default value that can be overridden when finalizing commission calculation.
- Shared Commission: on occasion, a producer must share his or her commission with a sub-producer that assisted with the sale. This is a default value that can be overridden when finalizing commission calculation.

## LOGGING IN

This is the first screen that requires your input. It limits access to ABS Agency Builder. Only those users that the ABS System Administrator has entered as Valid Users can log in. Once the administrator has logged in, there are a number of setup tasks that should be performed. Each are covered in the next major section of this manual.



Always check the System Date. It is used to automatically change policy renewal dates & cancellations, and compute ages from birth dates.



This window is shown next. It confirms that automatic policy maintenance was performed. The very first time a new user opens ABS, the database will be empty, and this process will be completed very quickly.

Each new day, the program updates all policy renewal dates and effective dates by comparing them to the computer's date. Policy status is also set to inactive (I) based on the Cancellation Date. If that date has passed, the policy's status is changed to inactive. If the cancellation date field is empty, or has a future date, the status remains unchanged.

Automatic Data Maintenance	
Renewing flood policies. Renewing life policies. Scheduled Cancel: Auto Policies. Scheduled Cancel: Vehicles. Scheduled Cancel: Boat Policies. Scheduled Cancel: Boat Policies. Scheduled Cancel: Commercial Policies. Scheduled Cancel: Fire Policies. Scheduled Cancel: Fire Policies. Scheduled Cancel: Health Policies. Scheduled Cancel: Life Policies. Scheduled Cancel: Life Policies. Scheduled Cancel: Surplus Policies. Scheduled Cancel: Umbrella Policies. Scheduled Cancel: Work Comp Policies. Finished.	
	Close

## SETUP INSURANCE CARRIER INFO

Open the Carrier List by clicking Admin > Carrier List.

We provide seed carriers in the list as an example. You should enter those with which you do business, and delete those you don't need. However, even if you cancel your appointment with a carrier, you keep them in the list, especially if you still have historical policy information in the database.

The grid, shown at the right, contains carrier information you must enter. If you are entering a new carrier, not in the list, you can often just pick it from a convenient list. Get that list by clicking the button at the top of the windows titled *Pick a Carrier to enter*.

The advantage of picking one from the list is that it should already have the NAIC number. If you pick one from the list, make sure to verify that number is correct. There are a lot of carriers with very similar names. The NAIC number is identified by the right arrow (blue) in this illustration. If you need to manually enter a carrier, you'll need to look up the NAIC number. The advantage of entering that number is, when you fill out an ACORD<sup>®</sup> form, the NAIC field will be entered for you using the number you've put here. It's worth the time it takes to look it up now instead of every time you create a form.

In addition to the Company Name, the three left arrows (red) point to fields that are used to automate browsing to your carrier's website using the ABS Carrier Gateway Browser. These values are not part of the *Pick List*, so you'll need to enter them yourself. Your login credentials are unique, and are assigned by the insurance company. Notice, the password is obscured. You can expose the actual characters by clicking the *eye* button at the right of the password field. The *eye* button becomes visible when you enter that field. Passwords are obscured by default.

## SETUP POLICY INFO

Setting up the policy list is critical to commission calculation, and to efficient data entry. This must be done for each policy type that you sell for each company. For example, let's say you sell both preferred and standard auto policies for Grange Insurance. Let's also say that Grange Insurance, hypothetically, pays 20% for a new preferred policy, and 10% for a new standard policy. You must enter each policy type so that ABS knows which percentage to use when computing commission. This may seem tedious, but it only needs to be done once, and by doing it now, you don't need to repeat the process for each policy you sell.



Begin by clicking *Admin > Policy List & Carrier Default Commission* from the main menu. Note the sample menu to the right.

That menu selection opens the Commission Wizard. Begin by selecting the previously entered Insurance Company and click Next.

If the ca	arrier isn't in this list, click here.	
	Allstate Imarence Co. American Bankos Flood Inc. Co. American Bankos Company Of Har Hord Blue Cross & Blue Sheld Regues Comumers County Mutual Farmes Incurance Company of Oregon Farmers Incurance Company of Oregon Farmers Incurance Exchange Foremot Loyds Of Faxes	
	Grange Insurance The Hartford Insurance Company	
	Mid Century Insurance Pacific Care	~





Select the policy type. Let's say we are entering one of the two auto policies we mentioned above. At this point we just select the general policy type -- Auto.

Note the illustration at the right.

<ul> <li>Auto</li> </ul>	OHealth	
OBoat	Olife	
Commercial	O Surplus (misc.)	
CEarthquake	OUmbrella	
Fire	O Workers Compensation	
Flood	Other not listed above	

Next, enter the policy name. In this example, you can see that a policy has already been entered. If all you wish to do is change commission percentages, select the policy in the bottom window. When entering new policy information, enter the actual policy name used by the insurance carrier. If it's not available, or you don't know what it is, enter something meaningful and descriptive, such as Preferred Auto. However, it would be worthwhile to use the actual policy name used by the carrier because whatever you enter here will be inserted into many of the standard letters.

The last step in this process is to enter the percentages paid by the carrier to the agency. In the illustration below, you'll notice there is a place for New Business Commission and Renewal Commission. For each, you can enter percentages for up to 5 tiers, if needed. Make sure to enter percentages in a decimal format. In other words, 0.10 = 10%. If you don't know what the Cutoff dates are for this policy, contact the carrier. Until then, the default values should be pretty close.

0	Add a new policy for Grange Insurance.
	Policy Name:
	Check this box if ABS should maintain renewal and effective dates. You may wish to uncheck if carrier downloads update renewal and effective dates for you, or if you simply don't want ABS to renew those dates.
۲	Select an existing policy to change.
	Rural Auto

	anio	unt, and a diff	erent perc	cent is paid	beyo	ond t	hat. Most	policies o	only need	one	tier.			
tanda	ard ac	counting prac	tices estat	blish cutoff	date	s we	I before t	the end of	the mont	h. Tl	his give	s tir	ne to	•
.,		alona berore e	ne stare o	the next h	iona		just area	e to mate	in the one		child co			_
olicy M	lame:	Preferred Auto												
New	Busine	ss Commision:		Renev	val Co	ommis	sion:		Cut	off D	ates			
Tiers:	1	~		Tiers:	1	¥			Jan	22	¥	Jul	22	¥
Tier 1:	0.20	20%		Tier 1:	0.08	8%			Feb	20	~	Aug	22	~
Tier 2	0.0	0% Starts at:	0.0	Tier 2:	0.0	0%	Starts at	0.0	Mar	22	~	Sep	21	~
Tier 3:	0.0	0% Starts at:	0.0	Tier 3:	0.0	0%	Starts at	0.0	Apr	21	~	Oct	22	¥
Tier 4	0.0	0% Starts at:	0.0	Tier 4	0.0	0%	Starts at	0.0	May	22	~	Nov	21	~
Tier 5:	0.0	0% Starts at:	0.0	Tier 5:	0.0	0%	Starts at	0.0	Jun	21	~	Dec	22	¥

## SETUP PAY PERIODS

While ABS can simplify commission calculation, there are several things that must be done so that ABS knows what you want. Perhaps the most obvious is how often you write pay checks, or Pay Periods. This is an administrative task, so it can only be done by a user who has administrative privileges. The window below is only available from the Admin menu. To setup Pay Periods Click Admin > Create Pay Periods.

File Edit	Admin	View	Marketing	Reports	Tools & Settings	Window		
First F	Us Br Ca Pc Gl	er/Empl oker List mier List licy List obal Car	loyee List & t & Carrier D rrier Change	HR Info efault Com Utility	imission Shift+Ctrl+C	esh s		
	Cr	eate Pay	Periods			2		
Accour	Ac Pr	Accounts Receivable Reconciliation Ctrl+Alt+F Producer Commission Reconciliation						

The four most common pay period strategies are shown at the top of the window. Select the one used by your office. Then choose the pay period start date. Note, this is normally a few days prior to pay day so the payroll department (or person) has enough time to complete the administrative tasks that must be done prior to drafting pay checks.

Once those two items have been completed, click the SAVE button to automatically generate the pay periods. A Monthly payday schedule was used in this example. This is an important step because these pay periods will be used during commission reconciliation. They form the contents of a drop-down menu. Because of this, you will need to reset periods after the last period of the previously established pay periods, usually once a year.

Mon	hly - 12 payda	ays a year.	🔘 Bi-v	weekly (every other week) - 26 a year.
🔘 Sem	-Monthly (twice	month) - 24 a yea	🔘 We	ekly - 52 per year.
Pay Per	iod Start Date:	10/10/2012	•	
Perioc 🗅	Period Start	Period End		Use the "SAVE" button to automatically
1	10/01	10/31		generate and save pay periods. Once
2	11/01	11/30		should never need to delete, but occasional
3	12/01	12/31		you may need to add a period or two.
4	01/01	01/31		
5	02/01	02/28		For Bi-weekly, or Weekly pay plans. For Bi-weekly periods 26 periods will be created
6	03/01	03/31		Because a year can't be divided evenly by 1
7	04/01	04/30		days, there will be one extra 14-day period
8	05/01	05/31		every 11 years. Fourteen times 26 equals
9	06/01	06/30		year. In 11 years, there will be an additional
10	07/01	07/31		three days due to leap-years. So, if you use
11	08/01	08/31		bi-weekly periods, every 11 years you will
12	09/01	09/30		need to manually add a 27th.
				A similar situation exists for weekly pay periods. However, if you pay commissions monthly, as do most offices, this will never b an issue.

## SETUP PREFERENCES

Preferences are set by using the *Tools & Settings > Program Preferences* menu at the top of the main window. *Global Preferences* control how the program behaves on all computers. *Personal Preferences* control how the program behaves on the computer on which it has been set.

## **Global Preferences**

### Agency Information

Changes to agency information (address, phone, etc). This information appears on documents such as ACORD Forms, so be accurate. We don't recommend using all caps. It looks unprofessional, and out of place on a form where all other text is a mixture of upper and lower case (proper case).

Pr	references	
Policy User Defined Agency Info	Account Status Account Use	Calendar r Defined
Agency: Agency Bu Agent: Homer Jon License # 122456 Street: (6519 5E 9 PO/Maling PO Box 98 City Glendale OfficePhone(503 555 9 FAX 503 555 9 Code:	siness Systems, Inc. ies melong Ave 76 ST [CA ] Zu[9000. 910 911	
[	<u>O</u> K <u>C</u> ancel	

### Default Calendar

ABS users have the choice of using the ABS Calendar or Microsoft® Outlook. The ABS Calendar has an advantage over Outlook in that it is an office-wide calendar. In other words, it can keep appointments for every employee in the office. This has a very distinct advantage over calendars that can only be used by the person sitting at the workstation.

Agency Into	Account Use	er Defined
Policy User Defined	Account Status	Calendar
elect one:		
ABS Scheduler		
Use ABS Schedular f	or business and personal appoi	ntments.
Note: Bulk deletin on the calendar w	g of old appointments may indow.	be done
MS Outlook Calendar *		
Use Microsoft Outloo * You must have	k on this PC to schedule appoin a licensed copy of Microsoft Ou	tments. utlook.

Here's an example of the ABS Calendar.



### **User Defined Fields**

The program is distributed with generic captions such as, "*Check Box 1*", or "*Text Field 1*". You can assign more meaningful captions that better describe how you use them, or what they represent in your office. There are two categories of these fields: Account and Policy User Defined Fields.

Account User Defined fields can be customized using the tab with that name.

**Policy User Defined fields** can be customized using the tab with that name. That tab gives you a place for each line of business (Auto, Boat, Commercial, Earthquake, etc). Use the scroll bar at the right to locate the policy type you wish to edit.



	Preferen	nces			
Agency Info Policy User Defined	Acco	Account Use unt Status	er Defined Calendar		
Auto 1. Check box 1 1. User Defined 2. Check box 2 2. User Defined	i Check 1 I Check 2	3. User Text 3. User Define 4. User Text 3 4. User Define	1 ed Text 1 2 ed Text 2		
Boat <u>1. Chạck box 1</u> 1. User Defined <u>2. Chạck box 2</u> 2. User Defined	I Check 1 I Check 2	3. User Text 3. User Define 4. User Text 2 4. User Define	1 ed Text 1 2 ed Text 2		
Commercial 1. Check box 1 1. User Defined 2. Check box 2 2. User Defined	I Check 1	3. User Text 3. User Define 4. User Text 2 4. User Define	1 ed Text 1 2 ed Text 2	•	
	Ōĸ	Cancel			

Word Processor	Logon P	assword	Pending Task D	efaults	Background
Internet Map P	rovider	Activi	ty Log Default	ACO	RD Contact
the text you The default of Activity Log	would like event is w window. T	e to have hat will ap his can si	as the default. opear each time ave you the time	you oper it takes	n the to
select the mi the value to Default Event Type:	suit your r	nt event needs. one Call	type. You will be	e able to	change

### **Personal Preferences**

Personal Preferences allow each user to define how the program works on their workstation. For example, employee A may prefer to use Microsoft Word, but employee B may wish to use the ABS word processor. There are several other such preferences discussed below.

### Activity Log Default

Assign the default Event value for Activity Log. Most activity logs result from phone calls. However, you can enter an event type that is more specific to your environment, such as *Coverage Change*.

Setting up a default is a time saver, but it is not required. It is easy to change the event type when you enter the actual log event.

See the section of this manual covering Activity Log entries. Pending Task Defaults

Pending Tasks gives each employee a things-to-do list. Each task can be printed as a list, or become a pop-up reminder. This preference tab lets you define how far into the future to look. In other words, it allows you to hide tasks that are so far into the future that they are meaningless at the moment. You can also view your own tasks, or those for the entire office. We recommend viewing yours only.

This tab also controls whose reminders are displayed. We recommend selecting your tasks only.

#### Word Processor selection

Select which Word Processor to use, ABS, or MS Word. This tab also defines which template to use.

#### <u>Letterhead</u>

By default, this template is designed to print your letterhead on plain paper. Editing templates is covered in the Word Processor section of this manual.

#### No Letterhead

By Default, this template assumes that pre-printed stationary will be used, and will not print your letter. Editing templates is covered in the Word Processor section of this manual.

### ACORD<sup>®</sup> Form contact person

Many ACORD<sup>®</sup> forms display a contact person. If you do nothing, the Agency Name will be used. Otherwise, you can select the individual you would like the form recipient to contact.

#### Map/Geolocator Selection

ABS can find your customer's location in one of several Internet map providers. This is where you select which one you prefer.

Internet Map P	rovider	Activit	ty Log Default	ACORD	Contact
Word Processor Logon Password			Pending Task D	efaults E	ackground
Changing these w	alues only eff	erts this	workstation		
How far in the	a futura da	MOLENZA	at to look?		
Due with	in the new	month	10 00 100101		
Due with	IT the next	monur		Ŷ	
Default Viewi	ng:				
O Homer Jon	es				
Entire Office	e				
Popup Remin	der For:				
My Tasks C	only (recom	mended	) Use TMy Tasks populos to you	only" to li r reminder	nit s. It wil
O All Tasks			prevent remin	ders for ot	hers.

Internet Map Provider	Activit	ty Log Default	RD Contact	
ford Processor Logon Pas	sword	Pending Task	Defaults	Background
Select Word Processo ABS Word Processo Microsoft Word (m ABS Word processor is fi featured and eavy to use Microsoft Word has more difficult to learn if you de not have word processor experience.	er: )) ) 	Which Terr © Letterhe No Lette Choose "Lett ABS print you Choose "No I you don't wi letterhead. F you use pre- stationary.	plate? ad rhead rhead ur letterh .etterhea nt to pri or examp printed	to have ead. ad" if nt your ke, if

Select the d	efault name you wish to use for ACORD Form on.
Agency B     Donna Joi     Homer Joi     Mark O'Do	usiness Systems, Inc. res nnel
	SK Sauce
Word Processor	Preferences
Internet Map F The Internet n	Yovider Activity Log Default ACORD Contac nap providers (Geolocators) below can be automated
	to your customer's address. When you click View +
to show maps Maps, ABS will have selected	automatically show the map using the provider you below.
to show maps Maps, ABS will have selected i	Jutomatically show the map using the provider you below.
to show maps Maps, ABS will have selected	automatically show the map using the provider you below. Internet Geolocators @ Google@ Maps MapQuest@ Maps
to show maps Maps, ABS will have selected l	automatically show the map using the provider you below. Internet Geolocators Google@ Maps MapQuest@ Maps Bing@ Maps

#### Password change

Change User Login Password. The system administrator will still be able to see the new password via ABS Administration program. That admin program is also password protected. For added security, the Admin Password is different, and not related to the user password setup here.

### Background graphic selection

ABS Agency Builder is distributed with a number of unique background graphics that can be displayed on the Main Screen. Select which Main Screen background to use.



ABS email Sender is new with version 3.8.25.342. This is especially useful for agents who use Internet based email such as gmail.

You may select either your default email program or the ABS email Sender by clicking *Tools & Settings » Program Preferences » Personal Preferences*. The resulting window will be similar to this one. Select the email Sender tab. NOTE: ABS email sender is the only option when using ABS in the Cloud.









#### Please refer to Appendix A for a more detailed overview.

ABS Agency Builder stores most data in a hierarchical relationship. The highest level contains the general account, or household information such as name, address, phone, etc. Linked to the Account level are the details about specific policies, such as Auto, Fire, Boat, Life, and so on. In some cases the policy detail branches to yet another level that contains data such as Floaters. The diagram below demonstrates these relationships. While it doesn't show everything, it shows how the hierarchical relationship works.



Understanding this relationship makes navigation much more understandable. For example, let's say you wish to create an Evidence of Insurance for a commercial policy owned by Bill Smith. The information that pre-fills the ACORD form must come from the commercial data for that account. First you would navigate to the Bill Smith account, then to his commercial policy. The ACORD form would be opened from the commercial policy screen so that account and policy information can automatically pre-fill the form. Obviously, the needed information would not be available from an auto policy screen because the commercial data doesn't reside there.

The data relationship is reflected in how it is displayed. The example on the next page, notice the main window is a container for Account and policy screens. The tool bar buttons across the top, and down the left side provide rapid navigation, and access to the most commonly used features of the program. They are discussed in more detail elsewhere in this document.

The hierarchical relationship is live. That means you can navigate from one account to another, and all the policy information is kept in sync. For example, let's say you are looking at the Smith household (and their policies). Then you switch to the Abernathy household without closing the policy screens. The policy information will automatically be that of the Abernathy's -- instantly. Navigation is convenient, fast, reliable and efficient.

Note that ABS has its own wallpaper, which you can change (and even use your own photos).

## MAIN WINDOW (THE CONTAINER)

This screen is the main application window. It is a container for nearly all other screens, such as the Account Screen, and all policy screens.

The encircled numbers denote various areas of this window. They are explained in more detail below. You will almost never see the full background, as shown in this image. The Account screen was removed to help you focus on the numbered items below. The red numbers in the

screen image are explained below.



- 1. The leftmost panel has shortcut buttons that open all policy screens. The number of visible buttons depends on the size of your monitor, and the resolution Windows is using.
- 2. The Navigator buttons allow you to do what the name implies. You can use it to move from one record to another, add and delete records, save your work, and refresh your system with information that may have been entered by another user. Most windows that allow multiple records will have a navigator. Likewise, many grids will have navigators, only they are located at the bottom of the grid.
- 3. The Search portion of the tools bar lets you find and display account information quickly. Browse & Search have two different purposes. Browse gives you an alphabetical list to thumb through. Search lets you find an account based on many different criteria.
- 4. The Account Activity Log area gives you the choice of manually logging an activity, or viewing previously entered logs.
- 5. Pending Tasks are where you enter or review your Things-To-Do list. You can also set reminders for each task that will pop up at a time and date of your choosing.
- 6. Buck Slips, or Intra-Office messages, let you send messages to other people in the office.
- 7. Miscellaneous
  - The Calendar button opens the ABS Calendar, or lets you set appointments in Microsoft Outlook.
  - The Web button opens a list of insurance carrier web sites that you have entered.
- 8. Document Manager lets you store photographs, scanned documents, Adobe Acrobat documents (.pdf), and MS Word documents with the client information. Organization and easy document retrieval are the hallmarks of this option.
- 9. Down in the lower right of the Main Screen is a small field showing the Zoom Factor. Normal zoom is 100%. Some individuals may find it easier to read if they set the zoom factor higher. The next step up is 125%, then 150%. Click the Zoom display to change the zoom factor.
- 10. The background image can be changed. The default is shown here, however, there are several other standard ABS background images.

### LOCATING AN ACCOUNT

There are two ways to locate an account. The first is to use the Search button on the tool bar (binoculars), or press F4. That opens the window at the left. As you can see, it lets you locate an account using a number of criteria. This is handy because you don't always have complete information, or because of legibility issues, i.e. bad handwriting. It defaults to a Last Name search because that is most common, however, you can search for an account using other information, such as VIN, Policy Number, Family Members Last Name, or other info. See the *Search for* list.



LAST	NAME	<b>v</b>				
den						
LASTNAME	FIRSTNAME	ENTITYNAME	ADDRESS1	ADDRESS2	CSZ	^
Davis	Melvin		217 N Alderwood Ave		Milwaukie, OR 93222	
De La Cruz	Daniel		8325 SW Mohawk St #14		Tualatin, OR 93062	
De Lair	Joseph & Julie		5000 SE Britton Ave		Milwaukie, OR 93267	
De Lorenzo	Brenda		1130 Clayton Way		Gladstone, OR 93027	
Dee	Dana		4707 SE Boardman #28		Milwaukie, OR 93267	
Deming	Ronald		614 SE 70th		Portland, OR 93215	
Denny	Scott		19990 S Ferguson Rd		Oregon City, OR 93045	
DeSean	Bonnie		19686 S. Rocky Dr.		Mulino, OR 93042	
Didier	Pamela & Mark		225754 Firlock Blvd		Saint Helens, OR 93051	
Dillard	Brenda		2549 SE 115th Av #6		Portland, OR 93266	
Dionne	Duane		481 W. Gloucester		Gladstone, OR 93027	
Diperi	John		19582 S Leland Rd		Oregon City, OR 93045	
DiSorbo	Kerry		222222 SW Oak #609		Portland, OR 93204	~
<					>	

Another popular search method is to Browse for an account. That's the Magnifying Glass button (or Shift-F4). This lets you use fewer criteria, but has the advantage of showing a list of accounts as you search. Sometimes this is more convenient when looking for an account where there may be several similar names, Smith for example. When browsing, usually just entering a few characters will jump to the first occurrence of the name. From there you can use the downarrow, or your mouse to jump to the Smith you want.

## ACTIVITY LOG

This is where you record the things you have done for, or conversations you have had with (or about) this customer. Activity Logs are indelible. In other words, once an entry has been saved, it can't be edited or deleted. This makes your log more credible as evidence in a dispute, whether in court, arbitration, or simply a verbal disagreement with your customer.

The first line is automatically entered for you, depending on the policy that was selected when you clicked the New Activity Log button. Notice the red wiggly lines under certain words. Those are because the automatic, as-you-type, spell checking flagged those words as being possibly misspelled. Also, the Event field has a Drop-Down list that can be customized to suit how your agency does business.

After you have completed your Entry, you can save the log, or save the log, and create a follow-up item. Clicking the Log & Follow up button saves the log, and opens a Pending Task with your Entry text already filled in. By saving the pending task, your Followup will be added to your Things-To-Do list, and an optional pop-up reminder can be scheduled.



## PENDING TASKS

Pending is our short name for Things-To-Do. Each employee can have their own task list. Each task can have a pop-up reminder or not. Tasks can be reassigned from one employee to another. Pending tasks can be viewed for the entire office, as a master list, or individually. The Action item is a drop-down list that speeds data entry. The contents of the drop down list can be setup by the program administrator.

### Reminders

All pending entries automatically become part of your Things-To-Do list

Task Assignment (Things To Do)
Due Date: 5/19/2016  Reminder Time (check to set)  D5:49 PM
Action: Contact Underwriting
Client: Donna Jones 💌
Assign to: Homer Jones 💌
Description: Commercial Policy A41595242 Check MVR on driver Alfred E. Newman, He's not sure if his record is clear, but thinks is should be.
869 Remaining. <u>QK</u> <u>Cancel</u>

(Pending Items). If you wish to have the program remind you in advance of a task's due date, check the reminder box and enter the date and time you wish the reminder to pop up.

## **ADVANCED GRID FEATURES**

Predefined, and certain other queries, are displayed in grids that have very advanced features. Please pay close attention to the following illustrations. They are typical of queries available by clicking *Marketing* > *Predefined Queries*.

### Filtering

This grid shows Fire policies being filtered by State. The user is in the process of filtering to show only those policies in the States of Oregon and Washington. Notice the drop-down menu in the State column. All columns, with few exceptions, can be filtered in this manner. Note that multiple selections can be made.

Output		_						_	_	_			
Y													
-													
Print Print	Mailing Export Ma	il .											
Report L	abels												
	Output												
ina a column	hander have to every bu	that column											
nug u colainn	includer increase group by	and country		10.000 C									
AS Entity	First 1	did Last	Salutation	Clent	Address1	Address2	City	Stat 7	ip	Area Phone	CSR Email	Mass Mai	Rente
A	Allson	Ansle	Dear Alison	Alson Ansle	2952 E Hambon St		Seatt (AI)		8112	206 (206) 329 455	6		
A	Richard & Audine	Anstead	Dear Richard & Audine	Richard & Audine Anstead	5200 SE Jennings Ave #15		Mhva (OL	istom) 9	3267	654 8811	HWJ	1	×
A	Albert	Babcock	Dear Abert	Albert Babcock	18505 SE Ashton Ln		Mitwa CA	9	3267	654 8561	HWJ	1	E
A	Douglas	Bennett	Dear Douglas	Dougias Bennett	5345 SE Byron Dr		Mhva	9	7267	503 (503) 654 065	9		10
A	Dale & Lori	Bingham	Dear Dale & Lori	Dale & Lori Bingham	2203 SW Marsuda Way #27		Aloha	9	3006	658 2582	HIND	1	10
A	Tom and Susan	Brooks	Dear Tom and Susan	Tom and Susan Brooks	16698 SE Blossom Ave		Mhvatava.	- m 9	3267	655 2416	H/W3	1	10
A	James & Terri	Burch	Dear James & Terri	James & Terri Burch	PO BOX 804		Mulho	OR 9	3042	805 (805) 825 665	5 HNVJ	1	E
P	Edward & Heide	Fitoraft-Smith	Dear Edward & Heide	Edward & Heide Filtcraft-Smith	2400 NE Redsunset Dr #113		Gresham	OR 9	3030	665 6461	HW3	100	1
P	Ethel	Griva	Dear Ethel	Ethel Griva	4848 SE 87th Ave		Portland	OR 9	3266	221 4814	HWJ		10
A	Tammera	HI	Dear Tammera	Tammera Hil	7244 SE Los Verdes Dr		Gladstone	OR 9	3027	658 5820	HW3	7	1
A	Donald & Bea	Huber	Dear Donald & Bea	Donald & Bea Huber	4536 Holy Street		Springfield	OR 9	3478	818 (818) 485 218	8 DNJ	1	V
P	Erm	Keeling	Dear Erm	Errin Keeling	22533 SE Monroe #75		Mhvauke	OR 9	3222	651 1048	HWJ	17	1
A	Craig	Lecouris	Dear Craig	Craig Lecouris	5123 NE 112th Ave		Portland	OR 9	3220	YBH KVYF	DNJ	1	1
A	Henry & Audrey	Mischel	Dear Henry & Audrey	Henry & Audrey Mischel	c/o L.C. 7530 SE Jackson St		Miwaukie	OR 9	3222	654 6882	HNV3	1	E
A	Jeffrey	Nardin	Dear Jeffrey	Jeffrey Nardin	17911 SE Blanton St		Miwaukie	OR 9	3267	654 8012	HWJ	1	E
A	Donald and Deborah	Noien	Dear Donald and Deborah	Donald and Deborah Nolen	PO BOX 324		Beavercreek	OR 9	3004	612 0155	DNJ	1	11
A	Penny	Rose	Dear Penny	Penny Rose	8125 N Hartman St		Portiand	OR 9	3203	285 5840	HWJ	V	E
A	Robbie	Rupe	Dear Robbie	Robbie Rupe	1784 NE Providence Dr		Bend	OR 9	3702	818 (818) 285 055	S HWJ	7	1
A	Russel	Skjele	Dear Russel	Russel Skjele	7121 SW Garden Home Rd #1		Portland	OR 9	3223	245 2111	HWJ	V	V
A	Edward & Penny	Snook	Dear Edward & Penny	Edward & Penny Snook	15112 SE Linden Ln		Miwaukie	OR 9	3267	286 8454	HWJ	V	
D	Name	Enarta	Depr Names/	Nancu Snarta	10050 E Rumpido		Doutland	00 0	2214	215 8590	DNI	100	4
												0	a then send too

### Sorting

Columns may be sorted by clicking the column header. If you wish to sort by more than one column, click the first column, then hold the shift key while clicking subsequent columns. For example, if you wished to resort by Last Name, and then First Name within Last, click the Last column header, hold down the shift key on your keyboard and click the First column header. Other column combinations are done the same way.

## Grouping

Occasionally it is nice to group items. The example below is of the same query grouped by CSR. To group by any column,

drag the header into the yellow band above the headers. Notice there are three groups identified by the gray rows with captions that begin with the group name (CSR, in this case).

Sub-groups can be created by dragging additional column headers into the yellow band. For example, we could have made a sub-group for State by dragging that column header into the yellow band. Had we done that, each CSR would have a sub-group for Oregon, and another for Washington. Notice how the filtering on State remains.

				14 14 16 16 16 16 16 16 16 16 16 16 16 16 16	Take wear									
tout														
Y														
nt Print A	Kalling Export Mail													
ort Lat	bels													
	Output													
-												-		_
Entity	First 6 V	ld Last 🗠	Salutation	Client	Address	Address2	City	State	Zip	Arca	Phone	Email F	lass Nali	Renter
CSR :														
	Alleon	Ansle	Dear Alson	Allson Ansle	2952 E Harrison St.		Seattle				(206) 329 4556			
A	Douglas	Bennett	Dear Douglas	Douglas Bennett	5345 SE Byron Dr		Niwaukie	OR	97267	503	(503) 654 0659		11	10
CSR : DNJ														
A	Donaid & Dea	Huber	Dear Donald & Dea	Donald 8. Bea Huber	4506 Holly Street		Springfield	OR	93/178	618	(918) 495 2168		V	1
4	Craig	Lecourts	Dear Craig	Craig Lecouris	5123 NE 112th Ave		Portland	OR	93220		YEH KVYF		V	
4	Donald and Deborah	Nolen	Dear Donald and Deborah	Donald and Deborah Nolen	PO BOX 324		Beavercreek	OR	93004		612 0155		V	
P	Nancy	Sparta	Dear Nancy	Nancy Sparta	22059 E Burnside		Portland	OR	93214		215 8580		10	V
A	Todd	Stef	Dear Todd	Todd Stef	15117 SE Damond Ave		Niweuke	OR	93257		254 5185		1	
4	lohn	Wesson	Dear John	Tohn Wasson	120312 S New Fra Rd		Canhy	OR	93313		550 0110		V	V
P	Donaid	Zimmer	Dear Donald	Donald Zimmer	17190 SE Webster Rd		Gadstone	OR	93027		658 5515	1.1	10	V
CSR: IWU														
A	Richard & Audine	Anstead	Dear Richard & Audine	Richard & Audine Anstead	5200 SE Jennings Ave. #15		Niwaukie	OR	93267		654 8811		1	4
A	Albert	Babcock	Dear Albert	Albert Babcock	18505 SE Ashton Ln		Niwaukie	OR	93267		654 8561		V	
A	Dale & Lori	Singham	Dear Dale & Lori	Dale & Lori Brigham	2203 SW Marsuda Way +27		Noha	OR	93006		658 2592		1	
A	Tom and Susan	Brooks	Dear Tom and Susan	Tom and Susan Brooks	16698 SE Blossom Ave		Niweuke	OR	93257		655 2416		1	
4	Jamos & Terri	Burch	Dear James & Terri	James & Tent Burch	PO BOX 804		Nulno	OR	93342	805	(805) 825 6655		1	10
P	Edward & Heide	Fitcraft-Smith	Dear Edward & Heide	Edward & Heide Filtcraft-Smith	2400 NE Redsunset Dr +113		Gresham	OR	93030		665 6461		10	4
٢	Lthe	Griva	Dear Ethe	Ethel Griva	4948 SE 87th Ave		Portland	OR	93255		221 4914		1	
A	Tammera	H	Dear Tammera	Tammera Hi	7244 SELos Verdes Dr		Gadstone	OR	93327		658 5820		V	4
D	Frde	Koolon	Door Entit	Frite Koolen	20533 CE Moomo /75		Killinge Mig	00	05333		651 1048	in the second	100	12
	OR) or (STATE - WA))													(ustomb

## **Hiding Columns**

Click the cell-button in the upper left of the grid to expose a drop-down of all the columns. The cell-button has a series of horizontal lines. Uncheck the box for the columns you wish to hide. This is most useful when you plan to print a report, but only want to see certain columns, excluding those that are not meaningful to the report.

Notice that we have removed Client, Address2, and other columns to produce a more narrow output.

Dutput										
rint Print N	Aailing Export Mail									
eport Lat	Centrout.									
	ootput									 
R 🔺										
AS Entity	First 0 N	lid Last 6	Salutation	Address1	City	State	Zip	Area	Phone	
s									and the second s	
NTITY	Allson	Ansle	Dear Alson	2952 E Herrson St	Seattle				(206) 329 4556	
	Douglas	Bennett	Dear Douglas	5345 SE Byron Dr	Milvaukie	OR	97267	503	(503) 654 0659	
AST										
ALUTATION	Donald & Bea	Huber	Dear Donald & Bea	4536 Holly Street	Springfield	OR	93478	818	(818) 485 2188	
LIENT	Craig	Lecourts	Dear Crag	5123 NE 112th Ave	Portland	OR	93220		YEH KVYF	
DORESS1	Donald and Deborah	Nolen	Dear Donald and Deborah	PO BOX 324	Beavercreek	OR	93004		612 0155	
TTY	Nancy	Sparta	Dear Nancy	22059 E Burnside	Portland	OR	93214		215 8580	
TATE	Todd	Stief	Dear Todd	15117 SE Diamond Ave	Miwaukie	OR	93267		254 5185	
IP	John	Wesson	Dear John	120312 S New Era Rd	Canby	OR	93013		550 0110	
REA	Donald	Zimmer	Dear Donald	17190 SE Webster Rd	Gladstone	OR	93027		658 5515	
SR )										
MAIL	Richard & Audine	Anstead	Dear Richard & Audine	5200 SE Jennings Ave #15	Miwaukie	OR	93267		654 8811	
tass Mal	Abert	Babcock	Dear Abert	18505 SE Ashton Ln	Miwaukie	OR	93267		654 8561	
ENTER	Dale & Lori	Bingham	Dear Dale & Lott	2203 SW Marsuda Way #27	Aloha	OR	93006		658 2582	
A	Tom and Susan	Brooks	Dear Tom and Susan	16698 SE Blossom Ave	Miwaukie	OR	93267		655 2416	
A	James & Terri	Burch	Dear James & Terri	PO BOX 804	Muino	OR	93042	805	(805) 825 6655	
P	Edward & Heida	Fitoraft-Smith	Dear Edward & Heide	2400 NE Redsunset Dr #113	Gresham	OR	93030		665 6461	
P	Ethel	Griva	Dear Ethel	4848 SE 87th Ave	Portland	OR	93266		221 4814	
A	Tammera	H	Dear Tammera	7244 SE Los Verdes Dr	Gladstone	OR	93027		658 5820	
D	Eeth	resino	Dear Errin	199533 CE Moorna #75	Million Aria	00	93333		201 1049	
((STATE =	OR) or (STATE = WA))									Custon

## CUSTOM REPORTS FROM GRIDS

Many of the grids are able to produce customized reports. In this example, we'll use the grid displaying a query's output.

Once you have the query output filtered and sorted the way you want, print it by clicking the Print Report button. That opens the report generator as pictured. Notice the report, shown here, is in exactly the same format as the grid. However, the last three columns don't fit on a single page. In cases like this, try landscape, or use the Fit To Page feature.

### Fit to page

The circled button is Fit To Page. It reduces the font size just enough to fit all columns between margins. Experiment with other report generator functions to learn the power at hand.

Entity	First 4	Mid Last	A Salut	tation	Address1		City State Zip	Area Phone					
A A	Alison	A Print Pre	view	-	THE OWNER			to the local division				X	n
A	Douglas				and the second	-	-	and inter which the party			-		
CSR : DN		File Tiew	Format	Go He	ip.								
A	Donald & Bea	830			🖬 🖩 🗑 📾 🔯 100%		+ +   1 👘 🕈						
A	Craig	Margine Le		0.5 · Ten	OC - Diabt 0	E * Battom	05 * Header	0.2 * Faster 0.2 *					
A	Donald and Deborah	margins Le		up top	. us ragine u	o souone	up neadel:	02 100101. 0.2					
P	Nancy											<b>^</b>	
A	Todd												
A	John						Eine Denemale					1	
P	Donald		_				rife Kellewais					12	
CSR : HW	1												
A	Richard & Audine		AS	ENTITY	FIRST 🔺 MID	LAST 🔺	SALUTATION	ADDRESS1	CETY	STATE			
A	Abert		E CS	R :									
A	Dale & Lori		A		Allison	Ainslie	Dear Allison	2952 E Herrison St	Seattle	WA			
A	Tom and Susan		A		Douglas	Bennett	Deer Douglas	5345 SE Byron Dr	Milmaukie	OR			
A	James & Terri		E CS	R : DNJ									
P	Edward & Heide		A		Donald & Bea	Huber	Dear Donald & Bea	4536 Holly Street	Springfield	OR			
P	Ethel		A		Craig	Lecouris	Dear Craig	5123 NE 112th Ave	Portland	OR			
A	Tammera		A		Donald and Deborah	Nolen	Dear Donald and Deborah	PO BOX 324	Beøvercreek	OR			
0	Errin		P	1	Nancy	Sparta	Deer Nancy	22059 E Burnside	Portland	OR			1
I ((STATE)	= OR) or (STATE = WA))		A		Todd	Stief	Dear Todd	15117 SE Diamond Ave	Milmaukie	OR			Custon
2 of 30	AS - Account S		A		John	Wesson	Dear John	120312 S New Era Rd	Canby	OR			
			P		Donald	Zimmer	Dear Donald	17190 SE Webster Rd	Gladstone	OR			
			ECS	R : HWO	1			1					
										-			

ile ⊻iew	Format Go	Help										_
990	■( 🖻 )=		100%	▼ ★ ★ 1	→ → 図							
Aargins Le	ft: 0.5 "	Top: 0.5 " Righ	t: 0.5	Bottom: 0.5 " He	eader: 0.2 " Footer:	0.2 *						
		Top: 0.5 High										
				Fire R	enewals							
	AS ENTER	FIRST + I	ID LAST	- SALUTATION	ADORESS1	CITY	STATE	ZIP	AREA	PHONE		
	CSR :											
	A	Alison	Ainslie	Dear Alison	2952 E Harrison St	Seattle	WA	98112	206	(206) 329 4556		
	A	Douglas	Bennett	Dear Douglas	5345 SE Byron Dr	Milwaukie	OR	97267	503	(503) 654 0659		
	E CSR : DNJ											
	A	Donald & Bea	Huber	Dear Donald & Bea	4536 Holly Street	Springfield	OR	93478	818	(818) 465 2188	÷ .	
	A	Craig	Lecouris	Dear Craig	5123 NE 112th Ave	Portland	OR	93220		YBH KVYF		
	A	Donald and Deborah	Nolen	Dear Donald and Deborah	PO BOX 324	Beavergreek	OR	93004		612 0155	4 <b>I</b>	
	P	Nancy	Sparta	Dear Nancy	22059 E Burnside	Portland	OR	93214		215 8580	3 <b>-</b>	
	A	Todd	Stief	Dear Todd	15117 SE Diamond Ave	Milwaukie	OR	93267		254 5185		
	A	John	Wesson	Dear John	120312 5 New Era Rd	Canby	OR	93013		550 0110		
	P	Donald	Zimmer	Dear Donald	17190 SE Webster Rd	Gladstone	OR	93027		658 5515		
	E CSR : HWJ										. I.	
	A	Richard & Audine	Anstead	Dear Richard & Audine	5200 SE Jennings Ave #15	Milwaukie	OR	93267		654 8811		
	A	Abert	Babcock	Dear Albert	18505 SE Ashton Ln	Milwaukie	OR	93267		654 8561		
	1 0	Dala S.Lori	Rindows	Dear Dala & Lori	2202 SW Marouda Miau #27	Alaha	00	02006		650 3503	3 <b>I</b>	

### Saving a report

You may wish to save certain query reports so they can be repeated at a different time. Once the report is configured the way you wish, click File>Save. You will be asked to name the file to which the report will be saved. Remember that file name, and where you saved it. **IMPORTANT**: This is how you save the report, not the query that created the report. If you wish to recreate this report at a later time using data that will be current at that time, you must save the query. Instructions for saving the query are in the Query Section, later in this manual.

### Load a saved report

The report Print Preview must be open before you can load a previously saved report. Simply perform any query and click the report button. Once the Print Preview is open, click File>Load, and select the file into which the report was saved.

The retrieved report will contain all the information, exactly the way it was originally generated. To force the report to use the most current data, click File>Rebuild. In some cases you may need to click File>Unload to remove information left over from the previous report. Experiment a little. You can't hurt anything.

## STANDARD REPORTS

Standard Reports fall into two categories: Administrator and CSR. However, the administrative settings determine who can use which report.



The Admin menu contains a few reports that are intended for the principal agent, or office manager. Any user who has not been granted administrative privileges will not be able to print these reports. Instead, they are given a *Permission Denied* message.

Most items on the Reports Menu are usually available to all users. However, the Advanced reports are frequently reserved for administrative users. Again, this depends on how privileges were granted while users were created in the Admin program.



## DATA BACKUP

ABS-3 uses an extremely advanced database named Firebird SQL Server. Even so, you MUST backup your data. Period.

If you don't backup your data, you will eventually lose it. Maybe not for a long time. Maybe tomorrow. Bad things happen that are out of your control, no matter how good the technology is. What kind of bad things? Here are just a few:

- Hardware mechanical failure. Disk drives crash. Fans stop working causing heat induced failures.
- Electronic failure. Mother boards and other circuits fail.
- Virus and other malicious attacks can ruin your entire system.
- Burglars can take your computers.
- Disgruntled employees can sabotage a system.
- Lightning can hit the power feeding your office.

- Fire
- Flood

You're an insurance professional and know about accidental loss. Protect yourself.

You can perform backups of your database manually or you can automate the process using Windows Task Scheduler. If you wish to perform unattended backups, Windows Scheduler allows you to determine what time, and how often backups are performed. However, the scheduler must tell our backup program where the backup file is to be placed. We'll show you how a little later. First you need a little more information, and must know how to do manual backups. At least one manual backup must be done before automated backups will work properly.

Backups can be done while ABS is being used. When the backup is first started, a snapshot of the data is taken at that moment. That snapshot contains all the data that has been entered up to that point in time. If a user happens to be in the middle of entering (or editing) data, those changes will not be part of the backup because their transaction was not completed prior to the snapshot. In other words, you can backup your data any time you wish without affecting the productivity of your staff. Backups are not prevented even if someone forgets to close the program.

### **3rd Party Backup Systems**

CAUTION. If you are using a 3rd party off site backup system, such as Carbonite, Mosy, or SOS, DO NOT simply copy the database file or folder. Instead, copy ABS3BAK.ZIP resulting from the ABS Backup program. In other words, use the ABS backup program first. That creates the above named backup file. Allow plenty of time for the backup to complete before scheduling the off site backup.

## MANUAL BACKUP

Backups are not done from within the main program. They must be run from the Windows Start menu. The procedure is the equivalent of this:

Click Start > All Programs > ABS V3 > Data Backup.

Select the Backup Destination. The backup program will remember your selection, and default to that destination the next time you backup. If you always backup to the same location, you'll only need to do this step once. See Note 1, below.

If you wish to backup Document Manager documents, be sure to check the box labeled *Include Document Manager*. This only applies to those who have purchased the Document Manager option.

Notification of the success or failure of the backup will be sent to the *Person to notify*. The notice will be sent via an Inter-Office message (Buck slip). This eliminates the popup messages created by earlier



backup versions. This permits one person to be responsible for doing the backups, and another to be automatically notified. For example, an office manager who has an early shift can be notified that a late shift employee performed a successful backup (or the backup failed).

A new feature released with version 3.5.15.307 is **Generational Backups**. It is the ability to preserve more than one backup generation (up to a maximum of 30 backups). If you wish to preserve multiple backups, enter the number to keep. All of those backups will be saved in the destination you selected above, but will be given a unique name that indicates the generation. When deciding how many to save, make sure you have enough drive space to accommodate the sum of all backups.

Old backup files are always replaced with the most current generation. For example, if you elected to keep five backups, after the fifth one (ABS3BAK5.ZIP) the first in the series will be replaced (*e.g.* ABS3BACK1.ZIP will be replaced).

Once your selections have been made, clicking the Start button will begin the backup process. Backup activities will be displayed in the upper window.

**Note 1:** If you have access to cloud storage in your Windows File Manager, such as Dropbox<sup>®</sup>, you can often specify that destination as your backup location. This is a convenient way to secure your backups through off-site storage. **Important**: you must assure the security of the destination you select.

Note 2: When backing up to a CD or DVD drive, make sure it is formatted in advance.

**Note 3**: Of removable media, USB memory sticks are the fastest, smallest, and are becoming very affordable. They go by names such as *Flash Drive, Jump Drive, Memory Stick*, and others.

**Note 4**: Even though you can have the backup program create generational backups, we recommend rotating through several backup media. For example, one for Monday, another for Tuesday, and so on through the entire week. This helps assure your ability to restore, even if one backup is bad.

## AUTOMATIC / SCHEDULED BACKUP

Automatic, unattended backing up helps assure your continuous operation, even in the face of disaster. However, to fix Windows vulnerabilities Microsoft increased the security Windows Task Scheduler in Windows 8, 8.1 and 10. Because of those changes, the ABS Manual Backups no longer works as a scheduled application. Now there is a separate Console Application that is unaffected by the new security measures. It's name is *ABS\_DataBackup\_Console.exe*. When a person runs the Console Application it displays a Command Window (black background with light text). When it is run unattended, normally by Windows Task Scheduler, nothing is visible. For that reason the Console backup program creates a log file, and sends an Intra-Office Message (buck slip) to the user selected during the most recent manual backup.

Automated backups must be run on the host computer. Scheduling requires an advanced user or their technical support personnel. For technically minded individuals setup is easy. For others it may require technical skills beyond those available in a typical insurance agency.

Windows Task Scheduler is not an ABS product, however we will help with the initial setup as long as you are able to follow. If we find that you cannot follow our instructions, we will request that you get local technical support. If you don't understand the procedure or have difficulty with Windows Task Scheduler, you will need a local IT Professional. Under no circumstances will we continue to maintain Windows Task Scheduler for you. More importantly, it is your responsibility to assure that you are consistently getting successful backups.

- **IMPORTANT**: The backup program puts the .ZIP file in the ABS3 folder then copies it to the destination folder. Third party systems should use the .ZIP file in the ABS3 folder.
- CAUTION. If you are using a 3<sup>rd</sup> party off site backup system, such as Carbonite, or Mosy, DO NOT just copy the Firebird database file or the ABS3 folder. Instead, schedule the 3<sup>rd</sup> party system to run after the ABS backup has finished, and tell it to backup the .ZIP file in the ABS3 folder. The backup file name is ABS3BAK.ZIP, or ABS3BAKX.ZIP (where X is the generation number).

#### How to schedule A Backup via the ABS Console Backup System.

**Important**: You must do at least one Manual Backup before automated backups will work. Follow the instructions in the previous section of this manual titled Manual Backup. Doing a manual backup establishes the *rules* that will be followed by the ABS Console Backup program. If you don't do a manual backup first, the Console Backup won't work. The rules established by the Manual Backup are:

- The backup file destination (where you want the archive to be stored).
- Whether the Document Manager files should also be backed up or not.
- Who is notified when the backup is done, or if it failed.
- How many backups should be kept before being overwritten.

#### Setting up Windows Task Scheduler

For detailed information, try these web sites:

#### Windows 7

http://windows.microsoft.com/en-US/windows7/schedule-a-task

#### Windows 8, 8.1 & 10

- Click the Windows icon at the far left of the Task Bar to show the Charms, or Tiles.
- Click the Search Button at the top right *p*
- In the search field (top right) type Schedule Task. Several choices will be displayed below the search field. Click the one that says Schedule Task. That should open the Windows Task Scheduler.
- Create a Basic Task under Actions. That will open the Create Basic Task Wizard. It is a good wizard that makes things pretty obvious. The following are a few hints:
  - Give the task a name of your choice, *i.e. ABS Backup*. Remember, you can create several tasks if you wish. If you do, give each one a different but meaningful name. Enter a description to help you, or whoever follows you in the future.
  - To select which program to start, click the Browse button. Find the ABS3 folder and select the file named *ABS\_DataBackup\_Console* (it may display as *ABS\_DataBackup\_Console.exe* depending on how your Windows is setup). When you do that, it will look something like: *C:\ABS3\ABS\_DataBackup\_Console.exe*
  - Check the box to open the properties dialog.
  - When the Properties Dialog opens, click the button to let the program **Run whether user is logged on or not**.

You can change these settings later by re-opening the Wizard.

### **Data Restore**

While it is possible to automate Data Backup, restoring from a backup must be done manually. Also, when restoring, ABS Agency Builder must not be in use. The restore procedure is as follows.

- 1. Make sure everyone has closed ABS Agency Builder. The database cannot be restored if it is busy.
- 2. Insert the media on which the backup was made (Flash Drive, DVD, etc).
- From the Windows Start menu, click Start > All Programs > ABS-V3 > Data Restore. That will open the Restore window. In some cases, you will be asked



to select the location of the Backup you are trying to restore. Once that has been done, all files that have been backed up will be displayed in the top window.

- 4. Select the file you wish to restore by clicking on it with your mouse. If you don't select any files, the restore program will assume you wish to restore all files. If you wish to select only some files, but not all, do the following:
  - Single file: Click the file.
  - Consecutive Files:
    - 1. Click the top-most file.
    - 2. Depress the Shift Key.
    - 3. Click the lowest file.
  - Non-Consecutive Files: Depress the Ctrl Key while clicking the desired files.
- 5. Click the Begin button. Monitor the progress in the lower window. When the process is finished, it will tell you

how many files were restored. Wait for that message.

## **ABS-CLOUD OPTION**

This covers things related to using ABS Agency Builder in the cloud. In the cloud, using the software will be identical to using it in your office with a few minor exceptions, covered in this section.

- 1. **Signing up** (if you haven't already)
  - a) There are currently no changes to ABS pricing for current or new users.
  - b) There are a few minor wording changes in the ABS License Agreement. They accommodate using ABS in the cloud. Nothing is changed in the License Agreement with regard to what you can or cannot do with ABS other than what is mentioned in Item 2c, below.
  - c) The only official cloud hosting company for ABS Agency Builder is Cornelius Concepts, LLC. You must establish a Cloud Account with them. They will setup your account and assign secure User Names and Passwords. If you are an existing ABS user, they will also install ABS Agency Builder and your database in the cloud. Start by visiting <a href="https://windowsapphosting.com/abs-signup">https://windowsapphosting.com/abs-signup</a>

#### 2. Security Concerns.

ABS Agency Builder accesses your customer data only after you enter your ABS User ID, and Password. Before you get to that point, you must enter a different User Name, and Password to get into your Cloud Account. Assuming you follow good security practices, your data in the cloud should be at least as secure as most office-based installations. Using secure passwords helps. They should have at least eight characters of upper and lower case letters, numbers, and symbols. For example: My\$3cur3P@\$\$w0rd.

#### a) Your Local Area Network (LAN).

Your Local Area Network (LAN) should be secure. Doing that is your responsibility. We do not service your hardware, operating system, or your network. If you don't know if your network is secure, consult your local IT Professional.

#### b) ABS Cloud Connection Setup (Windows only).

ABS Cloud Connection Setup can be downloaded from the ABS website (<u>http://agencybusys.com/cloud/</u>). You must enter the User Name supplied by Cornelius Concepts, LLC. and the Agency Name exactly as used to register your agency with Agency Business Systems, Inc.

#### c) Public Computers

In the illustration to the right, notice the *Temporary Public Setup* checkbox near the bottom. Check that box if using ABS Cloud on a public computer such as in a hotel, Internet Cafe, or other location where computers are shared by strangers.

We can't guarantee the security of those locations, but doing this makes it far less likely that someone will be able to access your Cloud Account.

NOTE: when Cornelius Concepts, LLC creates your account, they give you a very secure password. It is up to you to keep it secure.

#### 3. Connecting

When you download and run the ABS Cloud Connection Setup on your private computer, it will install a shortcut on your desktop

These creder Name exactly User Name:	ntials are assigned by Cornelius Concepts, LLC. Enter User y as provided. Enter password when connecting.
Password:	Enter password when connecting to the cloud, not here.
The Agency Agency Nam	Name must match your ABS Agency Builder license. e:
Temporar	y Public Setup for a Computer not in your office.
Info	
	Windows Security
Enter your These credent	Windows Security credentials ials will be used to connect to agencybusys.online
Enter your	Windows Security credentials ials will be used to connect to agencybusys.online Your.User.Name
	Windows Security         credentials         ials will be used to connect to agencybusys.online         Your.User.Name         Password
Enter your These credent	Windows Security         credentials         iala will be used to connect to agencybusys.online         Your.User.Name         Password         Use another account
Enter your These credent	Windows Security         credentials         ials will be used to connect to agencybusys.online         Your.User.Name         Password         Use another account         Connect a smart card

Opening a public session, or clicking the desktop short cut starts the connection process.

- Enter the credentials provided by Cornelius Concepts, LLC. The User Name you entered when doing the connection setup will be entered for you (e.g. *Your.User.Name*).
- If you check **Remember my credentials** you won't have to enter your User Name in the future. If you are concerned about security, don't check that box, and **NEVER CHECK IT ON A PUBLIC COMPUTER.**

#### 4. ABS Cloud vs running locally.

- a) The differences are minor. Cornelius Concepts, LLC has done a great job of explaining them, so please visit <u>https://windowsapphosting.com/</u> DON'T skip this.
- b) Two desktops yours and the cloud's

When you open ABS in the Cloud, you will be looking at a Windows Desktop on our cloud server. That is done using Microsoft's Remote Desktop Protocol (RDP) on your local computer communicating with Remote Desktop Service (RDS) in the cloud<sup>1</sup>. When it first opens, the remote desktop, on the cloud server is maximized. While maximized, everything you do (keystrokes, mouse clicks, etc.) will be done on the

remote computer. The simplest way to switch to your local desktop and back is to click **Ctrl + ALT + Break**. Most keyboards have a **Break** key similar to the illustration to the right.



If you can't find the **Break** key, or your keyboard doesn't have one, hover your

mouse at the very top of the remote desktop to produce the drop-down *connection bar* like the one below. The Windows minimize, maximize, and close (X) icons control the remote desktop's window state and connection. Clicking either the *Minimize* or *Normal/Maximize* icons will allow you to access your local desktop. **IMPORTANT**: read *Signing-Out* before using the X icon.



- c) Differences between ABS Cloud, and a local installation.
  - Word Processor in the cloud will always be the *ABS Word Processor*. You can still use your local word processor, but it will not be integrated with ABS.
  - **Email** program in the cloud will always be the *ABS eMail Sender*. You can still use your local email program, but it will not be as tightly integrated with ABS.
  - **Calendar** in the cloud will always be the *ABS Calendar*. You can still use your local calendar, but it will not be integrated with ABS.
  - **ABS Web Browser** will always be the *ABS Browser* in the cloud. You can still use your local web browser, but it will not be integrated with ABS. NOTE: the ABS Browser is based on Microsoft's *Internet Explorer*. And is designed work on any carrier's web site that don't require the use of something else.
  - **ABS Document Manager** only allows importing documents. It will not operate your local scanner so you must scan to a local file, and then import the document. Note, even though the ABS software is running in the cloud, it is simple to import directly from the hard drive on your office computer.

#### 5. Accessing ABS in the Cloud

- a) Instructions and Shortcut at <u>http://agencybusys.com/cloud/</u>. This contains essential information. Don't skip.
- b) Signing in requires a Cloud Account with Cornelius Concepts, LLC., as mentioned in Item 1, above. Additionally:
  - Signing in and user instructions can be found at the link below. That web page includes sign-in instructions aimed largely at Windows computers. For non-Windows devices such as Mac and Linux computers, as well as Android and other devices, visit the link in Item 3a, above. Yes, you can use non-

Windows computers with ABS-Cloud. http://agencybusys.com/ABS\_Cloud\_Instructions.pdf

- Each user's Cloud Account permits one active remote session at a time. For example, if an employee changes workstations, they must sign out of the current session before they can sign-in at another location. Failure to do that triggers a request to forcibly end the first session. That also means employees can only share a Cloud Accounts if they never try to sign-in at the same time. See Signing-Out, below.
- You can sign-in to your Cloud Account from anywhere in the world as long as you have an unrestricted connection to the Internet. Some countries restrict Internet access.
- You can use any device that can connect to the Internet and that supports an RDP connection. For
  example, ABS is a Windows program running in the cloud on a Windows server. But, you don't need a
  Windows computer to access it. Let's say you are traveling, and only have a tablet with you (Android,
  Chrome, or iPad). As long as it has an RDP app installed, you can access ABS Cloud Use the instructions
  in the link immediately above...anywhere, anytime, any
  device.
- c) Signing out (normal method)

Closing ABS Agency Builder asks if you want to sign out of your online session. If you're done, click Yes.

EXIT CLOUE	D CONFIRMATION	$\times$
?	Do you wish to sign out of your online session? If Yes, all applications will be closed and unsaved work will be lost. If No, please remember to sign out by right-clicking the Windows Start button to sign out.	
	<u>Y</u> es <u>N</u> o	
Sassio	SESSION SIGN OUT	×

There is also an icon on the remote desktop titled, *ABS Cloud Session Close*. It, too, asks if you want to sign out. If you're done, click Yes.



If you answer Yes to either of these, your online cloud session will be closed, and so will all open applications. Unsaved work will be lost.

- If you are finished for the day you should save your work and use either of these two methods to close the session click Yes.
- If you plan to continue working later, either at the office or home (or elsewhere), then click NO, and use the alternate sign out method. *The Alternative Method is strongly discouraged.*
- d) Signing-Out (Alternate Method)

CAUTION – NOT RECOMMENDED: use this method only if you <u>know for sure</u> you will resume the session later the same day and sign out normally. This method does not end your session. It just ends your computer's connection to the cloud leaving your remote session still active.

WARNING: the cloud server is occasionally taken off-line at night, during non-work hours. That allows us to do Windows, anti-virus, and security updates. If your session is still active at that time, it will be forcibly disconnected and unsaved work will be lost. You have been warned.

• If you use this alternate procedure, save your work. It is not necessary to close ABS Agency Builder if you are in the middle of a task and need to resume where you left off later the same day. Just make certain to sign back in, finish your work, and sign-out normally.



Right Click the Windows Start button for the remote desktop. Then
 select Shut down or sign out + Disconnect. Another way is to click the (X) in the connection bar

## ACCOUNT SCREEN: CLIENT INFO CENTER

The splitter (just above the row of tabs in the vertical center of the screen) lets you display more rows in the grids at the bottom. You can also widen this screen by dragging the right side of the screen. However, that only increases the visible grid columns. It does not enlarge any other part.



### **Members Tab**

This grid is live. You can do data entry directly into this grid. However, you can also click the eye-glasses (in the upper left corner of the grid) to open a window with all the member information.

Note: all columns can be relocated by dragging to the location of your choice. The width of each column can also be adjusted by dragging the right side of the column header.

#### Policy Summary Members Comments Claim History User Defined Pending Tasks Prem. Finance Email History de' Last Name First Name DOB Salutation Relationship Dr. License Age Able Cindy 2/26/1957 58 Socuse Jahsman Patti 1/1/1962 53 Fire-Only Clier Laduca Kaylee 5/8/1991 24 Daughter 123456789ABC Ridgway Eric 1/12/196 54 H 4 + H + - / < \$2,672,51 nnual Premium (active policies only):

### Comments

This tab is the location for descriptive comments. It is NOT for documenting conversations, service work, or other activities you do for the client. Those should be entered into the Account Activity Log.

## Claims History

Enter claims history here. It will accept claim history from prior carriers. Depending on the email reader you use, it may be possible to import email directly. If not, all fields may be manually edited. Policy Summary Members Comments Claim History User Defined Pending Tasks Prem. Finance Email History Not for customer service activities. Use the Account Activity Log for that.

CAUTION: DO NOT CALL DEFORE 3:00 PM. Frank works graveyard shift, and is a day sleeper

Honk before entering their yard. Their dog doesn't bark, but he is trained guard dog.

			Loss Type	Enline to unber	Less Date
			HomeProperty 4	923692557	9/13/2008
			Claim Namlan		Adjuster
			20598312		Newman Smith
			Prob. Lots: Amount	Insurance Carri	-
			2000	Automobile Iro	arance Company Of Hartford
			Loss Description		
	and Momhare	anneate Claim History Hear Defined			
Policy Num 1	Print	te Edit Description via button above	live editing is in effect, on the orid. Save chang	Al changes are les from there.	shown

### **User Defined**

This tab contains fields can be used for anything not already handled by ABS. There are check boxes for recording things that can be answered with a Yes or No. There are also text fields that permit free-form data entry.

### **Pending Task List**

This is where you view pending tasks, or Things-To-Do. If a reminder time (Due Time) was entered, a pop up a reminder will also occur. This tab is for your convenience, and is limited to the client being viewed. For a complete task list, click the icon in the toolbar at the top of the screen.

### **Email History**

As the name on the tab implies, this is where you keep record of email communication with your customer. Depending on your email software, you may be able to import email directly into this grid. If your email client is not compatible, you cannot manually enter the information.

### **Premium Finance**

This feature is located on the bottom of the Account Screen. The Premium Finance tab lets you keep information about premium finance accounts (left side) and which policies are financed by that account (right side). You can enter multiple premium finance accounts for a single client. For example, you might have a household where Mom and Dad have one account to finance their auto and homeowner premiums, and Junior has a separate premium finance account for his auto premium.

Client Sel	actor:	H	ow far into the future do	you want to look?		Default Viewing:	
This C	ient OAl I	Clients	Due Today		~	Homer Jones	O Entre Office
one	Due Date	Due Time	Action Required	Description			Producer
			<no tas<="" td=""><td>sks to display&gt;</td><td></td><td></td><td></td></no>	sks to display>			
	Conception of Conception						
-	Account# = 1	510)					
4 4 6	H - 1 4	c					

Date	MAIL_FROM	MAIL_TO	Subject	
Tue, 13 Aug 2013 23:2	9:2 "Paul A. Meier" <p< td=""><td>meier@bmi.net&gt;@agenc</td><td>ybus Hello</td><td></td></p<>	meier@bmi.net>@agenc	ybus Hello	
Tue, 15 Aug 2015 25.2	9.2 Four M. Meler Sp	unelen@unit.net>@agend	yous) Hello	

	^		
Policy Summary Members Comme	ents Claim History User De	efined Pending Tasks Frem. Finance Email Histo	rγ
Premium Finance Account		Policies Financed	
	Σ	H  4  F  H  + - 2	
Fin. Cpny:	Y Payment:	Type Pol. Num. Premis Insurance Company	I
Acont. No:	Pay Mode:	-	
Ann. Prem:	No of Pmts	<no data="" display="" to=""></no>	
Down Pmt:	Due Day:	<b>v</b>	
		4	>
			-

Premium Finance is common with business accounts. Commercial premiums can become significant. It is common for there to be a down payment followed by periodic payments. In some cases, with larger businesses, a business account can actually have multiple Premium Finance accounts, with multiple finance companies. For example, they may finance their property policy, and have a separate account to finance scheduled vehicle liability. This tab is flexible enough to handle any of those situations.

### **Entity Name**

This field is intended for commercial customer's Entity Name. Do not use it for anything else. Entity name is usually the name of a corporation, and is often different than the Doing Business As name (DBA). For example, Don Smith (an individual) owns Smith & Sons Incorporated. That corporation owns Quality Roofing Company, and another company named Acme Gutters & Downspouts. It is even possible for one of the companies to have a different First Named Insured.

With small businesses, such as sole proprietors, this situation us usually fairly straight forward. However it can become more complicated. In order for your insurance documents, such as ACORD forms, you must enter the information properly, and understand the relationship.

The correct way to refer to these businesses would be:

Smith & Sons, Incorporated DBA Quality Roofing Company, or Smith & Sons Incorporated Doing Business As Acme Gutters & Downspouts.

In the above example, Don Smith, Incorporated is the Entity Name, while Quality Roofing Company is the DBA Name.

DBA names should be entered on the commercial, or workers comp screen -- never in the Entity Name field.

Another case using the above example could result four possible names to be printed on an ACORD form.

- 1. Don Smith
- 2. Smith & Sons Incorporated
- 3. Quality Roofing Company
- 4. Susan Fillmore (a managing partner who is first named insured for Quality Roofing Company).

It is considered incorrect (or at least poor practice) to enter the Entity Name without also entering the First and Last names. Use the first and last name fields to indicate the business owner, or your primary contact. Don't be lazy.

## POLICY SCREENS

While each policy screen is unique because of the lines of business they serve, they all have the same general layout.

**The top** of the screen displays fields that are common to all policies. Fields for policy status, policy number, dates (effective, renewal, etc), carrier name, etc.

**The bottom** of the screen will always contain policy coverage limits. In addition, the bottom will contain other information that is unique to the policy type, or that have an impact on premium. See the more detailed samples by clicking on the links below.

The Center, in between, is where Risk Information is located. For example, vehicles for an auto policy, dwelling for a fire policy, etc.

#### Exceptions

Policies for all Lines Of Business will adhere to the above layout, but may have slight exceptions due to differences in the policy type. For example, some cover a single primary risk (i.e. Homeowners, Flood, etc.), while others cover multiple risks (i.e. Auto, Commercial, etc).

So, we'll discuss the Fire Screen first because it is a good example of the single risk policy type. Then, we'll discuss the Auto Screen because it is a simple example of a multiple risk policy type. The Commercial Screen is perhaps the most complicated of multiple risk policy types, but the principles that apply to an auto policy also apply to a commercial.

Single vs. Multiple Risk explained



It should be fairly clear from this illustration, that an auto policy can cover several vehicles -the risks. That makes it a multi-risk policy. Since the average homeowner, or dwelling, policy

only covers a single dwelling, it is a single risk policy, for the sake of this discussion. Granted, there are some fire policies that permit a vacation home to be covered by the primary policy, but they are usually endorsements.

The Fire Policy Screen is a good example of the general layout of a Single Risk policy screen.

The Auto Policy Screen is a good example of the general layout of a Multi-Risk policy screen.

## **Fire Policy Screen**

For the sake of this document, we will cover the Fire Policy screen as an example of a single risk screen.

- 1. The little "House" icon opens a very useful window where you can record all sorts of structure information. It is the kind of stuff needed for replacement cost estimating. The information entered is always linked to the insured risk (the dwelling).
- 2. Fields in this illustration contain policy information. Yellow fields have special

3	0			Fi	re					<b>-</b> ×
Status Poli	icy Num	licies Effective	Date Time	9	Renewal Date	Cancel Da	ate Incep	tion Date	Bus Type	Produce
Active - 926	398771	9/1/201	<ul> <li>✓ 12:0</li> </ul>	0 AM 🖨	9/1/2015	<b>~</b>	~ <mark>9/1/2</mark>	006 🗸	Rene -	×
Carrier		Broker	(if brokered)	)	Policy N	ame	Premium	Deduct.	Term	Share/V
Safeco Ins Co C	Of Illinois	•		0	<ul> <li>Homeov</li> </ul>	vner Protec v	\$997.76	2500 🗸	12 ~	~
Named Insured,	or Vesting Na	me as required	by lender:	2						
Location Addr:	City:		St: Zip		Lienhold	ter Pavs	Premium		LoanN	umber
22318 San Vice	nte Rd Rame	ona	CA 920	65	Bank C	of America N	F&SA   Its S	Succe 🔻	23456	7
Pol. Type:	Terr Yr	Built: Propert	Managemen	t Co	2nd Lie	nholder			LoanN	umber
HOMEOWNER	V AB	2001		~				- /		
Form:	Pick Clacy	Prot	Cl Conctru	ction		Cradit Score				
BROAD	v Preferred	× 1	v Joisted	Masonry	-	755		Tenant Oc	cunied	
union lo				indeenin j				i chanc o c	copies	
										-
Deline Limite	the state of the								Holdore	-ees
Policy Limits	ptional Cov	Endorsements	Sched Pers	Prop   Flo	ater Protecti	ve Devices	User Fields	Certificate	noiuers	
Policy Limits 0	ptional Cov	Endorsements	Sched Pers	\$500	ater   Protecti	ve Devices	User Fields Building Repl	acemnt:		
Policy Limits O Dwelling: Sep. Struct:	2ptional Cov 766000 383000	Endorsements	Sched Pers Guns: Jewlr. Furs:	\$500 \$2,500	ater Protect	ve Devices	User Fields Building Repl Contents Rep	acemnt:		
Policy Limits 0 Dwelling: Sep. Struct: Personal Prop:	2ptional Cov 766000 383000 153200	Endorsements	Sched Pers Guns: Jewlr. Furs: Securities:	Prop Flo \$500 \$2,500 \$5,000	Protecti	ve Devices	User Fields Building Repl Contents Rep Discounts: Non-Smok	acemnt:		
Policy Limits 0 Dwelling: Sep. Struct: Personal Prop:	2ptional Cov 766000 383000 153200 689400	Endorsements	Sched Pers Guns: Jewlr. Furs: Securities: Silverware:	Prop Flo \$500 \$2,500 \$5,000 \$2,000	Protecti	ve Devices	User Fields Building Repl Contents Rep Discounts: Non-Smok Auto-Home	acemnt: acemnt: blacmnt: er: er: er:		
Policy Limits Dwelling: Sep. Struct: Personal Prop: Loss of Use:	2ptional Cov 766000 383000 153200 689400 \$1,000	Endorsements	Sched Pers Guns: Jewlr. Furs: Securities: Silverware:	Prop Flo \$500 \$2,500 \$5,000 \$2,000 300000	Protecti	ve Devices	User Fields Building Repl Contents Rep Discounts: Non-Smok Auto-Home Senior :	acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt: acemnt		
Policy Limits Dwelling: Sep. Struct: Personal Prop: Loss of Use: Cash Money:	2ptional Cov 7 766000 383000 153200 689400 \$1,000	Endorsements	Sched Pers Guns: Jewlr. Furs: Securities: Silverware: Liability: Medical Exp	Prop Flo \$500 \$2,500 \$5,000 \$2,000 300000	Protecti	ve Devices	User Fields Building Repl Contents Rep Discounts: Non-Smok Auto-Home Senior :	acemnt: alacmnt: er: er:		

meaning. If you double-click a yellow field, the program automatically performs a task associated with that field. Date fields are commonly yellow because they frequently change. In this case, double-clicking the Inception data is normally done when the policy is first written. Doing that will insert today's date, and will insert Effective and Renewal dates based on the term of the policy (12 months is the fire policy default). Other yellow fields do different kinds of automation aimed at simplifying, and speeding up your data entry. For example, double-clicking the Location Address will insert the address from the Account Screen.

Between the 2 and 3 is the Risk section. This information describes the property, and things certificate holders need to know about it. For example, the Vesting Name, and/or lender information. Because the Vesting Name field is yellow, double-clicking will enter the name information from the Account Screen. Usually, this is not enough. Most lenders have specific requirements about how this name is entered. Consult the lender or Title Insurance office for details.

- 3. Just above the row of tabs is a Slider Bar. This is handy when the home owner has a lot of scheduled personal property. You can use you mouse to drag this up, thus expanding all areas below the tabs.
- 4. To the right of many fields there are clickable icons. If you have set up carrier and policy information properly, clicking the top one will calculate, and enter, all the other coverage/limits that depend on Dwelling Coverage. Naturally, you must enter the Dwelling amount first. You must have entered the carrier and policy name above, in the policy section (see 2, above).

## Auto Policy Screen

Since most auto policies can cover several vehicles, we'll use it to demonstrate a Multi-Risk policy.

Each auto screen can display an endless number of policies. Each policy can display more vehicles than any personal lines policy will ever cover. There is a wealth of information available in a single window. The red numbers denote various important sections of the screen. They are explained below. The more completely you fill in this information, the less you'll have to do when creating ACORD forms, Invoices, Premium Receipts, and other documents such as reminder or cancellation letters.
- This is the Policy Navigator, It lets you navigate, add policies, delete policies, save your work, and refresh the policy with data that may have been recently entered by other users. Hovering over each button triggers a "tool tip" that explains what it will do.
- 2. This Navigator lets you add or remove vehicles to the selected policy.
- 3. This is the top of the Risk Section. Notice there are two tabs. Each one displays the year, make and model. Policy data is above those tabs. Risk info is below, Coverage and other miscellaneous information is at the bottom. Technically, there is no limit to the number of vehicles.



- 4. Yellow fields have special meaning. If you double-click a yellow field, the program automatically performs a task associated with that field. Date fields are commonly yellow because they frequently change. In this case, double-clicking the Inception data is normally done when the policy is first written. Doing that will insert today's date, and will insert Effective and Renewal dates based on the term of the policy (6 months is the default). Other yellow fields do different kinds of automation aimed at simplifying, and speeding up your data entry. For example, double-clicking the Garage Address will insert the address entered on the Account Screen.
- 5. This panel describes the vehicle, including its dates, status, premium and other common underwriting information. This is also where vehicle related things go, such as lienholder, and garage address. Notice the garage address field is yellow.
- 6. Driver information is an important part of underwriting the risk. If you have entered family members at the bottom of the Account screen, they will be listed in the Rated Driver drop-down. Depending on how complete your Member information is, selecting a member will also enter their date of birth, and age. In some cases, it will even estimate the driving experience by assuming they started driving at age 16.
- 7. The lower portion of policy screens always contains policy coverage and limits. In most cases it has tabs for other related information such as endorsements, and certificate holders. A unique feature of the Auto Screen is the ability to manually enter limits, or to quickly enter Default Coverages. Default Coverages can be customized to suit your agency, and the clientele to whom you cater.

#### **Default Policy Limits**

The purpose of Default Policy Limits is to make data entry fast, easy to do, and eliminate data entry errors. Using Default Policy Limits you can assign up to 11 coverages in a single step. Most agencies have only a few *standard* coverages they use over and over. Setting them up as defaults is a huge time saver, and brings consistency to your operation.

Click Auto > Edit > Default Limits to create your own defaults.

<u>.</u>										
Auto	File	Edit	Admin	View	Marketing	Rep	orts Too	ols & Settings	Window	Help
	Add N Add n Undel Delete Save C	lew Pol ew car ete Pol this ve Change	licy to this po icy chicle from	olicy m this p	olicy	te	Saved	Refresh	Search	Browse Search
	Print	-								Auto
	Edit					•	Find Po	olicy	Ctrl+	Alt+F4
	Tools Apply	Defaul	lt Limits			•	Auto M Endors	lakes/Models ement List		
	Close						Default	Limits		

This menu item opens a List Editor where you can create default limits that can be assigned to the policy in an instant.

A couple of lines below Edit is another menu item that lets you apply your default limits. Ironically, it takes longer to describe the process than to do it.

This is where you create your default coverages. Create as many as you wish. Give them meaningful names so you can easily select the coverage profile you wish to use for the client and policy you are writing.

Search:												
NAME	ler.	Inn	lum	luna	lusen	lcown	loou	MED	Into	ITOW	Inter	1
MARIE	10/15	10	10/15	10/15	10	COMP	COLL	MED	PIP	10₩	RENT	- ^
25/50/10 500/1000	25/50	10	25/50	25/50	10	500	1000	100	105	50	23	
25/50/10 NI/NI	25/50	10	25/50	25/50	10		1000		100			
50/100/25 250/500	50/100	25	50/100	50/100	25	250	500					
50/100/25 NiUNI	50/100	25	50/100	50/100	25							
My Favorite Full Coverage	100/300	50	100/300	100/300	25	250	500					
Put Your Text Here	250/500	100	250/500	250/500	25	250	250					
ut Your Text Here	250/500	100	250/500	250/500	25	250	250					1-

To apply a coverage profile from your defaults, simply click the menu item mentioned above (*Apply Default Limits*). That opens a window like the one below, containing the defaults you setup. Select the default you wish to apply and click Ok. Try it for yourself. It really doesn't get any quicker.



## UNDELETING AND PURGING RECORDS

### Undeleting

In most cases, it is possible to restore accounts and policies that have been accidentally deleted. Humans make mistakes, and this feature allows you to recover.

#### **Undelete an Account**

Undeleting an account will also restore everything associated with that account. This returns access to Activity Logs, Policies, Members, Document Manager documents, saved ACORD<sup>®</sup> forms, and other records linked to the account.

- 1. Click <u>View » View Deleted Accounts (Allows undeleting)</u>. The background will turn red to indicate that you are looking at deleted accounts.
- 2. Locate the account you wish to restore using either the search or browse methods.
- 3. Change the status to Active, Inactive, or Prospect. Note that the deleted status will indicate what it was before it was deleted. When you change the status to one of the above, that account will disappear because it is no longer a deleted account.

4. Click <u>View » View Active Accounts (normal view)</u>. At this point you can locate the restored account using the search or browse methods.

#### **Undelete a Policy**

Locate the account to which the policy needs to be restored. Then:

- 1. Open or select the policy screen for policy type (Line Of Business, or LOB) you wish to undelete.
- 2. Click the policy's drop-down menu at the top left of the main window.
- 3. Select Manage Deleted Policies. That will list all deleted policies of that LOB, for that account.
- 4. Select the policy you wish to restore.
- 5. Click the <u>Undelete</u> button. Caution: do not click the <u>Purge</u> button that will permanently delete it.

## Purging

#### **Purging an Account**

Purging an account permanently removes the account and everything associated with the account. There is no recovery after purging an account.

- 1. Click <u>View » View Deleted Accounts (Allows undeleting)</u>. The background will turn red to indicate that you are looking at deleted accounts.
- 2. Locate the account you wish to purge using either the search or browse methods.
- 3. Click *File » Delete*. This will permanently delete the account. No recovery is possible.

#### **Purge a Policy**

Locate the account to which the policy needs to be restored. Then:

- 1. Open or select the policy screen for policy type (Line Of Business, or LOB) you wish to undelete.
- 2. Click the policy's drop-down menu at the top left of the main window.
- 3. Select Manage Deleted Policies. That will list all deleted policies for that account.
- 4. Select the policy you wish to restore.
- 5. Click the *Purge* button. That will permanently delete the policy. No recovery is possible.

## **CARRIER INFO GATEWAY BROWSER**

The fastest way to lookup and verify coverage and other policy information.

### Setup

The ABS Carrier Gateway is a special purpose web browser based on Microsoft's Internet Explorer. It gives you immediate access to your insurance company's web site as long as you have entered the web address and your log in credentials have been entered. Use the *Admin – Carrier List* menu to enter new carriers or edit existing ones. That menu looks like the illustration to the right.



The actual Carrier List looks like the illustration to the right. If you are entering a new carrier, not yet in the list, you can often just pick it from a convenient list. Get that list by clicking the button at the top of the windows titled *Pick a Carrier to enter*.

That *pick list* has every carrier we could find when we made the list, so it probably has all of the carriers you'll ever need. However, if you don't find one of your carriers, just enter it manually.

The advantage of picking one from the list is that it should already have the NAIC number. If you pick one from the list, make sure to verify



that number is correct. There are a lot of carriers with very similar names. The NAIC number is identified by the right arrow (in blue) in this illustration. If you need to manually enter a carrier, you'll need to look up the NAIC number. The advantage of entering that number is, when you fill out an ACORD<sup>®</sup> form, the NAIC field will be entered for you using the number you've put here. It's worth the time it takes to look it up now instead of every time you create a form.

In addition to the Company Name, the three left arrows (in red) point to fields that are used to automate browsing to your carrier's website. These values are not part of the *Pick List*, so you'll need to enter them yourself. After all, your login credentials are uniquely assigned to you by the insurance company. Notice, the password is obscured. You can expose the actual characters by clicking the *eye* button at the right of the password field. The *eye* button becomes visible when you enter that field. Passwords are obscured by default.

#### **Carrier Contacts**

The bottom portion of the window is for Contacts you have within the selected carrier. Us this to record contact information for underwriters, and other representatives you need to reach on occasion. This keeps all the important carrier information in one spot.

## **Opening the Gateway Browser**

The Carrier Gateway can be opened from any policy screen by double-clicking the Carrier Name field, identified by the red arrow in this illustration. We used an Auto Policy Screen for this example, but this works the same on every policy screen. The only exception is Financial Securities. We do not see a need for this feature on that screen.

Prior to version 3.12.40.392, the Carrier field and several others, had a green background. They are no longer green. Instead, they have a blue border. They still play the same role in commission calculations as they did before. The only reason for the change was to permit a yellow background for the Carrier field. As you should know, doubleclicking any yellow field triggers some form of automation. In this case it opens the Gateway Browser, and uses that carrier's login information

=	AUTO: Jones, Homer And Donna
HH 4 🕨 HH 🛨 🗕 🗸 🖼 2 of 5	+ - 🗸 🗠 2019 Buick Le Sabre
Pol. Status Policy Num E	ffective Date Time Renewal Date Cancel Date Inception Date Bus Type Producer
Active - 115921652E	5/18/2021 🗸 12:00 AM 💠 11/18/2021 🤟 🔍 🗸 5/5/2000 🗸 Renex 🚽 HWJ 🗸
Carrier	Broker (if brokered) Policy Name Share/W
Grange Insurance	<ul> <li>Acme Insurance Brokerage Inc.</li> <li>Rural Auto</li> </ul>
Payment Amt. Payment Mode	Do not Auto-Renew this policy     Click here for information.     Segret 1     Segret 2
2019 Buick Le Gere 1017 Alfa Rome Driver Info: Rated Driver: Age: Points: William Jones 53 0 Miles/fr Eper. 0-7500 37 V Miles one way: 7 New Mrter Jeannette Ullery 0 0th Drives:	o Verde Veh. Status Effective Date Effective Date Effective Date Status Effective Date Premium Network Status Effective Date Status VIII: Veh. Status Veh. Status VIII: VIII: Status VIII: Veh. VIII: VIII: Veh. Status VIII: Veh. VIII: VIII: Veh. Status Passenger Veh V 90 V PREFERED V Veh. Status Veh. VIII: Veh. Ret Cls: Risk Clss: Veh. Status Veh. VIII: Veh. Veh. Veh. Veh. Veh. Veh. Veh. Veh.
Coverage Endorsements & Discounts	, etc. Certificate Holders User Fields Fees
BI: 100/300 v PIP: 10	OK 🗸 Rental: NIL 🖌 Good Driver: 🗹 Anti-Lock Brakes:
PD: 50 V Med:	✓ Towing: Include ✓ Good Studint: NIL ✓
UM: 100/300 v GB:	Performnce: Standard      Senior Driver:      Am
UIM: 100/300 v Comp: 25	0 V Youth: V Driver's Ed.: I Texastory
UMPD: 25 v Coll: 50	0 ✓ Anti Theft: Disabling ✓ Glass: ✔

and the policy information for the selected policy.

### Using the Gateway Browser

This is a special purpose browser that makes it a snap to get policy information directly from the insurance company. The web address you entered while setting up the carrier information will automatically be inserted into the web address field at the top of the browser window. The *GO* button, on the right, is automatically clicked for you, so it will immediately browse to the website you want.

The bottom of the browser contains information you need from the ABS Account Screen and from the Policy Screen. Not only do you not need to look them up, you can drag and drop them onto the carrier's web page.

Drag the Carrier's User ID and Password to log in. Then drag the policy number, or account ID to the carrier's lookup page and drop them into the required carrier fields. Other fields you can drag and drop



are: Entity Name, First and Last name. If the carrier's web pages do not allow drag and drop, each of the fields at the bottom of the Gateway can be copied and pasted. To copy, just click the button at the far right of the field you wish to copy. You don't need to highlight the field. Clicking the copy button does it all for you. When you need to paste into the carriers web page, just select their field and press Ctrl-V.

# CALENDAR

With ABS Agency Builder you have the choice of using Microsoft Outlook, or the ABS Calendar. This document is limited to ABS products. Consult Microsoft for documentation on their products.

Like most modern calendars, you can display day, 5day work-week, 7 day week, Month, and Year. You can also elect to show your own appointments, or those of any combination of others in the office. Each person can have their own background color, making it easy to differentiate when viewing groups. You can also print copies of your chosen view. Tasks are



displayed at the bottom of the calendar screen.

# INTRA-OFFICE MESSAGES (BUCK SLIPS)

Intra-Office Messages are more commonly called Buck Slips, just like the telephone message pads that were used before computerized office automation. They function similar to an internal eMail because they are sent from one person to another. The most common use is to inform the other person of a phone call, or some other kind of contact, while they were out. In keeping with the "old days," the arriving message is pink. The outbound color is pale yellow. In order for Intra-Office Messaging to work properly, all ABS users must have their own unique User ID. Please refer to the System Administration section of this manual for information on setting up User IDs. No one in the office should ever share a User ID.

When a Buck Slip is sent, it will pop-up on the recipient's screen within one minute (usually quicker). ABS Agency Builder, on the receiving end, must be open in order for the message to pop up. If it is not, or the computer is off, the messages will be saved, and pop up when the receiving user opens the program.

### **Outgoing Intra-Office Messages**

The window for creating outgoing messages can be displayed from File > Send Buckslip, by clicking the Toolbar button with the pink Buckslip icon, or from keyboard shortcut keys (Alt + I). Any of those actions will produce a window like the following sample. Notice how it contains features of e-mail and the common phone message pad.

The first field, in the upper left, is a drop-down list of all User IDs currently assigned. Use this to Address the message. Once sent, the contents of this message will be directed to that user, regardless of which computer they are using. If that

person is using ABS Agency Builder, this message will appear on their screen within one minute. If they are away from the office, or not using ABS Agency Builder, the message will simply be waiting for them when they next log into the program.

## **Arriving Intra-Office Messages**

Any number of messages can be placed in the arriving message queue. They will simply popup up one at a time until they have all been delivered. Notice the window is very similar to the one used to create the message. The different color will alert you to the fact that it is an Arriving message. Note, these examples are not of the same message.

Arriv	ing Intra-Office Message
To: HWJ	Date / Time: <u>9/29/2002 3:20:00 PM</u>
Phone: (502)_!	nderwing 555-1233 Ext. <u>44                                    </u>
Visitor Phoned Please Call Will Call Urgent	Message: John will be out of town until Tue next week. He needs missing into on the new Smith free app. 1. Name of alarm company. 2. Kind of rodong material. 3. Disance to hydrart. 5. Year of construction.
From: <u>Homer Jone</u>	<u>C</u> ancel

Clicking the Cancel button does not delete the message. If you are busy and unable to read the message when it pops up, just cancel it for viewing later.

### **Viewing and Managing Messages**

Messages may be forwarded to another person in the office by selecting the recipient, and then clicking the Forward button.

Messages that have been canceled may be viewed by clicking View > Intra-Office Messages, or simply pressing the Ctrl + I shortcut keys. Either of these actions will display a screen like the one below.

This example displays all information contained in every saved message. Use this screen to review old messages, or ones that were canceled because you were unable to read the message when it popped up.

6	Intra-Office I	Messages for H	omer Jones	
Delete		Forward To: Nobody 🗸	Send now	
From	Subject			Date / Time
Donna Jones	Test 1			11/5/2008 11:06:00 A
Donna Jones	A test #2			11/5/2008 11:06:00 A
From: Donna Jo Subject: Test 1 Phone:	ones Extn:	Urgent Visited	Phoned Please Call Fax:	will Call
Just a test # 1				

## **Deleting Intra-Office Messages**

This is also where you will delete messages you do not wish to save. You should not save every message. Be good about housekeeping, and get rid of messages you no longer need. Messages are saved until you delete them.

# MARKETING CAMPAIGNS

A Marketing Campaign is an organized plan to solicit a specific kind of business, or prospect. It gives you complete control over who to include in the campaign, when the campaign begins and ends, the number of letters to mail, and when they are mailed. An important feature of the ABS Marketing Campaign system is that you can run more than one campaign at a time, and there is no limit to the number of campaigns that can be run concurrently.

A campaign consists of:

- identifying a group of prospects (or clients) to whom you wish to sell a specific product.
- mailing one or a series of letters to everyone in that group at predefined intervals (usually 10 days to three weeks apart).
- following up with each individual in your selected group via phone call, or other personal contact. The follow-up should take place a short time after the last letter is received. Of course, follow up phone calls are optional, but they tend to increase your hit rate.

### **Queries vs. Campaigns**

ABS Agency Builder's queries permit Mass Mailing to the clients that result from a query. That is great if all you want to do is send one letter. Even if you only want to send just one letter, a major problem arises if you wish to make follow-up contacts to a long list of recipients. Marketing Campaigns are more focused, and more manageable.

This screen is reached from the Campaigns menu on the Account Screen. Here you give the campaign a name, create letters, assign mailing dates, and define your target market.

Before creating your campaign, you should estimate the size of your target market. If it is more than you can follow-up on in a reasonable time, you should probably create more than one campaign. A good way to determine your market is to run a Predefined Query. For example, you could run the query for Home Loan But No Life. Let's say that query produced 51 households. That might be more than you could call in a week. A good rule of thumb is to limit your Campaigns to about 25 recipients. Try this number, and adjust up or down as it suits your agency.

If the query produced 51 households, you should probably create two Campaigns. Here is how you should do that.

## **Campaign Identification**

**Campaign Name**. Make it something short, but meaningful like: *Mortgage Protection*.

**Campaign Description**. More details. Something like: *Solicit Mortgage Protection Life from prospects on the first half of a 51 name query run on 5/10/16. Query was Loan No Life.* 

**Campaign Results.** Leave this blank until the campaign has been run. Then come back and indicate how it did. This will help you decide if you should repeat this one or try something else.

**Create a new Campaign**. The Record Navigator allows you to add a new record (campaign).

1. CAMPAIGNS: Crea	ate or Select	2. LIST: Target Recipients	ts 3. LETTER5: Create or Edit			
idd or delete campaig uttons in the bottom	ns using the nav left of this scree	vigator 20	Select the .to the list,	correct campaign before i or letters	movin	
Campaign Name	Description			Results		
Local Life	Life ages 40-60	lin town				
Auto No Fire not local	Has auto policy	but not fire, outside of town.				
Mortgage Insurance	Fire but no Mor	tgage				
Fleet Marketing	Have Commerci	ial Liabiλγ but not their business auto:				

## **Assigning Recipients**

The Target Recipients Tab contains the list of letter recipients. To add someone to the list, click the button at the upper left corner of the list (it looks like a clean sheet of paper). This will produce a Browse List similar to that of the Household Screen. It drops down a list from which you can pick recipients to be added to the list. You can add as many recipients as you wish, but we suggest keeping the list to around 25. It is a more manageable number for follow-up calls.

1. CAN	MPAIGNS: Create	e or Select	2.LIST: Targe	t Recipients	3. LETTERS:	dit		
Add or di	elete recipients ( in the bottom lef	using the navig t of this screer	jato <del>r</del> L		Mailir	ng Labels	Print List	
AC	LASTNAME	FIRSTNAME	ENTITYNAME	SALUTATION	ADDRES51	ADDR	E552	CITY
Þ	Keeling	Errin		Dear Errin	3533 SE Monroe	#38		Miksau
	Keller	Nicki		Dear Nicki	8315 SE Stark #	10		Portlan
	Abdallah	Imad		Dear Imad	15112-b Varsity	st		Moorpa
	Abernathy	James		Dear James	22318 San Vicer	nte Rc		Ramon
	Abirached	Laura		Dear Laura	838 Kayton Ave			San An
	Abitz	Debbie		Dear Debbie	24340 Crestlaw	n St		Woodk
	Ables			Dear	1941 Fm 1069 M	1		Aransa
	Acevedo	Alejandro		Dear Alejandro	474 Rockwell Bh	/d		San An

To add several recipients at the same time, hold down the shift key while selecting recipients from the list. With the shift key down, each record you click will be highlighted. All highlighted records will be added to your recipient list in one quick transaction.

Be careful to not add the same household to the list more than once. Duplicates are not rejected. If you add a household more than once, they will receive duplicate letters.

To delete a recipient, select it and press <Ctrl>+<Delete> key on your keyboard, or click the minus sign (dash) in the navigator at the bottom left of the recipient list grid.

Printing a list or mailing labels is as easy as clicking the appropriate button.

## **Campaign Letter**

The center portion of the screen is where you create the letters you wish to send. A campaign can have as many letters as you wish, but usually two to four is sufficient. To create a second, third, ...etc letter, use the Record Navigator just above the Letter Text Field.

Mailing Dates are required for each letter. Separate the mailing dates by an adequate amount of time. Usually two to three weeks is about right. If you are running more than one campaign concurrently you will find it easier to administer if the letter mailing dates are staggered.

Letter Text is the body of the letter. Using the Record Navigator, you can quickly compare the text of each letter to assure continuity, and to avoid unwanted redundancy.

Hint: to use the same text in a second campaign, highlight the text and press <Ctrl+C> (the short-cut for Copy). Then switch to the second campaign and put the entry point in the Letter Text field. Now press <Ctrl+V> (the short-cut for Paste).



Letter Mailed should be checked after the letter is mailed. If this box is not checked, ABS Agency Builder will remind you

that the letter is due to be sent once the Mailing Date has been reached. Checking this box stops the reminders.

## **Printing Campaign Letters**

When a letter's Mailing Date falls due ABS Agency Builder will pop up a message when the program is started. This is simply to remind you that the letters should be printed. To print the letters, select the letter to be printed. Then click the Mail Merge button.

## PREMIUM INVOICE

From the Main Menu, select *File > Print > Print Invoice*.



Next, select the policies, endorsements, or fees you wish to include on the invoice. In this example, a Commercial policy has been selected, as well as, two endorsements and an inspection fee for that policy.

Dollar amounts from the individual policy screens will be used – Policy Premium, Endorsement Cost, and Fee amounts. Make sure they are correct. If the policy

		SELE	CT POLICIE:	S FOR INVOICE			×
Status	Renewal	Carrier or Description	Туре	Policy No	AMT	Period	^
A []	10/30/2019	Grange Insurance	Boat	58656	200.00	12	
- A	6/14/2019		Boat	F12GP40216	116.00	12	
🗸 A	2/12/2019	Consumers County Mutual	Commercial	ALCT1932907	1234	12	
✓		LACEQ Loss Assessment For	+ Endrsmnt	ALCT1932907	234.56	-	
✓		BOLAW Building Ordinance o	+ Endrsmnt	ALCT1932907	456.78	-	
✓		Inspection Fee	+ Fee	ALCT1932907	50.00	-	
🗆 A	6/11/2019	General Ins Co Of America	Commercial	Sample Commer	3456	12	
- A	7/2/2019	Hartford Insurance Company	Fire	FSC_JPCA1738	676.00	12	
🗆 A	2/28/2019	Blue Cross & Blue Shield Reg	Health	534239987	407.00	1	
<b>—</b> .	r r to toor o		1.07	1010000110	100.00	10	
						ок	Cancel

premium on the policy screen includes endorsements and fees, then make sure not to include their amount on the invoice. You can edit the invoice entries, and fix any incorrect dollar amounts before printing.

The next window is the invoice data entry form. It allows you to edit the invoice before printing. You can even hand enter new line items and amounts if needed.

Scroll down to see the totals, and for a field in which you can enter a personal message.

🖬 frn	nInvoice			×
Print Preview				
Agency Business Systems, Inc. Homer Jones		INV	DICE	1
6519 SE Jennings Ave Glendale, CA 97268		INVOICE #	DATE	1
503 659 6752 FAX: 503 652 6897		C automatic	Feb 24, 2016	]
	[	ACCOUNT #	DUE DATE	]
		434	Mar 10, 2016	
5928 5E 136th Ave Portland, OR 53236				
DESCRIPTION			AMOUNT (\$)	1
Grange Insurance, Auto (P) Policy # 122327990			175.60	1
2001 Ford Branco U100 4wd VIN: ?				
Hartford Insurance Company, Fire Policy # FSC_JPCA1738570			676.00	
				~

Clicking the Print Preview button yields something like the following sample. If everything is okay, print it, or email by clicking the appropriate button.



# CARD FILE

The Card File can be opened by clicking View > Open Card File, pressing F7, or clicking the button that carries an icon depicting a Card File. The ABS Agency Builder Card File is intended as a place for non-client contacts. It is ideal for your Doctor, Dentist, Hair stylist, Golf partners, friends, and business associates that are not Clients or Prospects. An example might be a glass or body shop. There is no limit to the number of entries, and all entries are automatically grouped alphabetically. You can enter and spell-check notes about each entry. You can also create pre-addressed letters to any entry, or auto-dial their number through your modem.

In addition to viewing on the screen, it is possible to filter, print filtered reports, and print letters via the word processor. Note the Spell Check icon in the tool bar. It will spell check the text entered into the Notes field only.

There are two possible views, which can be selected by clicking the tabs at the bottom of the window.

## **Card View**

			Card File		
	1 + - 🧭 C 🔢 🖨 🗄	erc 🕹	Find: Last Nar	me 🗸 Matchin	g: Find Next
Last Name:		Main Phone:	656 7782	NOTES:	
First Name:		Ext:			
Group:		2nd Phone:			
Business:	Safeway Rx	2nd Ext:			
Address:	15099 SE McLoughlin	3rd Phone:			
Addr. Line 2:	Milwaukie, OR 97267	3rd Ext:			1
Addr. Line 3:		Email Addr:			
Last Name:		Main Phone:	553 3014	NOTES: L	ISA originally handled the
First Name:		Ext:			equest when we donated 6/99.
Group:		2nd Phone:		í	ransfer of license title, etc.
Business:	Vehicle Donation Center	2nd Ext:			
Address:					
Addr. Line 2:		3rd Phone:			
Addr. Line 3:		3rd Ext:			
		Email Addr:			
Look Manager		Main Dhanna	6 0 F 00 F F	NOTES (	
Last Name:	Peterson's Appliance	Main Phone:	635 9866	NOTES: U	.ust serv 800 442 1111
First Name:		2nd Dhonoi	343	ž	YZS255HBT1 Serial #
Group: Rusinossi	Kitchon Aid Dichworchov	2nu Phone: 2nd Eve		F	P1601401. Looked at noise
ûddrece:	NICCICITATO DISTIWOSTICI	3rd Phone:			./00.
Muuress:		Sid FIIORE:			
Grid View	Card View				

## **Grid View**

		Card File		×
				Find Next
Drag a column l	header here to group by that col	umn		^
🔳 Group	Business	First Name	Last Name	Address 1
•	Office Dynamics	Office	Dynamics	3247 NVV 29th Ave
	FRY'S Electronics	FRY'S	Electronics	29400 SW Town Center
	Excel Wireless		Excel Wireless	
	American Express	American	Express	
	NW Farmers Ins. Group FCU	NW Farmers Ins. Grou	FCU	13333 SVV 68th Pkwy
	State Farm	State	Farm	Larry Smith
<				>
Grid View	Card View			

# **CLAIM HISTORY**

The Claim History tab at the bottom of the Account screen is for quick reference. It can be used to track open or closed claims with the current or previous carriers. Information is free-form, and is not filled in by a claim form. This gives you the opportunity to make notes that do not appear on a loss report, or to take notes about things that should, or will be reported.

The blue Edit Claim Record window is opened by clicking the Edit button just above the grid. It is a convenient data entry tool, that makes it unnecessary to scroll the grid left and right.

tatus: Acti		Plan: 500	~	Lang.Pref. Engli	sh v	Agency ID: 115	543321	CSR: HWJ		
Since: 2/14	/1968 - La	spse: 9/10/	2012 ~	Review: 9/21	2016 -	Mo. Pay: F3035	23	Source	~	
Entity Nam	a sinase Susta	me Inc			Edit Cl	aim Record	~		Т	
Last Name		First Nar	Loss Type	oss Type Policy Number Loss Date						
Salutation Dear Home	ii.e. Dear Dan r And Donna	a do	Claim Numi	ber	90313327	Adjuster	7/4/201	× •		
Address 1 PO BOX 68	(i.e. Street)		Prob. Loss	Amount	Insurance (	arrier		_	1	
City				0	General Inc	Co Of America		~		
Portland			Loss Descr	iption					1	
(805) 651- Policy Sur	nmary Men	nbers 🦕	but interi	or was gutted (cabi	hetry, applia	nces, etc).	NO 570000	a damayo, 🔨	listory	
P Edit		Print	Live edit	ting is in effect. J grid. Save change	I changes is from the	are shown re.		glose		
Auto: Liability	116816814	6/29/2000	0 Rear ended a police car stopped at traffic signal.				. Aut	Automobile Insurance Con		
FireProp	903133274	7/4/2015	Kitchen grease fire spread to dining room before FD arrived. No structural damage, but interior was outled (cabinety, appliances, etc.).				e FD Gen	General Ins Co Of America		
Boat: Liability	115921652 B	2/25/2016	5 Damage to public dock. Approached too fast and collided with walkway.				t The	The Travelers Indemnity C		

# ACORD<sup>®</sup> Forms

ACORD<sup>®</sup> forms can be printed from a policy screen only. Data used to fill out the form comes from the selected policy. It is important to be viewing the policy for which you intend to create a form before you open the ABS ACORD Forms. To open the ACORD® forms program, select *Print* > ACORD Forms from the policy menu (top left of the main Agency Builder screen). Note: If you are interrupted while working on a form, you can leave it open and return to it later. However, you must remember to close ABS ACORD Forms before closing the main ABS Agency Builder program. If you close the main program without saving your ACORD form, your will be given a warning. If you ignore it, your work will be lost.

Commercial File Edit Admin View Marketing Reports	Tools & Settings Window Help	
Add New Policy Undelen Policies Copy Policy & Keep Original (rewrite) Ctrl+Alt+C Reassign Policy to a different account Save Changes	Constant of the search and search	w
Print	Acord Form Shift+ Ctrl+A	
Edit + Close Ctrl+8	Letters Driver List (Grid Format) Scheduled Auto Scheduled Equipment List Certificate Holder List Condo Unit Owner List Location List	•
	Condo Certificate	

The result is the ACORD<sup>®</sup> main screen. Client information is displayed on the left of the screen. It is for reference only, and can't be edited.

This window can be resized and can be dragged to any location on your screen. When you close it, the next time it is opened it will find its way back to where you put it, and resize itself.

Below the client information is a panel for the signature that will be inserted into forms, when required. Initial setup should include loading a signature. We'll cover that a little later.

The available forms are shown in the list at the right. By default, the program shows your short list instead of

pen Form					l
Account Entity Name:	Account #:	241	New For	m Saved Form(s)	
Agency Business Syste	ms, Inc.		Form	E	
Last Name:	First Name:		INUMBER	Pormi varne	
Jones	Homer And Donna		2	Automobile Loss Notice	
Address 1-			3	General Liability Claim	
PO BOX 68308			24	Certificate of Property Insurance	
1000000		_	25	Certificate of Liability Insurance	
Address 2			27	Evidence of Property Insurance	
		_	50	Auto Insurance ID Card	
City:	St: Zip:		75	Insurance Binder	
Portland	OR 97268		125	Commercial Insurance Application	
Phone:	Email:		126	Commercial General Liability Section	
(805)651-1660	donna@agencybusys.com		127	Business Auto Section	
			129	Vehicle Schedule	
withorized Representative	Signature (for form):		140	Property Section	
	Signatore (for form):		163	Commercial Auto Driver Information Sch	edule
10.04	100.	Select	175	Commercial Policy Change Request	
Funer	000	Clear	•	Short List (frequently used forms)	O All Form

hundreds of available forms. Notice the buttons just below the list. To see more than just the short list, click *All Forms* (far right). Do that now so you'll understand what we are about to tell you. If the program is not open, do it now.

In the *All Forms* list, you'll see check boxes to the right of each form. Putting a check mark in a box will add that form to your Short List. Un-checking removes it. Since there are many State specific forms, having the ones you deal with on your short list saves time looking for the right one (or worse, picking the wrong one).

Just above the list you will see two tabs: *New Forms*, and *Saved Forms*. By default, the program assumes you intend to create a new form. If you have saved a form, click the Saved Forms tab and select the one you wish to open. We'll show you how to save a form in a moment, and we'll show you the easiest way to find a saved form out of the many that you've saved.

After you have selected the *new form* you wish to *create*, you can open it by highlighting it and clicking the Open button, or just double click the form.

## Selecting the Insured Name

Before your selected form opens, you may be asked to select which insured name to print on the form. That depends on the form and the line of business. There are potentially five names (especially for Commercial Policies).

1. Entity Name (from the Account Screen)

Insured Name For Form	Address 1	Address 2	City	st	Zip
Homer And Donna Jones     Agency business Systems, Inc.     Agency business Systems, Inc.     Asx: Typing incorporated     Homer Jones	PO BOX 66308 PO BOX 66308 4325 S 34th 4325 S 34th		Portland Portland Portland Portland	0. 0. 0.	97268 97268 9720297 9720297
			ок		Cancel

- 2. Account First, Middle, and Last Name (from the Account Screen)
- 3. First Named Insured (from the Policy Screen)
- 4. DBA Name (from the Policy Screen)
- 5. Entity Name from the account screen plus DBA Name from the policy screen. For example: Ajax Inc. DBA Acme Plumbing.

The name you check will automatically be inserted on the ACORD form so you don't need to type it. This saves time, and minimizes typographic errors. Once you get it correct in ABS Agency Builder it will be correct everywhere it is used.

## **ACORD<sup>®</sup> Form Completion**

After selecting the insured name, the form will open in edit mode. Edit mode is obvious because all editable fields are light blue except for the ones where doubleclick is enabled. If you are not viewing this example in color, the yellow, double-click fields, on this Form 25 are yellow. So is the certificate holder's name field. While in edit mode, you can change, anything that was automatically inserted or add additional information as needed.

In this sample form 25 all the fields were pre-filled with data from the policy screen. Nothing else was added after opening. Because ABS pre-fills forms, you save a huge amount of time. Naturally, that is assuming your client and policy data is up-to-date and complete. The more accurate and current your data is, the less time it takes to do critical everyday tasks.

It was not necessary to type anything on this sample form, or double-click a yellow field. However, there are times when you will need to double-click. For example, if this client had more than one active umbrella policy, you would need to double-click that policy number and select the correct one. The same would be true if there were multiple certificate holders. Double-click lets you pick.

The tool bar, across the top of the screen works like this, from left to right:

**Close** – Closes the form editor without saving your work.

	- A	ABS A	CORD® Forms: Ager	ncy Bus	iness Systen	ns, Inc. Acco	unt		- 🗆 🗙				
Exit Save Preview PDF Direct Doo	⊾ Man	Sca	le						2				
ACORD		с	ERTIFICATE OF LIA	BILITY	INSURAN	CE		976 04 / 44	00000				
THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMAT	IONON	E.Y.ANI	CONFERSING RIGHTS UPON THE C	TRUENCAT	T BOLDER, THIS			01/14/	2022				
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVEL	YANE	ND, EXT	END OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AF	FFGROED B	THE POLICIES								
BELOW. TBIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CO REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE	BOLD	UTEAC ER.	DNTRACT BETWEENTBE ISSUING	INSURERIS	LAUTBORIZED								
INFORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSUR	E0,160	policy( im	must have ADDITIONAL INSURED pr	rovisions or b	r endorsed.								
HSUBRICATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and condition this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lies	this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lies of such esdorments).												
roacce Busines During Inc. Inc. Inc. Inc. Inc. Inc. Inc. Inc.													
Agency Business Systems, Inc.				ALC: N. EN	503 65	9 6752	14% 14% Her	503 6	52 6897				
PO Box 818				A 8 91 655-			a contrast						
Gladstone			OR 97027	VENTERA:	General	Ins Co Of A	merica		99999				
venece .				VEWER 5									
4325 S 34th				POWER C :				_					
Portland, OR 97202-97267				VEWER E:									
				VOURCE ? :									
COVERAGES CERTIFY THEN IS TO CREATERY THAT THE POLICIES OF BELTWARDA VIEWER, V	ICATE I	NUMBE	T REAL TO THE BELIERD MANNESS AND	078 808 799	FOLEY FRED		REVISION NUMBER:						
D DO MERT, TRUBBLETOPEL PLA CREDINGTARTER TOTO. LETATED IN ACCOUNT DE LET PLATER VALANCE ENTRE EL VALATER DE VALATER DE VOLL ZERAL DEL ACTURIO ZE DE VALATER DE LETATER DE DE	OBURNESS AND REAL TAMAN S	021 03 43 80 87 73 84 78 18	Y CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT W 5 POLETER DELCREED BREEN E STRU 11 EED DORD XY 7410 CLAMS.	THE RELATED	T TO WHEN THE THE TRANS.				I				
ATR TITE OF REMAKE	-		NUCERNAME		POLICY EFF JAMASBATCHTD	POLICY EXT (plusterry)		-					
							EACH DOOLWEDRE GARAGE TO REPORT	, 1,0	00,000				
CARCANCE COR							MED EXT (As an anal)	1					
A 🗌			A41595242		4/15/2021	4/15/2022	PRESSION AND ADDRESS	1					
GRAL ACCRECATE CRAT ANY LES PRE-							GENERAL ADDREGATE	1					
							PREDUCTS - COMPLEY AGE	1					
ATTORNES LARGE TY							COMBOND SEPOLE LEAT	+ 1.0	00,000				
							NOT COMPANY OF DOTAL	1					
			A41595242		4/15/2021	4/15/2022	BOOK Y BOOKY (In added)	1					
AUTOS DELY							(Par eccident)	1					
							EAGE DOOLWEDRE	1					
							ADDREDATE	1					
Con Con Constantion 1							- FOX - 0134-	1					
AND BAT LOTER LARGERY STATE								100	.000				
D presentationalistic concentration	ara		WC987654321		4/20/2021	4/20/2022	EL DEALE-EA BELDITE	1 50,	000				
NYAL GOODE MAKE DESCRIPTION OF DESERVICIONS PROV							EL DOBASE - FOURTY LENT	1 200	,000				
This is a sample of a description. New te	xt.		ann an gu n gu n gu										
CERTIFICATE BOLDER	_	_		CANCTL	ATION			_					
Countrywide Funding Corporation Its S	ucce	ssors	: &/or Assigns	SROEL THE EX	ANY OF THE ABOVE PRATION DATE THE	DESCRIBED POLICIES REOF, NOTICE WILL R	RE CANCELLED REFORE						
PO BOX 10214				4000	AND A PITHTHE POL	NUT PROVIDIONE							
Van Nuys, CA 91410-0214				ATHORED	ALC DESCRIPTION OF A	Si	ignati	vre	~				
ACD RD 25 (201903)	_	-	The ACORD same and is	go a re repiste	red marks of ACORS	,	e 585.205.4	CORD CORP	GRATION AI right rear				
<									, `				
ACORD Doc Ver: 2.0.0 Ver. 3.49.7 F	age 1	of 1	* Field Name: Certific	cateHold	erFullNmA, For	nt: Tahoma/10,	Size: 18/454, TabOrder: 12	1					

Save - Saves the form so you can re-open it from the Saved Forms tab. It closes the form after saving.

**Print Preview** - Opens a new window that displays the form just as it will print. From that window, you are able to send the document to your printer, create a PDF file (*PDF Direct*), email the form as an email attachment, or copy the form into ABS Document Manager. **PDF Direct** - This bypasses the Print Preview, and creates a PDF file in an ABS3 sub folder whose name begins with your ABS UserID. For example: C:\ABS3\<UserID\_Forms.

**DocMan** – This button sends a copy of the completed form to *ABS Document Manager*. <u>IMPORTANT</u>: sending the form to DocMan does not save the form. It only automates putting the document into DocMan, and eliminates the need to print and scan the document into DocMan. <u>If you think you'll need to re-open an ACORD form to make changes, you must save it with the SAVE button</u>. Naturally, this button only works if you have the Document Manager option.

**Scale** – is only used to adjust margins on printed forms. Although seldom needed, there are cases when a combination of Windows, your computer video cards, and printer drivers make margins either too big, or so small the printed form doesn't fit on standard 8  $\frac{1}{2}$  X 11 inch paper. This lets you fine tune your form so it looks perfect to the recipient.

The question mark button displays information that will help you.

## **Opening saved forms**

Just above the list are two tabs: *New Form*, and *Saved Forms*. Click the Saved forms tab, and select the form you wish to open. Naturally, the forms list will only contain those for the client you are working on.

Over time, this list can get pretty long, making it hard to locate the exact form you wish to retrieve. We make that easier by allowing you to filter and sort any column in the list. See the example to the right.

#### Sorting

To sort a column, click the column header. To resort the opposite direction, click it again.

New	Form Saved Form(s)			
Select o		dreated	LOB	Policy
25	Certificate of Liability Insurvice	1/12/2022 9:25:09 AM	Commrcl	621599575
25	Certificate of Liability Insurance Countrywide Funding Corporation Its	2/5/2020 10:51:36 AM	Commrcl	1072493604
24	Certificate of Property Insurance	1/6/2020 5:36:33 PM	Commrcl	692327789
з	General Liability Claim	12/28/2019 3:07:55 PM	Commrcl	280315481
2	Automobile Loss Notice	12/28/2019 3:06:44 PM	Commrcl	1077019609
з	General Liability Claim	12/28/2019 3:03:39 PM	Commrcl	1549733318
2	Automobile Loss Notice	12/28/2019 2:59:03 PM	Commrcl	1615219831
127	Business Auto Section	12/27/2019 12:51:47 PM	Commrcl	1110032084
127	Business Auto Section	12/27/2019 12:41:34 PM	Commrcl	1853699203
125	Application: Commercial Insurance	11/1/2018 11:02:08 AM	Commrcl	2053335072
25	Certificate of Liability Insurance	9/17/2018	Commrel	630906447

#### Filtering

Filtering lets you remove distracting entries that make it hard to find what you are looking for. Filtering does not delete forms, it only hides them from the list making it easier for you to find your objective. You can filter any of the columns in this list.

To filter, hover your mouse pointer over the column header. That will cause the *filter button* to appear (circled in red). Clicking that button will show a unique list of items in that column. In the example above, the Form column shows several form 25s, as well as other duplicates. The filter button gives you a drop-down without duplicates. So, if you were to check the form 25 check box in the drop-down, your list would only show the saved form 25s. If you were to check the 25, and the 24, your Saved Forms list would only show forms 24 and 25s. The others would be hidden (not deleted).

Now let's say you have a list of form 25s, but you are only interested in those that were created for a specific policy. Just filter the Policy column and select the policy number you're after. That gives you a list of form 25s that were created for that policy. You could take it a step further, and filter the Created date, and really narrow it down. Or, you could sort your filtered list by date. Filtering and sorting really helps with those big clients with lots of documents.

## **Form Signatures**

To load a signature, click the Select button. That will open the "select" dialog box. Select the name that should appear on the form. The signature will be visible if one has already been loaded. If the Signature box is empty, right click the Signature box. That will produce the menu shown above. Select Load. Then, select a previously saved signature file. To create a signature file, simply scan your signature with your office scanner. Crop the image to eliminate excess white space. Place the resulting file where you'll remember its location (the folder's name).

Once you select a signature, it will appear in the Signature Box, and will be saved with the other employee data. After the signature file has been loaded, it will be available when the user has been selected. In other words, you should never need to load a new signature unless you wish to replace the previous one. For example, you may have scanned a nicer looking signature.



**Hint**: To scan signatures, use stark white paper - the whitest you can find. If you use a color printer, sign your name with a bold dark blue pen. Otherwise, use a bold black pen. Avoid inexpensive felt tip pens that produce a somewhat gray line. They don't scan well, and look unprofessional.

## **Certificate Holder Field**

Note that on the ACORD<sup>®</sup> Forms, most fields have a light blue background. If they have a yellow background, they are like all other yellow fields in ABS, doubling clicking them will trigger some kind of automation. Double click actions for certificate holder fields are:

• **Double-Click** produces a pick-list of potential certificate holders. That list comes from entries on the policy screen, either lenders or certificate holders or both.

• Ctrl-Double-Click produces a pick-list of all possible certificate holders plus all possible lenders - a combined master list.

#### Important Details

If only one Lender or Certificate Holder has been entered on the policy screen, the certificate holder fields on the ACORD Form will be immediately pre-filled. Double-Clicking is not necessary.

If more than one potential certificate holder has been entered on the ABS Policy Screen, the certificate holder fields on the ACORD Form will be blank because the program doesn't know which one to use. Double-Click the yellow field to produce a pick-list of the potential certificate holders that were entered on the ABS Policy Screen. Potential certificate holders are lenders or certificate holders or any combination of them. For example, on a fire screen, you may have entered two lenders, and three certificate holders. Double-clicking will produce a pick-list of all five potential holders. The program doesn't know which one you need, so you must pick from the list.

If no Lender or Certificate Holder has been entered on the Policy Screen, you can hold down the Ctrl key and Double-Click the ACORD Form's yellow field. That will produce a complete list of all possible certificate holders. That list will be the entire Lender List combined with the entire Master Certificate Holder list. This is so you don't have to go back to the ABS

Policy Screen to enter the holder, and then start the ACORD Form all over again.

## **PROPRIETARY FORMS**

In addition to the standard ACORD forms, there are a number of forms that are either enhanced ACORD forms, or special forms designed to simplify certain tasks. For example, some commercial clients need ID

Add New Policy Undelete Policies Copy Policy & Keep Original (rewrite) Ctrl+Alt+C Reassign Policy to a different account	tefresh	Search Browse Card-file	New	View	New View	Send V	
Save Changes		Search	Activ	ity Log	Buck SI		
Print +	Aco	rd Form Shift+(	Strl+A				
Edit	Lette	ers					
Close Ctri+8	Driv	er List (Grid Format)		Into	Incontine Code D	in Tunn	
E Active A41595242	Sche	eduled Auto	•	Acti	ive Vehicle List		
Auto Carrier Bro	Sche	eduled Equipment List		Inar	ctive Vehicle List		
Grange Insurance	Cert	ificate Holder List		lder	ntification Cards (ba	tch)	
1st Named Insured (dbl click for Entity	ck for Entity Condo Unit Owner List			Holder Tal	6) РОК. ТУр	e:	
Boat d Homer Jones	Loca	ation List			Bus. Pe	srs. Proper	
DBA	Con	do Certificate			Pol. For	m:	

Cards for each vehicle in their fleet. The illustrations below show how to create ID Cards for all active scheduled vehicles in a single batch.

You'll notice this is done outside of the ACORD form program, however the results conform to a standard Form 50, however they are batch printed instead of one at a time.

A few other proprietary forms are:

- Condominium Certificates (Batch printed for each owner).
- Texas ID Cards. It is Bilingual as a single card, and conforms to Texas Department Of Insurance requirements.
- Arizona ADOT Card. Prints multiple drivers on a single vehicle, and conforms to Arizona Department of Transportation requirements.
- There are more...

## EMAIL

You choose between ABS Email and the default email client using Personal Preferences from within ABS Agency Builder. To do so, click Tools & Settings » Program Preferences » Personal Preferences. The procedure is covered in the Setup section of this manual. Note: ABS Email Sender must be closed before exiting the main ABS Agency Builder program.

ABS Email only sends email. It does not receive messages. That's what your regular email program or web service is for. Using IMAP technology, messages sent from ABS Email are placed in the *Sent* folder of your regular email program just as if it had been sent using your default email client or service. If you use a web-based email client, like

2				ABS Mail Sender		- 🗆 🗙
Send	Spell Check Attach	h Helpful In	ifo Settings			
From:	Bil@InsuranceMaster.com	n			Attachments:	
To:	GoodClient@gmail.com					^
CC:				\		
BCC:						~
Subject:	Your Insurance				<	>
Insuran George	as attention, we will boin be napp trives will be to see it your insus we me a call so we can work out it's just something I blink is import ceMaster.com 	y we spent me un nce limits adequal a meeting that fit ant because you.	ne. Ely cover your assets s your schedule. If thi ARE a valued client.	We'l also look fol ways to make your insurant is a busy time for you, call anyway - we can a Click he so it will	ce more economical by looking for discounts to coomplish quite a bit with a bind phone call. Th ere to setup ABS Mail Sence I use your email account.	which you are entitled. ere is no charge for this der

Gmail, messages sent from ABS Email will be placed in its Sent folder, too.

Set up this program using the values that were used for your normal email program. If you use an Internet mail provider and don't know how to answer the setup questions, have your provider guide you through the set up, or use your local IT professional. DO NOT CALL US. We don't have access to the security information or transmission protocol for your email account.

This simple email program makes it easier to send messages from ABS Agency Builder. If, after working with your provider, it does not send mail as expected, contact us with the information given by your email provider. DO NOT just tell us it doesn't work. We need specifics only they can give.

### Setting up ABS Mail Sender

The example to the right represents how ABS Mail Sender will look when sending one of the standard ABS letters. To use your existing email service, click the Settings menu at the top of the window.

Other menu items are self explanatory if you have ever used email.

Note: attachments are shown in the upper right. When sending an ACORD form, the form(s) being sent are automatically attached, and displayed there.

When you click *Settings*, described above, this window will open. Enter your email address, and the other information requested in the top section.

Your Info

#### Email address

This is the email address of your email account. It is required by your email service provider.

#### Sent Folder's Name

If you don't know the name of your sent folder, try "Sent", or "Sent Items", or "Sent Mail". Depending on your email provider, the precise name may not matter, however, it will usually include the word, "Sent."

#### Signature Text

Enter the text you would like to see at the bottom of your sent messages. This can only be plain text at this time.

	ABS Email Setup	×
Your email provider will supply reviewing your current email	y this information if you don't have it. You can also get it program's configuration. ABS doesn't have this informati	by on.
Your Info		
Email address: Sent Folder's Name: Signature Text: (Plane text only)		
Reply address:		
Email Account Settings SM	TP Settings IMAP Settings	
Account Name:		
User Name:		
Password:	ihou Baccuord	

#### **Reply Address**

Enter the email address to which you want email sent when your recipient clicks reply to a message you have sent.

#### Email Account Settings Tab

This information is used by your Internet provider, or email service. It is the account information they provided you. Since it is required by all email client software, you may be able to get at least some of this info from your default email software.

#### SMTP Settings Tab

Simple Mail Transfer Protocol (SMTP) is an Internet standard for email transmission. Enter this information carefully. It tells ABS Mail Sender what protocol to use when communicating with your email service. Gmail is shown in this example, but your setup may be different.

Email A	ccount Settings SMTP Settings 1	IMAP Settings
	SMTP Server: smtp.gmail.com SMTP SecuritY Encryption Method Authentication Method:	Port: 993 STARTTLS (explicit) ¥ OAuth2 ¥
		<u>QK</u> <u>Cancel</u>

#### **IMAP Settings Tab**

The Internet Message Access Protocol (IMAP) allows ABS Mail Sender to access your email server so that sent messages will appear in your sent folder. Your email service requires specific authorization. This example shows gmail, but yours may be different.

Email Account Settings SMTP Settings IMAP Settings
IMAP Server:     Imap.gmail.com     Port: 993       IMAP Security     Encryption Method     STARTTLS (explicit)       Authentication Method:     OAuth2
QK <u>C</u> ancel

## TEXT MESSAGING

Sending text messages to your clients or to remote workers can be done directly from within ABS Agency Builder. Messages can be sent to one member of an account, all members of an account, or as mass-messages via Marketing Queries. The text messaging feature is launched from the File menu, as seen here. Note the shortcut keys Alt+T and Alt+E can be used instead of using the menu. Naturally, messages can only be sent to client members or employees where cell phone numbers entered.

4								
ile	Edit	Admin	View	Marketing	Reports	Tools & Settings	Window	
	Add N	lew						
	Delete							
	Send <sup>-</sup>	Fext Mess	age to (	CLIENT			Alt+T	
	Send <sup>-</sup>	Fext Mess	age to B	MPLOYEE			Alt+E	
	Print							Þ
	Exit						Shift+Ctrl+X	
	New F	ending T	ask				F8	
	New A	Activity Lo	og Entry				F.9	
	Send B	Buck Slip					Alt+I	
	Invoic	e Manag	er					•
	Receip	ot Manag	er				Ctrl+R	
	Docur	nent Mar	nageme	nt				
	Refres	h Data					F5	

Client cell numbers are entered on the Members tab at the bottom of the Account screen. Employee cell numbers are entered in the ABS Admin program. Please refer to that section of this manual.

### **Text Message Window**

The illustration at the right shows a sample message ready to be sent to three family members of this account. You'll notice there are three recipient's in the pale blue portion of the *To Clients* window but there are four members on the Account Screen. Look carefully at the Members tab and you'll see that one member does not wish to receive Text Messages. He did not Opt-In.

Last Name Jones	First Na Homer	And Donna W	Idle Title Esq	C	ABS Text Messa	agin	g via Message Media			×
Salutation (i.e. D	earDan & Jo) e	mail address			File Setup Help					
Dear JB	d	lonna@agencybus	sys.com 🚹 🔝	•	The message text must be normal alphanumeric characters. Colors, and certain foreign letters are not allowed.		This list is from cell num add, change, or delete	bers in ABS Agency Bu entries in this list.	uilder. You car	r
PO BOX 68308	Street)	Address 2 (i	.e. PO Box)	4	Message Text		To Clients:			
City		ST 7	in/Postal code	•	As a valued customer, we are 🔥		Name	Phone	Status	Me
Brooklyn		NV 1	1223		offering a new, more convenient		William Jones	+14085551222	Pending	33
DIOOKIYII	0.1 DI		1223		way to pay your insurance		Donna Jones	+15034567890	Pending	33
Main Phone	Uther Pr	none County		_	for more details.		Jeannette Ullery	+12067771234	Pending	33
(005) 851-1860	(/ 10) 30	0-1221								
Policy Summar	y <u>M</u> embers y	Comments Claim	History User De	fine						
66° Last Name	First Name	Cell Phone	Text Msg Opt I	n R						
▶ Jones	Donna	(503) 456-7890	✓							
Jones	Homer	(503) 456-4567		н						
Ullery	Jeannette	(206) 777-1234	•							
Jones	William	(408) 555-1222	•							
4  4 <b>)  +  -</b>	- / <									
Annual Premium (e	xcludes "0" Term	Policies): \$9,9	08.93		×		+-/ <			>
					Characters: 137 Include optional add-on tex	:t		Send	E⊻jt	

Note: only members can have cell phone numbers.

The three members in the *To Clients* list were automatically added to the list because they had valid cell numbers, had opted in, and were not deceased. If this message should not be sent to any of the three, they can be deleted from the list by clicking the minus [-] button at the bottom of the list.

### **Bulk Messaging**

Bulk text messages can be sent from the ABS Predefined Queries. To see how that works, open ABS Agency Builder now. Then click *Marketing* > *Predefined Queries*. When the Pre-Defined Query window opens, expand *Family Members* and select any of the queries. You'll notice the Text Messages button will be enabled, as in the illustration at the right.

Clicking that button will open the same text message window as shown before. Only the members of the query with cell numbers will be in the To Client list, and then, only if they have Opted In, and are not deceased.



### **Text Message Delivery**

Messages are delivered by a third part vendor named Message Media. In order for you to send text messages via ABS Agency Builder, you must establish an account with them. We have as special agreement with them, so when you call, make sure to **tell them you are an ABS user**. Their number is 1-888-507-6511. This is important. If you fail to mention ABS, you may not be signed up for the service designed to work with ABS Agency Builder. Visit their website at <a href="https://messagemedia.com/us/messaging/sms/">https://messagemedia.com/us/messaging/sms/</a>. We suggest calling them because they offer several pricing plans that make this service very attractive to ABS users, like you.

When you sign up for their service, they will give you credentials that you will enter by clicking *Setup* at the top of the Messaging Window (above).

Why do we use a 3<sup>rd</sup> party vendor? It's simple. Every cellphone provider has their own method of handling text messages that originate from non-cellphone. Non-cellphone originators must go through a *gateway* offered by the receiving phone's cellphone provider. In order for ABS to use those gateways, you would need to enter, in addition to their cell number, the name of your client's cellphone company so we could use the correct gateway. Then what happens when your customer switches providers? Right, even if the phone number is the same, the gateway would be wrong, and the text would not arrive. With Message Media, they have their own gateway that works regardless of the cellphone provider. That makes your life (and ours) a lot simpler. By the way, there are hundreds of different cell phone providers in the US alone.

# WORD PROCESSING

The ABS Word Processor (ABS WP) has virtually all the features of any popular office suite. However, it is tailored to work seamlessly with ABS Agency Builder. This document does not discuss the basics of word processing. Those skills have become commonplace, and your time can be better served by learning how it works as an agency management tool within ABS Agency Builder. We'll start with setup tasks that only need to be done when first starting to use ABS Agency Builder. Note: ABS WP must be closed before exiting the main ABS Agency Builder program.

## Templates

The ABS Word Processor uses document templates to define the format of all letters. They allow you to determine the looks of your return address, your logo, the greeting and salutation. You can specify the font you prefer, margins, and nearly everything that goes into the appearance of your correspondence. They are great time savers so make sure to read the upcoming section on *Editing Templates* 

When the program is installed, you will have four templates. Each are just samples of what you should have, and need to be modified. For example, you will find a generic return address that needs to be altered so that letters will have your own.

The four templates are located in the ABS3 Document directory (usually C:\ABS3\Document). They are:

- ABSLHD.ABS for letters with letterhead. This is the most commonly used template, and is the one you should edit first. It is used for all letters containing a logo and/or letterhead, and that will be printed on blank paper.
- ABSLMEMO.ABS for inter-office memos with letterhead, often used to communicate with a carrier.
- ABSNLHD.ABS for letters without letterhead, or to create a layout that will print to your satisfaction on your preprinted stationary.
- ABSNMEMO.ABS for inter-office memos without letterhead.

**Important**: the above template file names must not be changed. They must also reside in the \Document sub-directory of your ABS Agency Builder program directory.

**Hint 1**: If you don't have a need for letters without letterhead, you can use that template to create an auxiliary letterhead. This might be handy if you wish to have one letterhead with your agency logo, and another with an insurance company's logo.

Hint 2: You can create a letterhead with your logo and the insurance company's logo on inter-office memos.

#### **Editing Templates**

Templates are just special forms of word processor documents. Therefore, editing them must be done within the word processor. The general procedure is to first, open the word processor as if you were going to create a letter for one of your clients. The client, and document you choose is not important. Follow these steps.

- Open the word processor by clicking *File\Print\Blank Letter*
- Once the word processor is visible, click *Edit\Templates*.
- Pick the template you wish to edit (see above to help you decide) and click the Open button. For this example we will start with ABSLHD.ABS (Letters with letterhead).
- The Logo and the return address are contained in two separate cells of a table at the top of the template. Replace the return address with your own. All editing features of the word processor are available. You can change the Font, Spacing, Location, or any other characteristic of the text. If your return address is too long it will wrap to the next line down. To correct this, re-size the cell using your mouse to drag the cell divider to the left. Cell dividers are not visible. In this example, hover your mouse pointer just to the left of the address. You will see the mouse pointer change to one that lets you drag the divider.
- To insert a logo graphic:
  - Select the desired location.
  - Click Insert > Graphic.
  - Select the logo graphic file.
  - Click Open.
  - Re-size the image, if needed

NOTE: You can insert the scanned image of your signature using the same procedure.

The foregoing instructions apply to all templates in the ABS Word Processor.

### Letter Library

Clicking File > Print gives you a wide assortment of useful letters. These letters have been honed over time, and prove to be very effective in communicating with insureds. They can be used with your word processor, or be emailed to clients for whom you have email addresses. This illustration only touches on a few. Many of these menu items have submenus with even more letters (look for the arrowhead on the right side).

Below you can see an example of how a *Reinstatement Instructions* letter looks in the ABS Word Processor.





# DOCUMENT MANAGER

### **Overview**

ABS Document Manager (DocMan) can acquire documents directly from Automatic Document Feeders scanners, simple flat-bed scanners, digital cameras, saved files, or pasted from the Windows clipboard. Document types supported are .PDF, .JPG, .PNG, .BMP, .WMF, .TIFF and Microsoft Word documents. They are automatically linked to the account regardless of how they were acquired (scanned, imported, pasted, or transferred from a camera). Because documents are always part of account information, document retrieval is well organized, fast, and simple.

Documents can also be linked to any policy or any family member. This keeps your documents further organized over time. For example, if a rated driver for a vehicle moves to a different address. The ABS Split Household function automatically moves the policy to the new address. All documents linked to that policy are also moved to the new account without any action on your part. Multiple tasks performed with only one action on your part. This helps assure continued organization, and easy document retrieval.

## Window Layout



A: The toolbar, or tool ribbon. This is where you will perform nearly all of your document tasks. The Scan button acquires a new document from your scanner. The Import button acquires a new document from a file on your hard drive, or from a removable device such as a USB camera or memory stick. The Delete button removes a document from this account. Other buttons and functions are covered later in this manual.

**B**: This is a list of all the documents that have been added to this account. The list area has been expanded so that more documents can be seen without scrolling. The list can be used to navigate from one document to another. When a document is added, it will be given a temporary name (or caption). That caption includes the date and time the document was added. However, that temporary caption should be replaced with something more meaningful – something you can recognize when you return weeks or months later. Renaming becomes especially important when the number of documents builds up. The list can scroll when it is longer than the space provided. There is no limit to the number of documents you can add, other than the size of your hard drive.

**C**: This Notes area is provided as a place to write descriptive information about the document. Perhaps how it came into your possession, or details that might be interesting to an underwriter.

**D**: This area contains information that is hidden within the document itself. That is known as metadata, and contains technical, and sometimes legal, information about the document. For example, it may contain copyright, author, originating company, dates and other information. In most cases, the dates will be when you scanned the document. However, if you imported or pasted a document, it may inherit the original metadata as described above. It is sometimes convenient to know who created the document, when, and the originating company. Not all documents have this information, but if it is available, DocMan will display it.

### Scanning a document

The Scan button, located at the very left of the tool bar, will open a scanning dialog window. There are two dialog choices: one provided by your scanner, and one created by ABS. Normally, the ABS one is faster, involves fewer steps, and easier to use. The one belonging to your scanner is usually more complicated, but may offer some control that ABS doesn't. You need to select the default scanning dialog. You only need to do that once.

### Selecting the scanning dialog

#### To select which of the two dialogs to use, click

*Preferences > Default scanner dialog*. Then pick the one you like. We suggest trying both to see which you will like. No matter how documents are acquired, they are automatically linked to the account you are on as soon as they are acquired. This is true with either dialog you select.

Note: this illustrates the ABS dialog. Compare this to your scanner's dialog.

🗹 🛛 🕹 🖉 ABS® Scanner E	Dialog - 🗆 🗙
Select Device:: HP ENVY Photo 7800 TWAIN	Selection for this scan: JPG PNG OPDF
Resolution (DPI): 300 Dots per inch. ✓ Color: 16 bit GrayScale ✓ Paper Size:	Device Options: Duplex (original two sides) Use Document Feeder
Letter (8.5 x 11 inches)	<u>A</u> cquire <u>C</u> ancel

#### Selecting the default document type

In most cases you will use only one of the three standard document types. The most common is the Adobe Acrobat *Portable Document File* (PDF). The ABS dialog (above) lets you override the default type if need be. To set the default, click *Preferences > Default Document Format (file type)*. We recommend PDF because it has become a *defacto* standard of our industry. The default you select will determine which button is automatically selected when you first open the ABS dialog. It also determines the document type always created if you decide to use your scanner's dialog. That's because your scanner's dialog can't override the default.

#### Multi-Page, or Large documents

Beginning with DocMan version 3.15, you can scan multi-page documents directly into ABS using your scanner's Automatic Document Feeder (ADF). It will create and store multi-page documents in one operation. Storing large, multi-page documents is now easier than ever before. If you normally create multi-page documents, we suggest making PDF your default document type.

### Importing a Document

The Import button is also located at the left of the toolbar, near the Scan button. Use it to import a document from a file on your computer or network or camera connected using a USB cable.

## Pasting a document

It is now possible to paste documents into DocMan. At the moment, you can only paste entire documents. The valid types are JPG, JPEG, PNG, TIF, TIFF, PDF, DOC, and DOCX. The normal procedure is to select the document's name in *Windows File Explorer* and press *Ctrl-C* (copy). You can also right click the document's name and select *Copy*. Once you have copied the file, you are ready to paste it into DocMan. To paste, click *Edit > Paste*.

### Image information

After acquiring an image, take a moment to enter the information described below. It will pay off later.

#### Categorize for easy look up

ABS Document Manager offers categories that can be assigned to an image. When there are many images, you can filter the images so that images from only one category are displayed. This simplifies things when searching for an image at a later date, especially if there are a number of images.

Let's say you have a category named *Commercial*. You can assign that category to all commercial or business policies. If this is also a personal lines account, there may be many other documents in the list. To limit the list so you only need to look at the commercial policies, you can filter the document list so you don't need to wade through all the life, health, flood, auto, and other policies. The *filter button* looks like a funnel.

To create your own categories, click *Edit > Document Categories*.

### Location of original document

Sometimes managing documents is more than just storing electronic images. Circumstances sometimes require retrieving the original, or at least knowing where it is. For example, a Report Card for a Good Student Discount, or a Declaration Sheet/Invoice from a prior carrier. Both of these might be retained by the insured. Knowing the disposition of the original can save time searching for an original that has been archived off-site, or that is not retrievable at all.

#### Caption

Think of captions as you would the tabs on a file folder. They help you find what you are looking for. You would never file something in a filing cabinet without a good label. DocMan creates a default caption when the document is acquired. That's done for your convenience and is the bare minimum. It should be replaced with a more meaningful one. One that will help identify the document when you look at the list months or years from now. Something such as; *State Farm dec page* is more helpful than just the date and time, which is what the default caption is.

To replace a caption, highlight the text you wish to replace and enter the new text.

#### Notes

You can enter more detailed notes in the area to the right of the image display. For example, you may wish to describe the condition of a roof when the photo must be taken at a distance that prevents great detail. The notes you enter can be spell-checked by clicking the Spell Check button in the tool bar. These notes are worth their weight in gold when an underwriter calls to question something about a building, boat, motorcycle, or unrepaird damage. For example, builder's debris around a brand new home could look like low pride of ownership when, in actuality, the landscaping simply hadn't been done when the photo was taken. Explain.

## Filtering

Filtering is used to limit the image selection to a single category. The sole purpose is to simplify information retrieval when there are numerous documents. For example, you may wish to limit the images you view to those in the Commercial category.

## **Linking Documents**

All images are automatically linked to an account when they are acquired. The account they are linked to is the one that was selected in ABS Agency Builder when the Document Manager was opened. You don't need to do anything to link a document to an account.

To further link a document to a policy or a person, click the toolbar button with three chain links hovering over an image of a document.

## **Cross Referencing**

As mentioned above, all images are automatically linked to the selected account when DocMan was opened. Documents may also be linked to family members or policies. We refer to this as a Cross-reference.

To Cross-reference an image to a member or policy, click the *Link* tool bar button, or click *File > Link To Member / Policy*. A window will open where you can select a member or a specific policy.

## Moving a document to another account

Manually moving a document to another account is easy. You may need to do this if a document was accidentally put into the wrong account.

First, locate account where the image is currently located, and open DocMan.

Then select *File > Reassign Document to a different Account*. That gives you a list of all accounts. Select the account where the image should go. When you click the OK button, the image will vanish because it is now attached to the account you sent it to. If needed, link the image to a policy or person in its new account.

## Zooming (JPG or PNG only)

Zooming a document can be done by clicking the zoom buttons in the tool bar, or by the choices of the Zoom menu. You can also zoom with your mouse by right or left clicking the image. Left button zooms in, right button zooms out. Using your mouse in this will center zooming around the location you clicked.

To zoom in to a specific portion (selection) simply use your mouse to drag a box around the area you wish to examine. Then Click *Zoom* > *To Selection*. This menu choice is not available unless you have made a selection.

## Image Editing (JPG or PNG only)

ABS Document Manager permits simple image editing. It is not the purpose of this product to do photo touch-up type editing. However, recognizing that photo conditions may not always be perfect, it is possible to crop, rotate, and alter brightness, contrast and color balance of an image.

The ability to change brightness, contrast or color balance can often show important details that would otherwise be hidden in the shadows.

#### Brightness/Contrast Adjustment

Use the Brightness and or Contrast sliders to adjust for dark, or overly bright images. Usually this is more useful for digital photos than for scanned documents, but some faint images can be improved by increasing contrast or decreasing brightness.

Click **Document** > **Contrast and Color**. That displays the *Contrast and Color Dialog* as shown here. In this example, the brightness was decreased slightly (-4) and the contrast increased a bit more (11).

Contrast and Brightness can be adjusted by moving the sliders with your mouse, clicking to the right or left of the slider, or by entering a new Contrast or Brightness value.



### **Color Adjustment**

To adjust colors, click the RGB tab (example above). Use the sliders to adjust the color. This is normally not necessary, however it can be used to adjust for the difference in color temperature between daylight, incandescent, and fluorescent lights.

### Cropping

Cropping allows you to focus on the subject of the image by removing portions of an image that may detract from what you wish to communicate. For example, you may wish to remove part of the sky and driveway to draw attention to a dwelling.

Select the area to keep by dragging a rectangle around it. Note the dashed line around Mount Hood in this example. You can re-select by simply dragging another rectangle. Once you like your selection, click *Edit* > *Crop*. The cropped image will be displayed, and you will be asked if you wish to save or not. Saving makes the crop permanent. It is not possible to restore the portion of the image that has been removed.



#### Deskew crooked scans

To automatically fix a skewed document, select *Document > Deskew crooked scan*. DocMan will calculate the amount of skew, and rotate it the correct amount. This is designed for text documents, but sometimes works on photos. Once the document has been deskewed, you will be asked if you want to save the change. Normally you will, but by not saving, the original will be preserved. Sometimes deskewing a photograph will produce unwanted results.

Note: PDF documents cannot currently be deskewed, only PNG and JPG.



#### Rotate

Select *Document* > *Rotate* to rotate a document. This is handy for both digital photos, and scanned images.

To rotate common amounts, such as 90 or 180 degrees, just select one of the preset angles. This is perfect when a document is scanned upside down, as in this example. To fix, click 180°

To rotate in one degree increments, click the up/down arrows on the Angle field. You can also just type the degrees of rotation into that field.

Your changes are not saved until you click <u>OK</u>. Click <u>C</u>ancel to abandon your changes and leave things as they were.

	Rotate pre	view	×	ה הבשיותה הייניה
\$         13%           \$         3346           \$         3346           \$         3346           \$         3346           \$         3346           \$         3346           \$         3346           \$         3346           \$         3346           \$         3346           \$         3346           \$         3346           \$         3346           \$         3346           \$         3346           \$         3346           \$         3346           \$         3346           \$         3346           \$         3346           \$         3346           \$         3346           \$         3346           \$         3346           \$         3346           \$         3346           \$         3346           \$         3346           \$         3346		Angle:	〕 0° 80° 70°	АССЕББАНИИ СК. ОКЛИЧИЛИИ ГРИМ инченной н. вид инченной
000'00 \$ 999 000'000'Z \$	<u>C</u> ancel			
(0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000     (0.000			icne.	

Note: If deskew doesn't produce the expected results, give this a try.

## **RECEIPT MANAGER**

The ABS Receipt Manager is an option permitting easy creation of professional looking receipts. It minimizes data entry by

allowing you to select policies for which payment is being made. Those selections then automatically fill in policy number, dates, and premium amounts. All you have to do is enter payment information. To open Receipt Manager click File > Receipt Manager, or press Ctrl-R.

When the Receipt Manager opens, the *Insured's Information* at the top of the window will be automatically entered from the data in ABS Agency Builder. Make sure you are on the correct account.

Start in the bottom panel in order to select the policies for which the client is paying. Click the eyeglasses in the top left of the *Policy Premium Payments* grid.

When you click the eyeglasses, this policy list pops up. Simply check the boxes for the policies to be included on this receipt. When you click OK, the selected policy information will be added to the *Policy Premium Payments* grid. Premiums will be totaled into the *Amount Rec'd*. field.

		Select P	olicies To In	clude On Rece	ipt		>
Status	Renewal	Carrier	Туре	Policy No	AMT	Insured Item	^
A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A	5/18/2016 3/15/2016 5/18/2016 10/31/2016 3/3/2016 4/15/2016 4/30/2016 7/26/2016 5/29/2016	Grange Insurance Company Grange Insurance Company Grange Insurance Company Farmers Insurance Company Grange Insurance Grange Insurance Grange Insurance Grange Insurance Company Farmers Insurance Company	V2 Blank Pr V2 Blank INBOARD Outb'rd Bus, Pers N/A N/A PROTECT +	1159216528 116816814 1159216528 6565656 H424446541 A41595242 667806807087 903133274 30Q08057570	356.00 210.20 340.00 300.00 345.00 2345 0.00 178.99 350.00	1999 Alfa Romeo Alfetta VIN: ? 1996 Ford Model 7 VIN: 16CD 1987 Buick NAve 4th VIN: 1 1999 16' Chev 1995 15' Chev Ajax Typing incorporated - 432 PO BOX 68308 223 33rd Ave	
						OK Cancel	

## **Partial Payments**

If you need to adjust the amount received, do it by adjusting the premium in the *Policy Premium Payments* grid. Do that for the policy, or policies, that needs adjustment. **Re-total by double clicking the yellow Amount Rec'd field.** 

Next, complete the *Receipt Information* in the vertical center of the window (light blue). Start by selecting the payment method (check, cash, credit card). The necessary fields will be enabled based on your selection.

## **Employee Dishonesty Measures**

When the receipt is printed, all receipt data entered is saved and cannot be altered. If a mistake was made, you'll need to void the receipt and start over. All receipts, and all voided receipts are automatically logged. There is nothing you can do to prevent the log entry. Check everything over before printing.

## **End of Day Settlement**

The End Of Day Settlement Report can be printed from the Reports Menu in the Main ABS Agency Builder program. It cannot be printed from the ABS Receipt Manager because it is one of the many standard reports. Several report formats are available by clicking Reports > Receipt Manager, as indicated in this illustration.



# 

Queries are grouped into logical categories that are represented by the highest branches on the tree. To select a query in that category, click the plus to its left. That will expand that category, and expose the next level of branches. That's where the actual queries are listed. In this sample, the Auto Queries have been exposed, and a query showing Auto Liability policies has been selected. This query will be restricted to Client Accounts to eliminate duplicates. If we listed policies, it would almost certainly show duplicate accounts because some could have multiple cars with liability only policies. Other queries, where vehicle information is important, will show policy details.

The right side of this screen lists additional criteria that will be required by certain queries. When a query requires additional input from you, the appropriate portion will be activated. When no additional information is required, the right side remains inactive. For example, if we were looking for policy renewals the month input field would have been activated. You will notice that "Month" has not been activated because it is not necessary for this query.

Once the query is ready to be displayed, click the OK button. Query results are displayed in a spreadsheet-like grid. The grid has many advanced features.

## **Advanced Grid features**

Grids offer very powerful ways to view, print, and analyze data from your database. You can filter, sort, and customize what you see, or print. Most grids can print reports, mailing labels, and/or export the grid contents. This offers the ability to create custom reports that satisfy almost any circumstance.

#### Filtering

This grid shows Fire policies. The user is in the process of filtering to show only those policies in the states of Oregon and Washington. Notice the drop-down menu in the State column. All columns, with few exceptions, can be filtered in this manner. Note that multiple selections can be made.

It is possible to further customize your filtering by clicking the *Customize...* button at the lower right of the above window. This allows you to use your own logic to further refine the query results. Clicking that button also lets you

rire stene	wals													
Output														
Y														
Report P	Labele Naming Export M	Gall												
Report	Ordend													
	compar													_
Drag a colur	nn header here to group b	y that column												
AS Entity	First	Md Last	Salutation	Clent	Address	Address?	Ch/	Stat	70	Area	Phone	CSR Email	Mass Mai	4 Rent
A	Alson	Ande	Dear Alison	Alson Ande	2952 E 1/2/000 ST	Houresse	Seatt (Al	(Dentis)	98112	205	(206) 129 4556	COR CHIN		
A	Richard & Audine	Anstead	Dear Richard & Audine	Richard & Audine Anstead	5200 SE Jennings Ave. #15		Mhua (O	stom)	93267		654 8811	HWI	V	12
A .	Abert	Babcock	Dear Abert	Albert Babcock	18505 SE Ashton Lo		Mina		93267		654 8561	HNV3	121	
A	Douglas	Bennett	Dear Douglas	Douglas Bennett	5345 SE Byron Dr		Mhua V CR		97267	503	(503) 654 0659		11	1
A	Dale & Lori	Bincham	Dear Dale & Lori	Dale & Lori Bingham	2203 SW Marsuda Way #27		Aloha TX		93006		658 2582	HNV3	1	1
A	Tom and Susan	Brooks	Dear Tom and Susan	Tom and Susan Brooks	16698 SE Blossom Ave		Mhuatana	1	93267		655 2416	HW3	1	1
A	James & Terri	Burch	Dear James & Terri	James & Terri Burch	PO BOX 804		Mulho	OR	93042	805	(605) 825 6655	HNVJ	1	E
P	Edward & Heide	Fitoraft-Smith	Dear Edward & Heide	Edward & Heide Fitcraft-Smith	2400 NE Redsunset Dr #113		Gresham	OR	93030		665 6461	HWJ	100	8
P	Ethel	Griva	Dear Ethel	Ethel Griva	4848 SE 87th Ave		Portland	OR	93266		221 4814	HW3	12	E
A	Tammera	HI	Dear Tammera	Tammera Hil	7244 SE Los Verdes Dr		Gladstone	OR	93027		658 5820	HW3	1	2
A	Donald & Bea	Huber	Dear Donald & Bea	Donald & Bea Huber	4536 Holy Street		Springfeld	OR	93478	818	(818) 485 2188	DNJ	V	12
P	Erm	Keeling	Dear Erm	Errin Keeling	22533 SE Monroe #75		Mhvauke	CR	93222		651 1048	HWJ	121	R
A	Craig	Lecouris	Dear Craig	Craig Lecours	5123 NE 112th Ave		Portland	OR	93220		Y8H KVYF	DNJ	7	1
A	Henry & Audrey	Mischel	Dear Henry & Audrey	Henry & Audrey Mischel	c/o L.C. 7530 SE Jackson St		Mitwaukie	OR	93222		654 6882	HNV3	1	E
A	Jeffrey	Nardin	Dear Jeffrey	Jeffrey Nardin	17911 SE Blanton St		Miwaukie	OR	93267		654 8012	HW3	1	E
A	Donald and Deborah	Noien	Dear Donald and Deborah	Donald and Deborah Nolen	PO BOX 324		Beavercreek	OR	93004		612 0155	DNJ	1	E
A	Penny	Rose	Dear Penny	Penny Rose	8125 N Hartman St		Portiand	OR	93203		285 5840	HW3	1	E
A	Robbie	Rupe	Dear Robbie	Robbie Rupe	1784 NE Providence Dr		Bend	OR	93702	818	(818) 285 0558	HNVJ	7	12
A	Russel	Skjele	Dear Russel	Russell Skjele	7121 SW Garden Home Rd #1		Portland	OR	93223		245 2111	HWJ	V	R
A	Edward & Penny	Snook	Dear Edward & Penny	Edward & Penny Snook	15112 SE Linden Ln		Mitwaukie	OR	93267		286 8454	HW3	1	E
D	Norry	Charta	Depr Norway	Nonru Snarta	33050 E Rametria	_	Deutland	00	02214		215 8580	DH1	1	1 12

save the query. That can be very handy if you have created a custom report that you wish to duplicate periodically, for example, a custom monthly report.

#### **Customized Queries**

The *Customize...* button at the lower right of the above window permits extremely powerful filtering that is unavailable any other way. While it requires more skill than simply clicking a button, the added information gathering capability is worth the effort.

#### **Custom Filtering**

Clicking the <u>*Customize...*</u> button opens this window. You can fine-tune filtering you have done via the column headers (as described above), or you can start filtering from scratch, if you are brave.

To add the filter conditions, click the new condition button, as indicated by the arrow.



You will be given a new dummy filter. All filters consist of a column (or field), the filter action, and the criteria.

Select the column on which you would like to filter. For the sake of this example, we will scroll down, and select State so we will look only at policies in the State of Georgia.

Next, select the filter action. Most of the actions in the drop-down list are self explanatory. In this example, we want to look only at policies where the State *equals* Georgia (GA).

There are actions in the drop-down list that may not seem to make sense with text fields. For example, greater than, or less than. Even so, they will work.

Next, we filter to get all policies with the word <u>Owner</u> in the carrier name. For example, Auto Owners, or Property Owners. So we use *Wild Card* characters with the *like* action. The percent symbol is the wild card, so %Carrier% means; accept any characters before or after <u>Owner</u>, but <u>Owner</u> must exist.

The State filter and the Carrier filter must both apply because they are in the **AND** group. However, we want to include all policies where the LOB is either Commercial, or WorkComp, or Surplus, or Umbrella. To do that we create an **OR** group, as shown in this example.

If the query gives the desired results, it can be saved for future re-use.





#### Saving Custom Queries

As pointed out in the previous example, you can save a custom query, and run it again later. This is extremely handy if

you've created a report that you want to run each week, or Month. Re-running a saved query will gather its results from the current state of the database. For example, you may want to look at growth since the last time the query was run.

To make it easy to retrieve a previously saved query, we recommend that you save them in the same place every time. Use a folder that is unlikely to messed with. In this example we used the Document sub-folder of the ABS3 folder. That's a pretty safe place to save queries and custom reports because it is less likely to fall victim to hard drive housekeeping.

Give it a name that describes what it does.

#### **Opening Saved Queries**

Open the Filter builder as previously described. Now, instead of creating a query, click the open button in the lower left corner.

In this example there is only one saved query, so it's easy to locate the correct one. However, if there were many such files, the value of a meaningful name becomes immediately apparent.

Look closely a the file name we used. It begins with Custom Filter. Then the name of the underlying original query (All Policies). There is a reason for that. Read on.

Once opened, you can execute the query by clicking the Open button in the Filter Builder window.

**IMPORTANT:** Remember that you have saved the filter, and not the entire query. If you try to use this filter with a different query, the result will be unpredictable.

<b>a</b>	Save the acti	ve fill	ter to file			×
🕞 🦻 🕤 🕇 📕	→ This PC → Data (D:) → ABS3 → Docum	ent	v ©	Search Document		٩
Organize 👻 Nev	v folder				-	0
This PC Desktop Documents Downloads Music Pictures Videos Co) Co) Co) Co) Co) Co)		~	CustomFilter_All Policies_State_Cs rrier_LOB.fit			
File <u>n</u> ame:	D:\ABS3\Document\CustomFilter_AllPolicies_	State_	Carrier_LOB.flt			~
Save as type:	Filters (*.flt)					~
Hide Folders				Save	Cancel	



#### Sorting

Columns may be sorted by clicking the column header. If you wish to sort by more than one column, click the first column, then hold the shift key while clicking subsequent columns. For example, if you wished to resort by Last Name, and then First Name within Last, click the Last column header, hold down the shift key on your keyboard and click the First column header. Other column combinations are done the same way.

#### Grouping

Occasionally it is nice to group items. The example below is of the same query grouped by CSR. To group by any column, drag the header into the yellow band above the headers. Notice there are three groups identified by the gray rows with captions that begin with the group name (CSR, in this case).

Sub-groups can be created by dragging additional column headers into the yellow band. For example, we could have made a sub-group for State by dragging

Dutput														
Annt í eport	trint Mailing Export Mail Labels Output													
SR 6	the Dest All	dd Lwit o	California	Chat	Address	Address	(h)	Chata	710	6.ma	Bhone	Frail	Noss Mol	Dontor
E CSR :	.,							Canal C						
A	Alson	Ansle	Dear Alson	Alson Ansie	2952 E Harrison St.		Seattle	WA	38112	206	(206) 329 4556			
A	Douglas	Bennett	Dear Doughs	Douglas Bennett	5345 SE Byron Dr		Miwaukie	OR	97267	503	(503) 654 0659		100	1
H CSR :	DNJ													
A	Donald & Bea	nuber	Dear Donald & Dea	Donald & Bea Huber	4536 Holly Street		Springfield	OR	93/178	618	(918) 495 2168		1	1
A	Craig	Lecourts	Dear Craig	Craig Lecouris	5123 NE 112th Ave		Portland	OR	93220		YEH KVYF		1	
A	Donald and Deborah	Nolen	Dear Donald and Deborah	Donald and Deborah Nolen	PO BOX 324		Beavercreek	OR	93004		612 0155		V	
P	Nancy	Sparta	Dear Nancy	Nancy Sparta	22059 E Burnside		Portland	OR	93214		215 8590		1	1
A	Todd	Stief	Dear Todd	Todd Stef	15117 SE Diamond Ave		Niwecke	OR	93267		254 5185		4	
A	lohn	Wesson	Dear John	Tohn Wesson	120312 S New Fra Rd		Canity	OR	93013		550 0110		V	V
P	Donald	Zmmer	Dear Donald	Donald Zimmer	17190 SE Webster Rd		Gadstone	OR	93027		658 5515		10	4
	WO													
A	Richard & Audine	Anstead	Dear Richard & Audine	Richard & Audine Anstead	5200 SE Jennings Ave #15		Miwauke	OR	93267		654 8811		V	V
A	Albert	Babcock	Dear Albert	Albert Babcock	18505 SE Ashton Ln		Miwaukie	OR	93267		654 8561		~	
A	Dale 6. Lori	Dingham	Dear Dale & Lori	Dale & Lori Bingham	2203 SW Marsuda Way #27		Aloha	OR	93006		658 2582		V	10
A	Tom and Susan	Brooks	Dear Tom and Susan	Tom and Susan Brooks	15598 SE Blassom Ave		Niweuke	OR	93267		655 2416		1	11
A	James & Terri	Burch	Dear James & Terri	James & Tent Burch	PO BOX 804		Nulno	OR	93342	805	(805) 825 6655		1	
P	Edward & Heide	Filtoraft-Smith	Dear Edward & Heide	Edward & Heide Filtcraft-Smith	2400 NE Redsunset Dr #113		Gresham	OR	93030		665 6461		10	4
P	Lthe	Griva	Dear Lthel	Ethel Griva	4948 SE 87th Ave		Portland	OR	93266		221 4914		311	
A	Tammera	H	Dear Tammera	Tammera Hi	7244 SE Los Verdes Dr		Gladistone	OR	93327		658 5820		V	V
D	Frite	Kooling	Dose Ente	Frite Koolon	20E33 CE Moomo 27E	_	Killuse Ma	00	03333		651 1048	_	10	17
100		•											5	ustom'

that column header into the yellow band. Had we done that, each CSR would have a sub-group for Oregon, and another for Washington. Notice how the filtering on State remains.

#### Hiding Columns

Click the cell in the upper left of the grid to expose a drop-down of all the columns. Uncheck the boxes for the columns you wish to hide. This is most useful when you plan to print a report, but wish only certain columns. In the following example, we have removed Client, Address2, and other columns to produce a more narrow output. Notice the dropdown list of columns in the upper left of the grid.

The reciperation			A DESCRIPTION OF	the loss loss fields						1000
Output										
Print Print &	Aailing Evrort Mail									
Report Lat	sels									
	Output									
SR A										
AS Entity	First A M	d Last 🍐	Salutation	Address1	City	State	Zio	Area	Phone	
AS									and a second	
ENTITY	Allson	Ansle	Dear Alson	2952 E Harrison St	Seattle	WA	98112	206	(206) 329 4556	
FIRST	Douglas	Bennett	Dear Douglas	5345 SE Byron Dr	Miwaukie	OR	97267	503	(503) 654 0659	
LAST										
SALUTATION	Donald & Bea	Huber	Dear Donald & Bea	4536 Holly Street	Springfield	OR	93478	818	(818) 485 2188	
CLIENT	Crag	Lecourts	Dear Crag	5123 NE 112th Ave	Portland	OR	93220		YBH KVYF	
ADDRESS1	Donald and Deborah	Nolen	Dear Donald and Deborah	PO BOX 324	Beavercreek	OR .	93004		612 0155	
CITY	Nancy	Sparta	Dear Nancy	22059 E Burnside	Portland	OR	93214		215 8580	
STATE	Todd	Stlef	Dear Todd	15117 SE Diamond Ave	Miwaukie	OR	93267		254 5185	
ZIP	John	Wesson	Dear John	120312 S New Era Rd	Canby	OR	93013		550 0110	
AREA	Donald	Zimmer	Dear Donaid	17190 SE Webster Rd	Gladstone	OR	93027		658 5515	
CSP )										
ENAIL	Richard & Audine	Anstead	Dear Richard & Audine	5200 SE Jennings Ave #15	Milwaukie	OR	93267		654 8811	
Mass Mal	Albert	Babcock	Dear Abert	18505 SE Ashton Ln	Miwaukie	OR	93267		654 8561	
RENTER	Dale & Lori	Bingham	Dear Dale & Lott	2203 SW Marsuda Way #27	Aloha	OR	93006		658 2582	
A	Tom and Susan	Brooks	Dear Tom and Susan	16698 SE Blossom Ave	Miwaukie	OR	93267		655 2416	
A	James & Terri	Burch	Dear James & Terri	PO BOX 804	Muino	OR	93042	805	(805) 825 6655	
P	Edward & Heida	Fitoraft-Smith	Dear Edward & Heide	2400 NE Redsunset Dr #113	Gresham	OR	93030		665 6461	
the second se	Ethel	Griva	Dear Ethel	4848 SE 87th Ave	Portland	OR	93266		221 4814	
P	The second second	Left .	Dear Tammera	7244 SE Los Verdes Dr	Gladstone	OR	93027		658 5820	
A	Tammera									

### Printing Reports From Grids (Query Example)

Once you have the query output the way you want, you can print a report by clicking the Print Report button. That opens the report generator as pictured below. Notice the report is in exactly the same format as the grid. However, the last three columns don't fit on a Portrait layout. If you change the layout to landscape, all the columns will probably fit. However, we have another way to handle this somewhat wide document. We can force the complete report to fit

as E c	Entity	Pist 4	Md Last	A Salu	cacion	Address1		city State Zip	Area Phone				
A		Allson	A Print Pr	minu-	-	THE OWNER			in the loss of size			_ 0	×
A		Douglas		ciicii	-		-	Statement in the local data	and the second second second				
BC	SR : DNJ		Elle Viev	v Format	Go He	ip.							
A		Donald & Bea	830	) 🏼 🖷		E E E E E E 100	1%	• + + 1 😤 +					
A		Craig	in the second second	- 41-	A.F. 1 T		0.5 1 0.000	AT LUNCH	0.01.5 0.02				
A		Donaid and Deborah	Margins	Lett	0.5 100	C U.S Right	0.5 Bottom	: U.S Header.	U.2 Footer: U.2				-
P		Nancy											<u>^</u>
A		Todd											
A		John	1 ····					Die Derent					-
P		Donald						Fire Renewals					
BC	SR : HWJ												
A		Richard & Audine	1	AS	ENTETY	FIRST + !	MID LAST	SALUTATION	ADDRESS1	CITY	STATE		
A		Abert	1	EC	R :								
A		Dale & Lori	1	A	1	Allison	Ainslie	Dear Allison	2952 E Herrison St	Seattle	WA		
A		Tom and Susan	1	A		Dougles	Bennett	Deer Dougles	5345 SE Byron Dr	Milwaukie	OR		
A		James & Terri		EC	R : DNJ								
P		Edward & Heide		A		Donald & Sea	Huber	Dear Donald & Bea	4536 Holly Street	Springfield	OR		
P		Ethel		A		Oraig	Lecouris	Dear Craig	5123 NE 112th Ave	Portland	OR		
A		Tammera		A		Donald and Deborah	Nolen	Dear Donald and Deborah	PO 80X 324	Servercreek	OR		
0	Conception of the local division of the loca	Emin		P	-	Nancy	Sperte	Dear Nancy	22059 E Burnside	Portland	OR		
1		OR) or (STATE = WA))		A		Tedd	Stief	Dear Todd	15117 SE Diamond Ave	Milwaukie	OR		Cust
	2 05 20	AS - Account S		A		lohn	Wesson	Dear John	120312 S /Jew Era Ed	Canhy	OR		
_	20.30	AD PACCOLLES		P	1	Denald	Zimmer	Dear Donald	17190 SE Webster Rd	Gladstone	OR		
				In co	10 - HIN1		- Constitution		1.1.1.0 00 000 000 000	and a state of	414		
				EC	In . HUND								-

within the layout.

#### **Exporting Grid Contents**

In grids for all predefined queries, and some other grids, you can export the contents to external files. You have the choice of several file formats, including the frequently needed Comma Separated Values (CSV), and Excel<sup>®</sup> spread sheets. The menu and/or buttons above the grid allow you to pick the option you wish.

This is very handy when you need to send greeting cards or calendars to your clients. Simply select the query you want, filter as desired, and export. If you use a mailing service for such a mailing, they often specify one or both of the formats mentioned above. You can literally create the desired file in a matter of seconds.

## **R**EPORTS

Custom reports can be created using Predefined Queries. Because they can be customized by users, describing the content and purpose would be futile. Instead, this part of the manual will be aimed at the ABS standard reports.

With only a few exceptions, the standard reports are found under the Reports menu shown here. It is available on the main Account screen. Please note that the Policy Summary, Receipt Manager, and Advanced menu items have sub-menus.

Not every user has access to all these reports. Access is granted by the ABS Administrator, usually the Agency Owner, or Office Manager. If you have not been granted permission to use a report,

Repo	orts	Tools & Settings	Window	User Manual	Blog	
	Acti Acc Poli	vity Log ount Review cy Summary				•
	Mas	ter Client List				
	Carı Poli	rier / Policy Statistic cy Premium & Cou	:s int by Carrie	r (Prior 12 Month	s)	
	Rec	eipt Manager				۲
	Adv Pers Pro	anced onal Production duction Report (all	producers)			•

clicking on its menu item will result in a message saying that permission is denied.

Following is a brief description of each report. We encourage you to examine the actual report as you read its description. It will make things much easier to grasp.

### **Activity Log**

As the name implies, this allows printing of the Activity Log entries in several different formats. Clicking this menu item opens a window that lets you select how the report will be arranged, and what will be included. Because log entries cannot be altered, this produces a print preview only.

Selection Criteria:	Report Layout
This Account Only	Continuous (no breaks)
🔵 Date Range	Page break on account
O Phrase in Comment	Sort Order*
O All Log Entries	Account Name
O Logs by User Name	Entity Name
* Displic come first	OK Cancel

### **Account Review**

This report is designed to be used when an agent conducts a periodic account review with the insured. All to often the review falls through the cracks because, without a report such as this, it is difficult to prepare for the meeting. This report analyzes all the insured's policies and their limits and actually makes recommendations for you. Naturally, you can alter or amend them, but this is a huge time saver, and a great thought starter. Please select a large client and print this report. The way this simplifies things will amaze you.

### **Policy Summary**

This prints a summary of all policies in the account, including risk, coverage, limits, carrier, lender info, and more. It is a great addition to the Account Review report. You can print separate reports for Active, Prospect policies, or a report that includes everything.

## **Master Client List**

This can be a huge report because it lists just about everything for every one of your clients. Too much to describe here. Please select that menu item and look at the print preview on your computer screen.

## **Carrier / Policy Statistics.**

This report is broken down by Insurance Company. For each company, it lists the number of policies and premium volume for each policy type (line of business). You get totals for each carrier (count and premium volume). You also get the total premium volume for your entire agency.

## Policy Premium and Count by Carrier (Prior 12 months)

This gives a simplified version of the previously described report showing the prior 12 months from the date the report is generated.

## **Receipt Manager**

Described in the Receipt Manager section of this manual.

## Advanced

#### Carrier/Broker List: All Policies

This is actually a special query. It is spreadsheet-like, and may be filtered to show which clients have policies from a specific carrier. This is very useful when it is necessary to rewrite clients with a different carrier because of premium increases, or when the carrier withdraws from a state or region.

Rep	orts Tools & Settings Window User Manual	<u>B</u> log		
	Activity Log			
	Account Review			
	Policy Summary		۲	
	Master Client List			
	Carrier / Policy Statistics			
	Policy Premium & Count by Carrier (Prior 12 Months)	)		
	Receipt Manager		۲	
	Advanced		۱.	Carrier/Broker List: All Policies
	Personal Production			X-Dates
	Production Report (all producers)			User Actions
				Account Actions
				Policy Renewal/Cancellation (Active & Prospect)
				Fees Entered (including those Posted)
)				Fees Posted

#### X-Dates

If a policy's status is Prospect (P), the its renewal date is considered the X-Date. This report lists those policies for the month of your choice.

#### **User Actions**

ABS Agency Builder records <u>all</u> activities in great detail as they are performed by any logged-in user. It is actually a special spreadsheet-like query that may be filtered, sorted, and grouped in order to give you maximum flexibility when viewing. An example of actions recorded are; adding, changing, or deleting carriers, policies, risks, coverages, insured information, reports or letters printed, and several other user event types. Records can't be altered or deleted so it satisfies event logging requirements mandated by several States. Filtering allows examining events by insured, policy, user, event type, user performing the event, and more. All events are automatically recorded and cannot be circumvented.

#### Account Actions

This report contains the same action as the User Actions report only the information it contains is limited to the selected account (insured or household).

#### Policy Renewal / Cancellation

Unless requested, ABS Agency Builder will automatically update renewal dates, as well as, change policy status to *Inactive* when the policy's cancellation date arrives. This report lists those events for the time period you select.

#### Fees Entered (including those posted)

This report is actually a special spreadsheet-like query that may be filtered, sorted, and grouped as you wish. It provides a list of all fees regardless of fee type. It provides a snapshot of those that have and have not been posted. This report lists those events for the time period you select.

#### **Fees Posted**

This report is a spreadsheet-like query that may be filtered, sorted, and grouped as you wish. It provides a list of all fees that have been posted, regardless of fee type. This report lists those events for the time period you select.

# Appendix A: ABS Agency Builder OVERVIEW



# Appendix B: ABS Initial Setup

These are important setup items that should be done right after installing ABS Agency Builder. Do them before you start entering customers or policies. It will save you an enormous amount of time. This is a one-time task and only takes about 90 minutes (usually less). After it is done, the only time you will ever need to edit or modify these things is when something changes within the agency, such as getting an appointment with a new Insurance Carrier.

Do these, in the order they are listed. Think of this as a checklist and not instructions. The procedure, or instructions, for doing this setup is covered in the manual. If you have already started using ABS Agency Builder without doing these things, it's not too late. Do them now. *We can't emphasize enough, how important this is.* 

Note: time saving tasks have been highlighted.

What should I do?	Why should I do this?	Brief instructions	Average Estimated Time
Add Users (required)	<ul> <li>Each user should have their own login to ABS.</li> <li>The program remembers what each person does based on the login that was used – changes made, tasks performed, reports printed, and virtually everything else.</li> <li>Each person can be given permission to do certain things or have permission revoked for things they don't have the skill or education to do. For example, you can prevent a new, inexperienced (or unlicensed) person from printing a binder, or a sensitive administrative report.</li> </ul>	Use the ABS Administration Program <b>OR</b> Click: Admin » User/Employee List	15 minutes total for an average agency (3 to 4 minutes per employee).
Add Insurance Carriers to the list of those with whom you have appointments.	<ul> <li>Eliminates typing a carrier's name when entering policy information.</li> <li>Assures correct spelling and proper carrier names on ACORD forms, and elsewhere.</li> <li>Inserts correct carrier name into the letters within the ABS letter library.</li> <li>Provides needed information for commission calculation by ABS.</li> <li>Gives immediate access to the carrier's website.</li> </ul>	Click: Admin » Carrier List	20 minutes total for an average agency (3-4 minutes per carrier).
Add Policy Names sold for each carrier.	<ul> <li>Eliminates typing of policy names when entering policy information.</li> <li>Assures correct spelling when needed on ACORD forms.</li> <li>Inserts correct policy name into the letters within the ABS letter library.</li> <li>Provides needed information for commission calculation by ABS.</li> <li>For Fire policies, entering the limits for coverage that depends on Dwelling Amount will automatically calculate and enter those limits.</li> </ul>	Click: Admin » Policy List	30 minutes total for an average agency (3-4 minutes per policy).
Auto Policies: Edit Default Limits.	Permits entering almost all policy limits with only a couple of mouse clicks.	On the Auto Screen Click: Auto » Edit » Default	10 minutes total for an average agency.

		Limits	
Edit Word Processor Templates on each workstation.	<ul> <li>Create and format return address and Complimentary Close.</li> <li>Insert your logo.</li> <li>Insert a scanned signature that can be used when printing mass-mail letters.</li> </ul>	Do on each workstation so that the correct user's signature is used. Detailed instructions are in the ABS user manual.	15 minutes per computer workstation.
<b>Commercial</b> <b>Policies</b> : add Certificate Holders to each policy.	Automatically adds the cert holder's information to ACORD forms so you don't have to type it again.	Click the <i>Certificate</i> <i>Holders</i> tab at the bottom of the Commercial Policy Screen	Not truly a setup task. This is done for each new policy written.
Commercial Policies: enter the Description of Operation to each policy.	Automatically adds that text to ACORD forms so you don't have to type it again.	Click the <i>Bus. Operation</i> tab at the bottom of the Commercial Policy Screen.	Not truly a setup task. This is done for each new policy written.
## Alphabetical Index

3rd Party Backup Systems	.20
ABS Calendar	.11
ABS Carrier Gateway Browser	8
ABS dialog	.51
ABS Mail Sender4	5p.
ABS3BAK.ZIP	.20
Account Screen	.26
ACORD Form Filtering	.43
Acord Form Sorting	.43
ACORD® Forms	.41
Activity Log	16
ADF	51
Administration	6
Advanced Grid features 17	56
All Forms	/11
Arizona ADOT Card	1
Auto Policy Screen	- <del>-</del> 2Ω
automated backups	20
Automatic Document Fooder 40	.20
Automatic Document Feeder	10
Automatic Document requeis	.49
Dackground graphic	.13 21
Backup	.21
Dinoculars	.15
Brightness and Contrast	.53
Browse	.16
Buck Slips	.35
builder's debris	.52
Bulk text messages	.47
Calendar10,	34
Campaign Identification	.36
Cancellation Date	7
caption11, 17, 50, 52,	, 59
Carbonite2	0p.
Card File	.39
Card View	.40
Carrier Gateway	.32
Carrier List8,	33
Categories6, 11, 19, 51,	55
cellphone provider	.47
Certificate Holder	.44
Claim History	.40
Claims History	.26
Client cell numbers	.46
client computer	2
client info center	.26
Color Adjustment	.53

Comments	.26
commission calculations	.33
Condominium Certificates	.44
Contrast and Brightness	.53
crooked scans	.54
Cron	.53
Cronning	53
Cross-reference	52
Custom Filtering	56
Custom Reports	18
Customized Queries	56
Data Backun	19
Data Path Configuration	.15 4
Data Restore	
DRA	.22
Dedicated Host	י_י. כ
Dedicated Sorver	∠ כ
Default Calendar	10
default coverages	.10 21
Default Dolicy Limite	30
Delating Intra Office Messages	36
Deleting mud-Office messages	.50
Deskew	.54
Document Manager	.49
Editing Templates	/ ∠. ۱۵
email	.40 48
Email History	.27
Employee cell numbers	.46
Employee Dishonesty	.55
Entity Name	.27
Exporting Grid Contents	.60
filter button	.43
Filtering 17 52	56
Fire Policy Screen	.29
Form Signatures	.43
Garbage in – Garbage out	5
Gateway	.32
Gateway Browser	33
Generational Backups	.20
Geolocator	12
Global Preferences	10
Grid Features	17
Grid View	, 40
Grouning	17
Hiding Columns.	.18
Host	.10 7
11000	••••

host computer	2
Human Resources	6
Image Editing	53
Importing a Document	51
Initial setup	5
Installation: Client Workstation	4
Installation: Server	3
Insurance Carrier Info	8
Internet Explorer	32
Intra-Office Messages	35
Large documents	51
Letter Library	
Linking Documents	52
Locating an account	
Logging In	
Magnifying Glass button	16
Main Window	14
Maintaining Windows Health	2
Manage Deleted Policies	
Manual Backup	20
Μαη	20 17
Marketing Campaigns	2۲۲ ۲6
Marketing Queries	
Mambers Tab	17 76
Message Media	20. 17
motadata	/ 4. 50
Mosy	ט0 מושר
Moving a document	
NAIC number	∠352 ככ
Navigator	
Network	.10, 30, 30p. c
	ک
Open source	41 ר
Opening sound forms	∠ ⊂≀
Opening Saved Overies	43 50
OVEDVIEW	
Destin Destruction	13, 63
Partial Payments	
paste documents	51
Pay Periods	
PDF Direct	
Peer-to-Peer Network	2
Pending Task List	2/
Pending lasks	16
permission	6
permission denied	60
Permission Denied message	
Personal Preterences	
Pick a Carrier	
Policy Into	

Policy Screens	28
Predefined Queries	.17.60
Preferences	
Premium Finance	
Premium Invoice	38
Proprietary Forms	
Purge a Policy	
Purging an Account	
Oueries	55
Queries vs. Campaigns	36
Queries VS. Campaigns	56
Query Exporting Crid Contents	50 60
Query Crouping	50
Query Hiding Columns	59 E0
Query Drinting Columns	
Query Printing Reports	59
Query Sorting	58
Receipt Manager	54
Registration Code	4p.
reminder	27
removable media	21
Reports	60
Reports -Advanced: Account Actions	61
Reports -Advanced: Carrier/Broker List: A	.11
Policies	61
Reports -Advanced: Fees Entered (includir	าฮ
-	18
those posted)	62
those posted) Reports -Advanced: Fees Posted	62 62
those posted) Reports -Advanced: Fees Posted Reports -Advanced: Policy Renewal /	62 62
those posted) Reports -Advanced: Fees Posted Reports -Advanced: Policy Renewal / Cancellation	62 62
those posted) Reports -Advanced: Fees Posted Reports -Advanced: Policy Renewal / Cancellation Reports -Advanced: User Actions	62 62 61 61
those posted) Reports -Advanced: Fees Posted Reports -Advanced: Policy Renewal / Cancellation Reports -Advanced: User Actions Reports -Advanced: X-Dates	62 62 61 61 61
those posted) Reports -Advanced: Fees Posted Reports -Advanced: Policy Renewal / Cancellation Reports -Advanced: User Actions Reports -Advanced: X-Dates Reports: Account Review	62 62 61 61 61 61
those posted) Reports -Advanced: Fees Posted Reports -Advanced: Policy Renewal / Cancellation Reports -Advanced: User Actions Reports -Advanced: X-Dates Reports: Account Review Reports: Activity Log	62 62 61 61 61 60 60
those posted) Reports -Advanced: Fees Posted Reports -Advanced: Policy Renewal / Cancellation Reports -Advanced: User Actions Reports -Advanced: X-Dates Reports: Account Review Reports: Activity Log Reports: Carrier / Policy Statistics	62 62 61 61 61 60 60 61
those posted) Reports -Advanced: Fees Posted Reports -Advanced: Policy Renewal / Cancellation Reports -Advanced: User Actions Reports -Advanced: X-Dates Reports: Actount Review Reports: Activity Log Reports: Carrier / Policy Statistics Reports: Master Client List	62 62 61 61 61 60 61 61
those posted) Reports -Advanced: Fees Posted Reports -Advanced: Policy Renewal / Cancellation Reports -Advanced: User Actions Reports -Advanced: X-Dates Reports: Actount Review Reports: Activity Log Reports: Carrier / Policy Statistics Reports: Master Client List Reports: Policy Premium and Count by Ca	62 62 61 61 61 60 61 61 rrier
those posted) Reports -Advanced: Fees Posted Reports -Advanced: Policy Renewal / Cancellation Reports -Advanced: User Actions Reports -Advanced: X-Dates Reports: Actount Review Reports: Activity Log Reports: Carrier / Policy Statistics Reports: Master Client List Reports: Policy Premium and Count by Ca (Prior 12 months)	-5 62 61 61 61 61 61 rrier 61
those posted) Reports -Advanced: Fees Posted Reports -Advanced: Policy Renewal / Cancellation Reports -Advanced: User Actions Reports -Advanced: X-Dates Reports: Activity Log Reports: Activity Log Reports: Carrier / Policy Statistics Reports: Master Client List Reports: Policy Premium and Count by Ca (Prior 12 months) Reports: Policy Summary	-5 62 61 61 61 61 61 rrier 61 61
those posted) Reports -Advanced: Fees Posted Reports -Advanced: Policy Renewal / Cancellation Reports -Advanced: User Actions Reports -Advanced: X-Dates Reports: Account Review Reports: Account Review Reports: Carrier / Policy Statistics Reports: Master Client List Reports: Policy Premium and Count by Ca (Prior 12 months) Reports: Policy Summary Reports: Receipt Manager	-5 62 61 61 61 61 61 rrier 61 61 61 61 61
those posted) Reports -Advanced: Fees Posted Reports -Advanced: Policy Renewal / Cancellation Reports -Advanced: User Actions Reports -Advanced: X-Dates Reports: Activity Log Reports: Activity Log Reports: Carrier / Policy Statistics Reports: Master Client List Reports: Policy Premium and Count by Ca (Prior 12 months) Reports: Policy Summary Reports: Receipt Manager RGB	-5 62 61 61 61 61 61 rrier 61 61 61 61 61 61
those posted) Reports -Advanced: Fees Posted Reports -Advanced: Policy Renewal / Cancellation Reports -Advanced: User Actions Reports -Advanced: X-Dates Reports: Activity Log Reports: Activity Log Reports: Carrier / Policy Statistics Reports: Master Client List Reports: Policy Premium and Count by Ca (Prior 12 months) Reports: Policy Summary Reports: Receipt Manager RGB Risk	-5 62 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61
those posted) Reports -Advanced: Fees Posted Reports -Advanced: Policy Renewal / Cancellation Reports -Advanced: User Actions Reports -Advanced: X-Dates Reports: Account Review Reports: Account Review Reports: Carrier / Policy Statistics Reports: Master Client List Reports: Policy Premium and Count by Ca (Prior 12 months) Reports: Receipt Manager RGB Risk Risk Information	-5 62 61 61 61 61 61 rrier 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 
those posted) Reports -Advanced: Fees Posted Reports -Advanced: Policy Renewal / Cancellation Reports -Advanced: User Actions Reports -Advanced: X-Dates Reports: Activity Log Reports: Activity Log Reports: Carrier / Policy Statistics Reports: Master Client List Reports: Policy Premium and Count by Ca (Prior 12 months) Reports: Policy Summary Reports: Receipt Manager RGB Risk Risk Information Rotate	-5 62 61 61 61 61 61 rrier 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61
those posted) Reports -Advanced: Fees Posted Reports -Advanced: Policy Renewal / Cancellation Reports -Advanced: User Actions Reports -Advanced: X-Dates Reports: Activity Log Reports: Activity Log Reports: Carrier / Policy Statistics Reports: Master Client List Reports: Policy Premium and Count by Ca (Prior 12 months) Reports: Policy Summary Reports: Receipt Manager RGB Risk Risk Information Rotate Saved ACORD Forms	-5 62 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61
those posted) Reports -Advanced: Fees Posted Reports -Advanced: Policy Renewal / Cancellation Reports -Advanced: User Actions Reports -Advanced: X-Dates Reports: Account Review Reports: Account Review Reports: Carrier / Policy Statistics Reports: Master Client List Reports: Policy Premium and Count by Ca (Prior 12 months) Reports: Policy Summary Reports: Receipt Manager RGB Risk Risk Information Rotate Saved ACORD Forms saving a query	-5 62 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61
those posted) Reports -Advanced: Fees Posted Reports -Advanced: Policy Renewal / Cancellation Reports -Advanced: User Actions Reports -Advanced: X-Dates Reports: Account Review Reports: Account Review Reports: Carrier / Policy Statistics Reports: Master Client List Reports: Policy Premium and Count by Ca (Prior 12 months) Reports: Policy Summary Reports: Receipt Manager RGB Risk Risk Information Rotate Saved ACORD Forms saving a query Saving Custom Oueries	-5 62 61 61 61 61 61 rrier 61 rrier 61 61 rrier 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 
those posted) Reports -Advanced: Fees Posted Reports -Advanced: Policy Renewal / Cancellation Reports -Advanced: User Actions Reports -Advanced: X-Dates Reports: Account Review Reports: Activity Log Reports: Carrier / Policy Statistics Reports: Master Client List Reports: Policy Premium and Count by Ca (Prior 12 months) Reports: Policy Summary Reports: Receipt Manager RGB Risk. Risk Information Rotate Saved ACORD Forms saving a query Saving Custom Queries scanner	-5 62 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 
those posted) Reports -Advanced: Fees Posted Reports -Advanced: Policy Renewal / Cancellation Reports -Advanced: User Actions Reports -Advanced: X-Dates Reports: Activity Log Reports: Activity Log Reports: Carrier / Policy Statistics Reports: Master Client List Reports: Policy Premium and Count by Ca (Prior 12 months) Reports: Policy Summary Reports: Policy Summary Reports: Receipt Manager RGB Risk Risk Information Rotate Saved ACORD Forms saving a query Saving Custom Queries Scanning a document	-5 62 62 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 
those posted) Reports -Advanced: Fees Posted Reports -Advanced: Policy Renewal / Cancellation Reports -Advanced: User Actions Reports -Advanced: X-Dates Reports: Account Review Reports: Account Review Reports: Carrier / Policy Statistics Reports: Carrier / Policy Statistics Reports: Policy Premium and Count by Ca (Prior 12 months) Reports: Policy Summary Reports: Policy Summary Reports: Receipt Manager RGB Risk Risk Information Rotate Saved ACORD Forms saving a query Saving Custom Queries Scanning a document Scanning a document	-5 62 62 61 61 61 61 61 61 rrier 61 61 rrier 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 

Scheduled Backup	21
Search button	15
Server	2
Set up	45
Settlement Report	55
setup4, 6pp., 16, 21p., 31, 41,	45pp.
setup tasks	7
short list	41
site backup system	21
Software Installation	3
Software Registration	4
Sorting	17
SOS.	20
special purpose browser	34
Standard Reports	19
Suggestions	1
System Date	7
System Requirements	3
technical support	.1, 21
templates4	, 47p.
Terms	2
Texas ID Cards	44

text messages	46
Things-To-Do	
unattended backups	
Undelete a Policy	
Undelete an Account	
Undeleting and Purging Records	
Upgrade Policy	2
User Defined	27
User ID	6
User Login Password	
User permission	6, 60
verify coverage	
Viewing and Managing Messages	35
voided receipts	55
wallpaper	
wild card	
Windows Task Scheduler	
Word Processing	47
Word Processor	.11p., 39, 47p.
yellow fields	
zooming	
	· · · ·